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Roles
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The Hospital Authority (HA) is a body corporate in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in Section 4 of the Hospital
Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).
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The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
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Managing and controlling public hospitals

EREREEATER

Advising the Government of the needs of the public for hospital services and of the
resources required to meet those needs

MARH AT ERRFNFRREAZEZFZRMEFNER @ AEFRMAE

Managing and developing the public hospital system
BIERBRNT BRI

Recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate policies on fees for the
use of hospital services by the public

MARERBRERBANNVER  ARVRAERBEREZRBENER

Establishing public hospitals
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Promoting, assisting and taking part in

the education and training of persons

involved in hospital or related services M =
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Vision, Mission and Values

A= i

VISION

B8
}=

* Healthy People
mRER

* Happy Staff
EIRD

* Trusted by the Community
ARIERE

MISSION

fEdp

Helping People Stay Healthy
HEEF REZE

VALUES
BOEE

* People-centred Care
BLAB%

* Professional Service
BEXAEX

* Committed Staff
WERER

* Teamwork

HREN

Vision, Mission and Values BE% ~ i@ R#%OIEE

P REDEE

The corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) of
Hospital Authority reflect aspirations of the Board,
the management and staff in fostering a healthy
community. Guided by the mission of “Helping
People Stay Healthy”, the Authority collaborates
with community partners to strive for continued
success and works towards the vision of “Healthy
People, Happy Staff and Trusted by the Community”.
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Corporate Strategies
P tE RIS

The Hospital Authority aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting five
strategic goals as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2018-2019:

HBERMN 2018-2019 FETFABIZSFBRAIBRIERR © EE LAYHIBRES -
Ea RIZOEE -

mprove service quality chhance stafi training and development
IS RFEE R D5z 8 T35 5|2 3 =

Uptimise aemand management Jrive accountaple and

BLEXKEH efficient use of financial resources

i ) 5 5 4 715 35 452 P A E I R

Attract and retain staft
RE| R E AT

Under the above strategic goals and 24 strategies, the Authority formulated around 160
corresponding programme targets for 2018-2019, which were all achieved in the year, save
for nine slightly deferred. The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe major
achievements in these areas.

Rz FtRRIR B IR K 24 EKEE - BER/Rt 2018-2019 FEHIET T#Y 160 IHTIERR -
B T NIBTHAHES - ZENREATA - EASRMHERERERBRE TFERTISESSE
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Membership of the Hospital Authority
EREERNE

Prof John LEONG
Chi-yan, GBS, JP

RECHE

+ Appointed as Chairman of the
Authority on 1 December 2013

« Clinician-scientist specialising
in spinal and paediatric
orthopaedics

- R2013F12B 1 HERME
REREERERE

© BRI RNE BB
BEMREER

Ms Anita CHENG
Wai-ching

HESLL

+ Appointed on 1 April 2014

« Chief executive officer of a
marketing, brand building and
event management company

- R2014F4 51 HEZMFE

- MIHE  BEPKRNER
SNABE

Mr William CHAN
Fu-keung, BBS

BREMEE

(up to 30.11.2018)
(EEZ 2018411 5 308)

+ Appointed on 1 December 2012

+ Former human resources

director of a listed public
transportation group

- R2012F 1281 HEZE
- EHAHBBREREIANER

g

Mr Henry FAN
Hung-ling, SBS, JP

SEIRH R E

+ Appointed on 1 December 2018

+ Managing director of a property

investment company
- R2018E 125 1 BESR(E
- MERENTNESARKE

Membership of the Hospital Authority Bfz &2 FH % &

Dr Constance CHAN
Hon-yee, JP

PREEE

Director of Health
FEEER

+ Appointed on 13 June 2012

+ Board Member in capacity as

Director of Health of HKSAR
Government

« R201266 13 HEZRE

DIEBRATHREBRFEE
EERSNMHABREER
B &

Mr David FONG
Man-hung, BBS, JP

AR E
+ Appointed on 1 April 2017

+ Managing director of a
development company

- R2017TE4 A1 BEZE
- BRAREEHRRLE

Prof Francis CHAN
Ka-leung, SBS, JP

PRR T HIR
+ Appointed on 1 April 2013

+ Dean of the Faculty of
Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

- R2013F 4B 1 HEZE

BERXARBEERRR

Mr Andrew FUNG
Hau-chung, BBS, JP

BERSLE
+ Appointed on 1 December 2013

+ Chief financial officer of a
listed property developer

- R2013F 128 1 BEZE

- Tt ERRARDERME
faE



Mr Ambrose HO,
SBS, JP

M v

+ Appointed on 1 December 2018
+ Senior Counsel

« 20181281 HEZF
« BRAERD

hm
m '

Mr Daniel LAM Chun,
SBS, JP

WEEE
+ Appointed on 1 December 2016

« Building surveyor and practising
arhitrator

« 2016451281 HEZRE
c BEFRHEMERARMEA

Mr Lester Garson
HUANG, SBS, JP

BREMEE

(up to 30.11.2018)
(= 2018411 5308 )

- Appointed on 1 December 2012

- Solicitor and partner of a legal
firm

- R2012F 1281 BEZE
- BANEMEEAABA

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
WEELE

+ Appointed on 1 April 2018

+ Advanced Practice Nurse of
the Department of Surgery
of Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital

- R2018F 41 HEZRE

c RELABRABITRELR
SMRHBE R ERD

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HigsxEL
+ Appointed on 1 April 2013

« Certified public accountant and
former chief executive officer of
the Financial Reporting Council

- R2013E4 B 1HEERE

- EMEEE - MBEERR
HITT B

Mr Franklin LAM
Fan-keung, BBS

WEREE

c R2017TE4R1HERE
- BAUIFEFALKBIRATT

Mrs Ann KUNG
YEUNG Yun-chi

RERELT
+ Appointed on 1 December 2016

+ Deputy chief executive
of a listed bank

- R2016F 128 1 HERE
- ESRITRIMER

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP
ZEEHIR

+ Appointed on 1 December 2018

- Appointed on 1 April 2017

- Founder of an independent

+ President of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine

« R2018F 128 1 HERME
- BRERBENBERER

non-profit public policy
research organisation

HRBRIHA

sy Tl
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Membership of the Hospital Authority
EREERME

Ms Lisa LAU
Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

£ e & e

+ Appointed on 1 December 2016

+ Design consultant

- R2016F 128 1 HERE
Rt B

L& =
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Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP
PR

Chief Executive, HA

B ER R TR
- Appointed on 8 November 2010

+ Board Member in capacity as
Chief Executive of the Hospital
Authority

- R2010E11 B8 RERE

- UEREERITERRIESH
HEEREERKE

Membership of the Hospital Authority &

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FHESLE

+ Appointed on 1 December 2013

+ Accountant and Adjunct
Associate Professor in
the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

- R20134E 127 1 HEZFE

- BERIREBPXAREIH
EEBREERHIR

Prof Raymond LIANG
Hin-suen, SBS, JP

RERHIR

+ Appointed on 1 April 2013

+ Specialist in haematology
and haematological oncology
and assistant medical
superintendent of a private
hospital

- M2013F 481 HEZGE

- MRR MR EREN SR EE
EAZERE R R

3§51

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
TFHHIR

(up to 30.11.2018)

(EHE20184E11530H ) Prof Gabriel Matthew

* Appointed on 1 December 2012 leUNnG’ GB}’ ek
REEHIR

« Professor of Nursing of the
Nethersole School of Nursing of
the Chinese University of Hong
Kong

c- R2012E128 1 HEZRF

+ Appointed on 1 August 2013

+ Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of
Hong Kong

- R20134 871 HERAE
- BEEREFEHEERRR

LN T IE S $i
BB ERR

Ir Dr Hon LO

Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP

EEEEL

- Appointed on 1 December 2014 Prof David SHUM

- Engineer and Member of the Ii'o:keuﬂg -~
Legislative Council (Engineering 5 IR

Functional Constituency)
- R2014E128 1 HEZRE
- ITRRMNIEEZE (TER)

+ Appointed on 1 November 2018

+ Dean of the Faculty of Health
and Social Sciences of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

- - R20184 11 B 1 HEZE

| . msmTAsmsRue
\  AERER




Mr WONG Kwai-huen,

Eé'sva“ SZE Wing-hang, Ms Elizabeth TSE BEBS%P =
I £ Prof Agnes l:\/lag—yee.JP g%
7= TIWARI Fung-yee Skt (up t0 30712018)
- Appointed on 1 December 2015 RS T CR P io A (FEZE 20184 11 H30H )
+ Director of areal estate T — ber 2018 and Health (Health) « Appointed on 1 December 2012
development company e e RURBERBEUER (HE) « Solicitor and a law firm
- R2015E12A 1 BEEE gm'g:‘gagoonfgthe Nursing Council—— - ointed on 24 July 2017 consultant
- BUHERBRARES . R2018E 125 1 BEEE « Board Member in capacity as - R2012€F 1281 REZE
- Permanent Secretary for Food . y 7
- BREELITEERIR and Health (Health) of HKSAR IS R A

Government
c R2017TE7B 24 BERFE

- WESERTHERTAY
e : 1 REEREENEE (%)
m | " he SHHEBRERRNA

Mr Charlie YIP

Wing-tong
Prof Maurice YAP e
Keng-hung, JP I SRERE
Ms Priscilla WONG R ' Qg]ﬁl;intl?d P
Pui-sze. BBS, JP (up to 3110.2018) Mrl\JasanEUNG . .
ik (EEZ 2018410831 H) Chi-wai + Retired social worker
=2l Ee e L 9T - B 2015480818
: « Appointed on 1 April 2011 1 BRI
+ Appointed on : ==
| December 2015 - Immediate past Dean of + Appointed on 1 December 2015 AT
R e tShe'FaLCSUL'tyOfHe?lttr:] and « Group chief compliance and
ocial Sciences of the risk management officer of a
. @2015&12)@1 H Hong Kong Polytechnic group of listed companies
EEE University . 2015412 51 HEEA
© BEARER - R201ME4R1RE
i - FmARNEEEREER

BB
c ABEIARBREK
HENBRAERR

Rl

PR

Ms Carol YUEN
Siu-wai, JP

rNEBLL

Deputy Secretary for
Financial Services
and the Treasury

HRFHRERERRNER

« Appointed on 7 October
2016

+ Representing Secretary
for Financial Services and
the Treasury of HKSAR
Government

- R2016 107 BE
ZfE

- RRBBFHITHE

BRMREBLEBR
b=
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The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body established under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance (Cap. 113) (the HA Ordinance) in December 1990, responsible
for managing all public hospitals in Hong Kong. HA is accountable to the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government through the Secretary
for Food and Health.

BEREER (BER) RATERE RE (BREERRG) E113FR 1990 F
12ARIR REEEFENALER  TZBRVRGERBERAZESH
THEBFHRE -
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment
to corporate governance principles and recognises that the
Authority's stakeholders expect the highest standards of
performance, accountability and conduct.

Under the HA QOrdinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
appoints members to the HA Board. Membership of the
Authority comprises 24 non-public officers, three public
officers and one principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief
Executive). Board Members are not separately remunerated.
The 2018-19 Board consisted of 28 members, including the
Chairman, with details listed in Appendix 1.

The HA Board meets formally about 12 times a year and any
other times as required. In 2018-19, the Board conducted 15
meetings to consider over 110 agenda items. They covered
an array of important matters in leading and managing HA,
including formulation of policies and strategies, steering
and monitoring of the planning, development and operation
of hospital services and supporting facilities, resources
management, risk management and internal control,
contingency preparedness, governance, etc. In addition, 19
Board papers on urgent matters were circulated between
meetings.

EERAEHBEARFNERNEZEERE
THERR BEEREBRRTHIHAER
BiE%E TEAEETEEELRANE
fEEEAGE o

RE(EREERKH) BEERRIK
ERBEBRAINTRETHRREEEM - K8
REBIE 24 AFENBE - —RARBEER
—REIETHRAE (BEERITHEER) -
REKERNEEINE - 2018-19 FF »

ReE 28 4KE (BEER)  FBEEHN
BEfE 1 o
REBEBEV 12 AERNEE MAE

ZEARBFANEE - £ 2018-19F & »
7{9%%5% 15 REH > BEREE 1106

HE HERESLEHBERMNERS
B BEGEBERNRE  BEEREEER
BeAR 5 B S R ME R AR B ~ B RAE(F

EREE AREBRAPER  EE

BB - ZMEEHCELUERS N
BRI REEZSEEH -
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The Board in 2018-19 continued to steer and oversee the
implementation of various enhancements in response to the
recommendations of the Steering Committee on Review of HA,
receiving regular progress reports and advising on strategic
directions for relevant policy matters. In October 2018, the
Board formally endorsed the Final Report on Implementation
of HA Review Action Plan, which concluded the completion of
the three-year action plan for the implementation of over 100
action items for enhancements.

The Board during the year also made sustained efforts to
reinforce corporate governance and enhance practices to
ensure accountability and stewardship of HA's resources
and effective management of services. The Board and its
functional committees conducted annual agenda forecast
along different strategic and functional dimensions, and took
extra steps to proactively align the agenda planning with their
respective Terms of Reference (TOR). Annual self-assessment
by the Board and functional committees continued, with a
view to driving for continuous improvement. Arrangements
were made to enhance Members' understanding of HA's
policies and operations, including briefings on selected topics,
direct discussions on areas of strategic importance, visits
and talks, etc. Overseen by the Board and its committees,
implementation of the HA organisation-wide risk management
framework continued to make good progress, with the processes
consolidated and aligned across different functional areas and
management structures in the Authority, thereby strengthening
the clinical and non-clinical risk management in HA.

Corporate Governance ¥ & A

EERAREFNEESEMERHE
ERRNBEEEEEMERMETHX
ZER BETHNIFEEERSES L
PR BB RATRBMUEERR - K27
2018 F 10 B EXN BB ZITEHHEN
RERE THRAPN-FHFHLEKRE
BT ER A -
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EREBEERE SR ANRAMNRE LEF
g BEFEERER  UREAZE
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BERRELAEBERESEFENTA
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For optimal performance of roles and exercise of powers, the
HA Board has established 11 functional committees: Audit and
Risk Committee, Emergency Executive Committee, Executive
Committee, Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee,
Information Technology Services Governing Committee, Main
Tender Board, Medical Services Development Committee,
Public Complaints Committee, Staff Appeals Committee and
Supporting Services Development Committee. Membership
of the committees, terms of reference and focus of work in
2018-19 are outlined in Appendix 3.

To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals, Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) were
established in the hospitals and institutions in accordance with
the HA Ordinance. These committees are listed in Appendix 4. In
2018-19, a total of 136 meetings were conducted by 33 HGCs.
They received regular management reports from Hospital Chief
Executives, monitored operational and financial performance
of the hospitals, reviewed risk management issues, provided
policy guidance on hospital management, and participated
in human resources and procurement functions, as well as
hospital and community partnership activities.

HGCs operate in accordance with corporate governance
policies and practices as reflected in the Manual on the
Operation of Hospital Governing Committees approved by the
HA Board. The linkage and interactions between the Board and
HGCs are of particular significance to the development of HA's
corporate policies and strategies. During the year, continuous
efforts were made to actively engage HGCs in corporate-wide
issues, such as regular briefings by Cluster Chief Executives
at HGC meetings; and enhanced governance in two-way
communication of views raised by HGCs and monitoring of
actions taken and reporting to the HA Board. In line with
the practice adopted by the HA Board and its functional
committees, HGCs also conducted annual self-assessment to
drive for continuous improvement.

AR EERALBEUREBELTHER
BRERIY 11 BEEEERES BE
B REREERZES  RREERER
ER2 - ITREES WHEEESZ AHE
BREEEZ - EMBEREBEEAZESR
FRAKERES  BERBERERE® -
ABKFRES BELIFZESRTE
REEREZEESR - KEZE8®2018-19F
ENKRERE BEGE L TERRSE
PAFTER 3

AREHE2ELINRANERES &
ERE (BT EREN) BETER /
BENIEREREES - WH4IHES
ERhEREEE & -7£2018-19 F£E >
BEERELAZESHBHAIORTE
ERERITHREENTEHEERS BER
ERAEFENMEIENER  SEER
EHET  BEERTERKR  URRHE
ANEREERETERNER LT ENHBF
EES -

RKEERREBEN (BREnRES
EFEFM) RINBERELEZEGHER
BBEABRAR - BERARGHEE
REREREENERENEY  HEER
HETRBRRANRBALREE - F£R
KAFEEDBERECREG2HEES
FRHRESE BEABREBETHER
EREEEERNMEERNEBIBUR /
ZEH NMRERZESERRERRE
TEMNERLE LRABERAREER -
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To provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for specific
regions of Hong Kong and assist the Authority with better
performance of its functions in relation to the regions, HA
has established three Regional Advisory Committees (RACs).
These committees and their respective membership are listed
in Appendix 5. Each RAC meets four times a year.

In 2018-19, the RACs were briefed on the progress of
the annual plans and targets of individual clusters. The
Committees also discussed a number of corporate matters,
including the Filmless Operating Theatres Project, Paired/
Pooled Organ Donation Scheme and Paired Kidney Donation
Programme, Integrated Model of Specialist Outpatient Service
through Nurse Clinics, progress update on the 10-year Hospital
Development Plan, winter surge preparation, and training and
development for healthcare professionals. In addition, the
Committees received briefings on the Annual Report on Public
Appreciation, Feedback and Complaints Management 2017-
18 and 2017 Patient Experience and Satisfaction Survey on
Inpatient Service.

Corporate Governance ##E &R
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The executive management team of HA is outlined in
Appendix 2(b). The executives are charged by the HA Board
with the responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day
business and operations of the Authority. To ensure that the
management can discharge duties in an effective and efficient
manner, the HA Board has set out clear delegated authority,
policies and codes of conduct. The Board approved the 2018-19
annual plan prepared by the executives in accordance with the
Board's direction. Regular executive reports on the progress of
agreed performance indicators and targets were presented to
the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all employees. Remuneration packages of
executive directors and other senior managers are devised
to attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a
competitive talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior
executives are considered and approved by the HA Board or its
Executive Committee.

sk 2(0) MBITHREEBBMNRE - &
TRAEBEBERASREEENATE
ERNAEEBIEF - REAEEER
REERHETEHRET > KEEBEIH
BYEND - BRRBTEL - KGEFH
RETBRASRBEREA LI #HFTA L
fERTEl TRABTEMARSRREE
wE - BERENXEERAIFEERN
EE -

RE (BREERKEL) BFrea -

ERAE Eﬁﬁﬁ;%%@&%%f#
RITBEREMAEMRREEAEMEEN
M BREEFEFBIMADTS
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CHAPTER?2 £=%

Chalrman S Review
THEEE

Being the major provider of public healthcare services in Hong Kong, the
Hospital Authority (HA) strives to assure all patients of equitable access to
optimal care in the public healthcare system, making significant contributions
to Hong Kong's dual-track healthcare system which encompasses the public
and private sectors.

RREEER (RER) RESIBNARERARKIERE BHIRRRALALE
BRAT  SHATREGNAS  AABARSLTHENRBHEFLES
HE -
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Hong Kong's healthcare system is facing formidable challenges
due to growing and aging population. The latest demographic
projection reveals that Hong Kong's population will increase
from 7.4 million in mid-2018 to 8.22 million in 2043, in which
the proportion of people aged 65 and above will double from
17% to around 34%. We are well aware that there is a pressing
need to further augment and enhance our services in order to
meet the escalating demand.

Modernised infrastructure will facilitate delivery of quality
patient services. We are deeply grateful to the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government for
the unwavering support to HA in this regard. The HKSAR
Government has earmarked around $470 billion for two 10-year
Hospital Development Plans, involving a total of 35 projects
to deliver some 14 000 additional beds and other hospital
facilities that will meet projected service demand up to 2036.
Focusing on the past year, the phased service commencement
of Hong Kong Children's Hospital in December 2018 marked a
milestone in paediatric services in the territory, serving as the
tertiary referral centre for complex, serious and uncommon
paediatric cases requiring multidisciplinary management, and
providing diagnosis, treatment and rehabilitation services for
sick children in need.

ERBERAREIABERAOERRSEL
FTEER A BRE - RIBERHM AT XBAD
#2018 £y 740 B ESR 2043 £
9 822 B » MEHA 65 el E ADOFTG
MEDXREER 17% EI2EH 34% - @
HERFREER  WMARAERNEAR
BERZAARE -

BRACNEREERE  BBRMAERHESE
BENRARYE - HOAROKHE B
THEBRFREERRKER @ EBIAE
ERRY - FEBSLEE LI 4,700 &
TETMETEERBRRTE D P AHE
35@EIEE @ TEFFHIRHEHW 14 000 R
BRK R EMEREE KB REER
2036 FHIRBFR - £ 2018-19 FE >
FERE-EENENPLNEBREERR
R 2018 F 12 AFBABEERBAZEE
EhEBEEE BE AER RFBEE
BERUAENRZRRIE © AREREDE
BERERRY  EHBERRREER
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Long-term planning is instrumental in sustaining quality
healthcare services. Notable increase in recurrent financial
provision to HA in 2018-19 and the triennial progressive
recurrent funding arrangement have enabled us to proactively
plan for the medium term in augmenting capacity of public
hospital services and manpower. Furthermore, a public health
stabilisation fund of $10 billion earmarked by the HKSAR
Government ensures stable funding for public healthcare
services in face of unexpected circumstances. The HKSAR
Government's unfaltering support is no doubt our solid backup.
We will make strides in implementing service enhancement
measures with prudent use of funding.

Effective corporate governance is exemplified by the HA
Board, which plays a key role in enhancing service quality
and efficiency through stewardship in ensuring optimal
use of resources. With colleagues' relentless efforts over
the past three years, over 100 action items have been
implemented in response to recommendations of the Steering
Committee on Review of the HA to drive for improvements
in HA's management and organisation structure; resource
management; staff management; cost effectiveness and
service management; and overall management and control to
meet future challenges. The implementation was completed
with a final report submitted to the Secretary for Food and
Health in October 2018.

RESEHEREERBZXF+2EE -
BT 2018-19 F B K IR 1 0¥ B8
ERNEELER SLU=FRA—FHHKN
RYIESE BN BE - BRMIREE B P B SRR
RE D FIEERBIEMEMNRBTE - I
Sho FERBFEIIAE 100 BTBLA
EEFENBEEEAT WMRABERERE
BRENAEZE - RREFHBERRE
MAE  BERAMNBERE - BMAEEE
IRERE > BEATEERE(LEEINR
AR#5

BRERREEEFKTNEBE LRI E

PRERAG  BRERMSEM  RE
FEUR - BREASERE=ZFHNAE
BH BARERTEBERBEZESN
B ORISR EREE MR
B EREE  AFEE » ARSI
BEE LKBEEENEES #TH
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| am grateful to all members of the HA Board, Regional
Advisory Committees and Hospital Governing Committees,
as well as co-opted members of the functional committees
for their staunch support and guidance along the years. We
welcome Mr Henry Fan Hung-ling, Mr Ambrose Ho, Mr Quinton
Lam Chun-ki, Prof Lau Chak-sing, Prof David Shum Ho-keung
and Prof Agnes Tiwari Fung-yee. Their wisdom and experience
would bring fresh impetus to HA in mapping future plans.
Meanwhile, we thank the outgoing members Mr William Chan
Fu-keung, Mr Ho Wing-yin, Mr Lester Garson Huang, Dr Kam
Pok-man, Prof Diana Lee Tze-fan, Prof Raymond Liang Hin-
suen, Mr Wong Kwai-huen and Prof Maurice Yap Keng-hung, who
rendered invaluable contribution to HA with vision and foresight
not only for the benefit of HA but also for the entire society.

| also wish to express my sincere gratitude to various
stakeholders, including members of the Legislative Council,
District Councils, patient groups, and volunteers for their
wholehearted support. High quality medical services could
not be achieved without diligent efforts of our healthcare
professionals and supporting teams. In this respect, | thank
every member of HA from the bottom of my heart for their
professionalism and unfailing commitment in serving the
community. | am confident that HA will, with concerted efforts,
continue to excel in the provision of patient-centered care and
safeguard the wellbeing of our community.

John Leong Chi-yan
Chairman
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Hospital Authority (HA) has been making continuous effort, since its inception,
in providing reliable and affordable healthcare services to the people of Hong
Kong. The way ahead is a long and arduous one, coupled with formidable
challenges of escalating service demand due to aging population, prevalence of
chronic diseases, and potential threat posed by communicable diseases. Intense
pressure on limited public healthcare resources and manpower continues to
build up, yet our determination in safeguarding health of the community remains
robust as ever.
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Manpower shortage is always our prime concern. Despite
increasing workload, our frontline colleagues have remained
steadfast and committed to delivering quality patient care.
My heartfelt thanks go to each and every HA colleague. We
have stepped up efforts on various fronts to attract and retain
staff, so as to gradually relieve stress of the frontline in public
hospitals. It is encouraging that the number of local medical
graduates has increased to 420 in 2018, with steady numbers
anticipated in the coming years. Meanwhile, recruitment of non-
locally trained doctors with limited registration will continue to
recruit additional hands. We are also very pleased to note that
the number of nurse graduates recruited by HA is on the rise,
particularly in the past two years. To strengthen coordinated
efforts in enhancing the workforce capacity, HA has set up a
Locum Office since December 2018 to enhance flexibility and
efficiency in attracting and recruiting more part-time doctors
and nurses. Additional recurrent funding of $700 million
from the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR)
Government further strengthens healthcare manpower training
and retention, which in turn boosts staff morale.
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Hardware upgrade is pivotal to meeting escalating service
demand, and improved infrastructure and facilities will
contribute to augmenting service capacity. The first 10-year
Hospital Development Plan is in full swing, and construction
or foundation works have commenced in 2018-19 for the
new acute hospital in Kai Tak Development Area; Phase 1
redevelopment of Queen Mary Hospital; and decanting building
for Phase 2 Stage 1 redevelopment of Prince of Wales Hospital;
as well as preparatory works for Phase 1 redevelopment
of Grantham Hospital and Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital.
Also, construction works for Phase one redevelopment of
Kwai Chung Hospital were completed; Tin Shui Wai Hospital
commenced 24-hour Accident & Emergency (A&E) and
inpatient services in November 2018; and Hong Kong Children's
Hospital started phased operation in specialist outpatient,
radiology, pharmacy and pathology services in December 2018
followed by inpatient service by phases in March 2019.

We are sincerely thankful to the HKSAR Government's

commitment of $270 hillion in supporting the second 10-
year Hospital Development Plan, which will involve a total
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of 19 projects to deliver some 9 000 additional hospital beds
and other medical facilities. Planning and preparatory work is
underway.

Well-developed primary care is the pillar of a sustainable
healthcare system, through which more focus on disease
prevention and management of one's own health could reduce
demand for specialist services and unnecessary hospitalisation.
HA is proactively working along the HKSAR Government's
direction to promote primary care services. In 2018-19, HA
provided 55 000 additional General Qutpatient Clinic quotas
to alleviate pressure on A&E services, and also extended
the General Outpatient Clinic Public-Private Partnership
Programme to all 18 districts in the territory to benefit more
patients.

Information technology has become indispensable in almost
all aspects of everyday life. HA is leveraging on various IT
innovations in modernising delivery of public healthcare
services and will continue to improve patient experience
with various enhanced IT solutions and innovations. We are
launching “Smart Hospital" initiatives in phases. They include
Queue Management System to enhance the arrangement of
out-patient consultation in clinics and hospitals; and smart
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payment kiosks to bring greater convenience to patients in
registration and payment. We are also actively preparing
the "HA Go" for user trial in mid-2019, which is a new one-
stop mohile app to be launched in phases for empowering
patients to manage their appointments in public hospitals and
healthcare at fingertips.

Echoing the HKSAR Government's strategy in the Hong Kong
Smart City Blueprint, HA will consolidate and enhance its data
analytics systems to standardise data collection work. The HA
Data Sharing Portal launched in March 2019 provides public
access to HA's major statistics. The HA Data Collaboration Lab
was also set up to facilitate collaboration with external parties
and contribute to clinical research projects and healthcare
innovation on a secured platform.

Senior appointments in HA hospitals during the year included, in
chronology, Dr Simon Tang Yiu-hang as Cluster Chief Executive
(CCE) (New Territories West) and Hospital Chief Executive
(HCE) of Tuen Mun Hospital; Dr David Sun Tin-fung as HCE of
North District Hospital; Dr Theresa Li as CCE (Hong Kong West)
and HCE of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital; Dr
Luk Che-chung as CCE (Hong Kong East) and HCE of Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital, St John Hospital and Wong
Chuk Hang Hospital; Dr Chong Yee-hung as HCE of Our Lady of
Maryknoll Hospital in addition to his role as HCE of Hong Kong
Buddhist Hospital and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai

TENERRFL - KM ILERBEL
PABHEERMN—HIARBEMAER "HA
Go, ' BAKMN 2019 FRHT 2
BRERATZAEREREEMMAELR
VERNWED RN EREE

5 BEREBEAREBNREEE
WHAIRE - BEMNEFBEIITRSE
LUER—BURWET(F - 2019 & 3 AL
VHEERZEYE  RARAEEERI
ITEMAER - BMATRILY "BERH
BRERE , ZRZRENBEFEERNR
BRBEEETREED T EEZEAK
IR E ReEEFAIR -

FANBEAEEEZFFEESBER
A AR R A BB R R E K BrIE R
BHE  AREBEHELEERTER
E FREBLAHAEESAERB MR
E BEBRLEEERTHBE ES
REITHIEERBEHRBREENREL
BRABIRER  RNBREEMTNE
RUTBRE  BEGABRARE= &
RMERTHREAREEERIESE
GATBRE  BREBEHLEEEHERR
NREBRTEMAE  DUNRREEEH

Chief Executive's Report 7 B4 £ B




Sin Hospital; Dr Christina Maw as HCE of Grantham Hospital
and Tung Wah Hospital; as well as Dr Desmond Nguyen as HCE
of Kwai Chung Hospital. At the Head Office, Dr Tony Ko Pat-sing
served as Director (Cluster Services) in April 2018 and Dr Pang
Fei-chau Head of Human Resources in October 2018.

Over the past 12 years in serving in HA, it has been my great
privilege to work together with the most professional and
dedicated team of healthcare professionals and supporting
staff of HA. With unreserved support from the community as
a whole, | am confident that the HA family will rise above any
challenges with persistent commitment and determination.

A

PY Leung
Chief Executive
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The General Outpatient Clinic Public-Private
Partnership Programme was rolled out to cover all
18 districts in the territory, offering convenience
for patients seeking primary healthcare services.

BERrelER (BER) EANMAZALEWFET
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The Hospital Authority (HA) published a pictorial
book, which is a collection of heart-warming
stories written by HA staff. These real stories
enable the public to understand more on patient-
staff rapports at public hospital frontline.
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(PYNEH) kicked off a series of activities to
celebrate its 25" Anniversary to build rapport with
staff and the community.
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HA and Macao Health Bureau renewed a five-
year collaboration agreement to strengthen
exchange and collaboration in various aspects
of healthcare. In January 2019, both parties
renewed a Memorandum of Agreement on
opening up the Hong Kong Bone Marrow Donor
Registry to Macao citizens, benefiting patients
of both Hong Kong and Macao.
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Kowloon Hospital launched a new mobile app
Kowloon Hospital Guide to provide location guide
of hospital premises and facilities as well as
service information to visitors.
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HA launched a Patient Experience Survey at 26
Specialist Outpatient Clinics to gauge patients’
feedback on specialist outpatient services for
continuous quality improvement.
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The first Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy Centre in
HA commenced service at PYNEH, providing
treatment for emergency cases like carbon
monoxide poisoning and decompression illness, as
well as elective cases like diabetes and delayed
radiation injuries.
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital set up an Eye Tissue
Donor Memorial Garden to recognise and honour
the selflessness of eye donors and their families,
as well as to raise public awareness about organ
donation.
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The opening ceremony of Queen Elizabeth
Hospital Jockey Club Cancer Research
Laboratory was held to mark the completion of
the redevelopment project supported by HKS$54.7
million donation from the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust. Equipped with a large
Cancer Biobank and specialised cancer research
equipment with advanced technologies, the
redeveloped laboratory improves cancer diagnosis
and treatment outcomes.
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Supported by HKS4.1 million donated by The
Walt Disney Company, the Hong Kong Children's
Hospital (HKCH) launched "Dress Well" project
for the design and production of custom-designed
patient clothing, aiming to improve experience of
sick kids during their hospital stay.
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Phase | of the redevelopment project of Queen
Mary Hospital commenced. The site of three
blocks, including Clinical Pathology Building,
University Pathology Building and Housemen
Quarters, was formally handed over to the
contractors for demolishment and reconstruction
of a new block.
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North Lantau Hospital strengthened services
with the commencement of Specialist Outpatient
services in Urology as well as Paediatrics and
Adolescent Medicine.
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HA established Locum Recruitment Office to
enhance flexibility and efficiency in recruiting
doctors and nurses to provide part-time services in
public hospitals in order to strengthen healthcare
manpower.
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Celebrating its 45" Anniversary, United Christian
Hospital organised a series of activities to
appreciate the unwavering support of staff and
various stakeholders over the years.
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital commenced 24-hour Accident
& Emergency service and inpatient services to
cater for service demand of the community.
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New Territories East Cluster launched a new
mabile app Hip Fracture, providing information on
hip fracture care, as well as reminder and record
of exercises. The app facilitates physiotherapists
in monitoring status of training of patients.
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The pilot programme on Drug Refill Services,
“E-Fill", rolled out to PYNEH to enhance medication
safety. Patients can collect drugs in phases to avoid
overstocking.
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In response to upsurge in service demand
during winter surge, HA put forward various
measures to alleviate the pressure of frontline
staff. They included the implementation of one-off
adjustment of the rate of Special Honorarium
Scheme allowance by 10% increase during
.28 January 2019 to 31 May 2019 to encourage
staff participation and augment the manpower
resources.
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Subsequent to the provision of specialist
outpatient service, pathology, radiology and
pharmacy services since December 2018,
HKCH commenced inpatient services by phases
since March 2019, beginning with paediatric
haematology and oncology ward, paediatric
intensive care unit and operating theatres.
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Means test mechanism of Samaritan Fund and
Community Care Fund Medical Assistance
Programme implemented enhancement measures
to alleviate financial burden of patients on medical
expenses. The measures include modifying
the calculation of Annual Disposable Financial
Resources for drug subsidy applications, and
refining the definition of “household” adopted in
financial assessment.
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CHAPTER 5 $4E

Engagement and Teamwork
RENE BRED

The Hospital Authority (HA) Head Office convenes regular meetings with staff
representatives of all six Staff Group Consultative Committees and a Central
Consultative Committee to collect views on prevailing policies as well as new
initiatives, facilitating two-way communication between the management and
frontline staff.
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Multi-pronged approach has been adopted for the frontline to
express their opinions. Other than regular face-to-face forums
conducted during hospital visits of the HA Chief Executive and
HA Board Members, frontline staff could raise concerns and
suggestions through various means, such as online staff letter
box. At cluster and hospital levels, Cluster Chief Executives
and Hospital Chief Executives exchanged views with frontline
staff through regular meetings, newsletters, blog, online staff
letterbox and staff hotline.

Besides the HA staff newsletter HASLink, the HR App provides
timely information to all staff in the organisation. The HR App
has recorded over 64 000 downloads as at 31 March 2019 after
its launch in 2016. During the year, the app was upgraded with
new modules of “electronic staff welfare card" and enhanced
function of “Provident Fund / Mandatory Provident Fund".
The enhanced module of mabile Staff Health Record (mSHR)
comes with a built-in reminder, which helps reduce default rate
and thus enables staff clinics to better manage the quotas.
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Safeguarding occupational safety and health (OSH) always
remains high on HA's priority. The HA OSH Committee,
chaired by Head of Human Resources and comprises all
chairmen of Cluster OSH Committees, steers the direction and
policies of OSH adopted in HA. Measures have been taken to
strengthen overall management of OSH in accordance with
the consultancy review of OSH, including the recruitment of an
occupational hygiene specialist with professional qualification
at the Head Office level to formulate overall strategy and
provide expertise supervision on OSH matters.

In line with the corporate strategy of staff survey, we
commenced preparatory work during the year for launching the
Focused Staff Survey (FSS). Targeted at registered nurses and
enrolled nurses, the FSS was rolled out in May 2019 to gauge
in-depth views on concerns expressed by colleagues in the
corporate-wide staff survey conducted in 2016.

HA organised a wide variety of recreational and sports activities
throughout the year to promote a balanced and healthy
lifestyle. Staff and their family members were welcome to
participate in HA Family Day and HA Family Night, as well as
some of the sports activities like HA New Year Run and Sports
Meet. Over the years, the HA New Year Run continued to be one
of the most popular events. In March 2019, the run recorded
an enrollment of over 4 700 participants and raised over
$1.5 million for HA Charitable Foundation to benefit patient
services.

The Young Achiever Award introduced since 2018 recognises
outstanding performance of the younger generation in HA.
In the 2019 Qutstanding Staff and Teams Award and Young
Achievers Award, a total of 70 nominations were received, from
which 14 young achievers were selected, five staff and five
teams won the Outstanding Staff and Teams Awards. Another
five staff and six teams received Merit Awards.
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Outstanding Teams:

Cardiology Team (Cardiac Catheterisation Laboratory)
Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

HKEC Environmental Management Team
Hong Kong East Cluster

Paediatric Palliative Care Team
Tuen Mun Hospital (New Territories West Cluster)

Palliative Care Non-Cancer (PCNC) Service for Advanced
Pulmonary Diseases
Haven of Hope Hospital (Kowloon East Cluster)

Stroke Team
Prince of Wales Hospital (New Territories East Cluster)

Merit Teams:

Baby Friendly Hospital Initiative Team
Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

KEC Pain Management Centre
United Christian Hospital (Kowloon East Cluster)

NTEC Restraint Free Troops
New Territories East Cluster

NTEC Urology Team

Prince of Wales Hospital/ Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole
Hospital/ North District Hospital

(New Territories East Cluster)

Princess Margaret Hospital Green Team
Princess Margaret Hospital (Kowloon West Cluster)

Stroke Early Supported Discharge Home Rehabilitation
Team
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)
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CHAPTER 6 #7&

Head Office and
Cluster Reports

EF HHHI --1,E

The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public
healthcare services to the people of Hong
Kong through its Head Office and seven
hospital clusters.

[
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Head Office and Cluster Reports present
an overview of the performance of HA Head
Office and Clusters under five corporate
strategic goals, as well as achievements in
contributing to a friendly environment.
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HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and directions. It plays a strategic
role in leading corporate development and supporting hospital clusters through
interactive collaboration of seven divisions, namely Cluster Services, Corporate
Services, Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology and Health
Informatics, Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning. HAHO initiated around
160 programme targets in 2018-19 under the five strategic goals outlined in the
HA Annual Plan.
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With tremendous efforts in the past year, HA optimised medical
service planning in promoting more integrated and seamless
care through cluster-based or network-based approaches.

The measures included cross-cluster collaboration on Robotic B F 1l » WA KX 7E %7 R gk 32 — 1@ LR 75 R
Assisted Surgery, as well as enhanced vascular surgery  OARERMNMNEFHER  RESNOE

service through setting up of a centre-based vascular surgery
network in the New Territories to support emergency vascular
surgery. Moreover, in collaboration with Department of Health,
HA set up a Clinical Working Group to formulate strategies
for effective control of viral hepatitis and coordinated disease
prevention measures.

We also leveraged on cluster-based approach to integrate
medical systems and facilities, with a view to reinforcing
clinical supporting services. The first phase development
of HA Trauma Database was commenced, which facilitated
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data interface with existing HA systems and the generation of
standardised reports for better service monitoring. Besides,
with the installation of an electronic platform in Hong Kong
West Cluster and image viewers in the consultation rooms at
Grantham Hospital, ophthalmic images can be uploaded to
the Electronic Patient Record (ePR) system, facilitating image
sharing between HA hospitals and private healthcare providers.

More options for patient care enhanced service accessibility
and efficiency. The tripartite Chinese Medicine Centres for
Training and Research continued to provide disease-based
Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine Pilot Programme for
eligible HA inpatients in designated hospitals. Phase 3 of the
Pilot Programme commenced in April 2018, with extended
coverage to an additional disease area, i.e. Shoulder and Neck
Pain, under the Orthopaedics & Traumatology Department of
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital, benefitting more
patients. To improve obstetric care, we piloted the provision of
maternal special care beds in the labour ward, and training in
high-risk pregnancy care to nursing staff.

HA strives to provide patients with ongoing care and support
in the community with closer collaborations with community
partners. We continued to strengthen the Community Geriatric
Assessment Team support for terminally ill patients living in
Residential Care Homes for the Elderly. The pilot programme
of Dementia Community Support Scheme has been extended
to 41 District Elderly Community Centres by phases starting
from February 2019 to support patients with mild to moderate
dementia. On mental health services, on-going efforts were
made in clusters to recruit persons recovered from mental
illness to provide peer support for patients with mental illness
in the community. We also continued the Student Mental
Health Support Pilot Scheme, in collaboration with the Food
and Health Bureau, Education Bureau and Social Welfare
Department, to support students with mental health needs.

Robust clinical risk management is crucial to safeguarding
patient safety. To bolster infection control, HA implemented
phase-in measures to combat antimicrobial resistance, which
included enhancing laboratory support to facilitate the Antibiotic
Stewardship Programme and infection control surveillance,
introducing electronic platform to reinforce monitoring of infection
control programmes, and strengthening environmental hygiene.

The scope of HA Drug Formulary was widened to cover more
drugs with accumulated scientific evidence on clinical efficacy.
Two self-financed drugs with safety net coverage were
repositioned as special drugs in the HA Drug Formulary, while
the therapeutic applications of six special drug classes were
expanded for management of chronic obstructive pulmonary
disease, diabetes mellitus as well as inflammatory, oncological,
cardiovascular and infectious diseases.
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Modernised technology was timely adopted in public hospitals
in order to keep up with contemporary standards of medical
care. HA continued to modernise its genetic testing service
by adopting Sensitive Analysis of Foetal DNA for Trisomy 21
testing as the second tier screening test for Down syndrome
and developing other centralised DNA tests using Next
Generation Sequencing, while screening test for Inborn Errors
of Metabolism for newborns in public hospitals was extended
to Tuen Mun Hospital. HA also standardised the workflow
of radiology image acquisition by connecting the planning
warkstations of its six oncology centres to central radiology
image infrastructure. Through Government funding support to
the Capital Block Vote and Designated Funds of HA, medical
equipment items were added or replaced in public hospitals at
the total cost of approximately $808 million to ensure safety
standard.

Other information technology-based solutions in support of
clinical works included the development of the 4™ generation
of Clinical Management System and clinical mobile apps, as
well as the extension of the Inpatient Medication Order Entry
system to more hospitals. Electronic bed panel is being piloted,
while the development of vital signs tracking and hospital
navigation app is underway. Besides, the "Smart Hospital
Project” has commenced in phases, including the Queue
Management System and smart payment kiosks as quick wins,
with an aim to bring greater convenience to patients through
mobile devices and new technology. HA Go, a new one-stop mobile
app for empowering patients to manage their appointments in
public hospitals and healthcare at fingertips, is under development
for trial run in mid-2018.

Being the technical agency of the Electronic Health Record
Sharing System (eHRSS), HA continued to support the on-going
operation of eHRSS, as well as the second phase development
of new features. Technical services were also provided to
support various initiatives of the Department of Health including
the Elderly Healthcare Voucher Scheme, Vaccination Subsidy
Schemes, Primary Care Directory System, Communicable
Disease Information System, Laboratory Information System,
Colorectal Cancer Screening Programme System, Pilot Public-
Private Partnership Programme on Smoking Cessation, as well
as the development and implementation of electronic platform
for Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities.

HA treasures partnership with patients and their views on
public hospital services. We conducted a sharing forum with
representatives from the Patient Advisory Committee, patient
groups and patient resource centres (PRCs) to exchange
views on the service model of PRCs. The 6" batch of Patient
Partnership in Action training programme was also conducted
to engage and empower patient representatives.
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With an aim to strengthen interaction with the public, web-based
platforms and social media including HA Facebook page and
YouTube Channel were adopted for information dissemination
to the public. HA continued to adopt a proactive approach
to maintain rapport and communicate with the media and
community stakeholders to keep them abreast of latest
developments in HA policies and services by means of media
activities; press releases; articles to various media platforms;
responses to media and community enquiries; meetings with
Legislative Councillors, community stakeholders, and District
Council as well as related engagement activities.

Strategic goal.:
Optimise demand management

HA adopted a multi-faceted approach to optimise demand
management. In 2018-19, capacity of priority services was
increased, such as provision of around 55 000 additional
service quotas of general outpatient clinics (GOPCs). In order to
further alleviate the work pressure of Accident and Emergency
(A&E) Departments, support sessions were provided in all 18
A&E Departments to handle Triage IV (semi-urgent) and Triage
V (non-urgent) cases.

Efforts were made in building up service capacity for outpatient
services in response to demand from the community. Additional
SOPC consultation sessions with enhanced multi-disciplinary
team support for patients with common mental disorder were
added. To enhance Diabetes Mellitus (DM) service in non-DM
specialist outpatient clinic (SOPC), Targeted Active Intervention
programme was implemented in SOPCs at Kowloon East
Cluster, Kowloon West Cluster and New Territories East
Cluster to provide risk assessment, treatment intensification
and empowerment to patients with DM by a multi-disciplinary
team comprised nurses and allied health professionals.
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In strengthening the provision of surgical services, HA
established another joint replacement centre at Tseung Kwan
O Hospital to raise the capacity for joint replacement surgery.
We also enhanced surgical services for acute geriatric fragility
fracture patients by adding a total of ten Operating Theatre
sessions per week of day-time trauma list at Tseung Kwan O
Hospital, Prince of Wales Hospital and North District Hospital.
On diagnostic imaging services, breast imaging service was
improved with increased service capacity of mammogram.
Additional Optical Coherence Tomography scans and Visual
Field tests for glaucoma patients were also performed.

The capacity of pharmacy service was also augmented,
including the provision of 24-hour pharmacy services at
Ruttonjee Hospital. The pilot programme on drug refill services -
“E-Fill" - was further rolled out to Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital, with a view to reducing risks of excess drug
storage and enhancing medication safety. Oncology clinical
pharmacy services were strengthened by providing 100%
clinical screening of chemotherapy prescriptions at designated
hospitals, thereby promoting the quality and safety of
medication use for oncology patients.

We launched measures to enhance time-critical care for
patients with life-threatening conditions. 24-hour intravenous
stroke thrombolysis service was extended to New Territories
East Cluster and New Territories West Cluster. Patients can
receive early treatment and proper diagnosis, thus reducing
disability. In the area of renal services, the provision of
haemodialysis service was expanded in hospitals, while the
Haemodialysis Public-Private Partnership Programme (PPP)
continued.

The capacity of PPP Programmes were expanded to better
cope with rising service pressure, including the Colon
Assessment PPP, as well as the Infirmary Services PPP Pilot
Programme which was piloted at Wong Chuk Hang Hospital.
The GOPC PPP was rolled out to all 18 districts in the
territory, offering convenience for patients seeking primary
healthcare services.
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Strategic goal.:
Attract and retain staff

A series of measures were unveiled to attract, motivate and
retain well-qualified staff. More than 570 doctors, 2 420 nurses
and 620 allied health professionals were recruited in the year.
As at March 2019, there were nine non-local doctors working
under Limited Registration (LR) in public hospitals. With the
passing of the Medical Registration (Amendment) Bill at the
Legislative Council in 2018, the period of LR was extended
from not exceeding one year to not exceeding three years.
Taking the opportunity, arrangements of the LR scheme had
been reviewed and strengthened, with a view to recruiting more
medical workforce.

More flexible employment arrangement can help build up
workforce and alleviate the workload pressure of frontline
staff. HA set up a Locum Office to coordinate the recruitment
of part-time doctors and nurses to provide services in public
hospitals. Through the continuation of the Special Retired
and Rehire Scheme, suitable retired healthcare workers were
re-employed to serve at public hospitals and help transfer
knowledge to staff.

In order to boost staff morale and retain meritorious doctors,
additional promotion opportunities were provided through
the centrally coordinated additional Associate Consultant
promotion mechanism. We also enhanced retention of care-
related supporting staff in support of clinical services, which
included Patient Care Assistant lllA of inpatient services on
24 hours shift, Operation Assistant llIB in inpatient services,
and Executive Assistant IlIA (Ward), by improving their career
progression and remuneration.
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HA is committed to safeguarding the safety and health of staff,
through fostering a safe and secure working environment.
Adequate Level C Personal Protective Equipment and
Emergency Medical Team uniform were provided to reinforce
emergency preparedness of staff in A&E Departments.

With effect from December 2018, HA has introduced a
Disciplinary Protection Insurance policy to cover eligible
clinical and non-clinical professionals in HA. It aims to provide
legal support to staff involved in disciplinary inquiry made
or commenced in Hong Kong and conducted by professional
bodies empowered to regulate their respective professions,
arising from or in connection with the performance of duties
assigned by HA or the performance of the business of HA.
Insurance coverage for HA staff providing overseas emergency
assistance under the HKSAR Government's contingency plan of
Emergency Response Operations Outside the Hong Kong SAR
was also enhanced.

We are mindful of staff's mental well-being. Stress and burnout
symptoms of staff could be identified earlier with the help
of mohile psychological wellness screening services under
the electronic psychological services pilot programme. To
strengthen psychological support to staff involved in Sentinel
Event or Serious Untoward Events, a psycho-therapeutic
kit was developed to promote self-care, and training for
supervisors was conducted.
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Strategic goal:
Enhance staff training and development

Training of healthcare professionals is of paramount
importance to sustaining the development of Hong Kong
healthcare system. Territory-wide simulation training
programmes, including Crew Resource Management training,
were developed for doctors and nurses in major specialties to
enhance career development opportunities and professional
capabilities. Simulation training programmes were also
conducted for newly qualified Registered Nurses undergoing
Preceptorship Programme, of which Advanced Practice Nurses
were recruited as part-time preceptors. There were overseas
training scholarships for doctors, nurses and allied health staff,
and training subsidies were offered to healthcare professionals
who participated in recognised service-related programmes.
Besides, some Enrolled Nurses were fully sponsored to
undertake the clinical practicum of the conversion programme
to attain qualification of Registered Nurses.

In view of the lack of local training for podiatrists and
orthoptists, overseas training scholarship was offered to six
selected podiatry students and three selected orthoptics
students in the past year to undertake a three-year degree
course in the related disciplines in the United Kingdom.
Midwifery training programmes were also provided to meet
growing demand for maternity services in public hospitals.

With the recurrent $183.5 million Government designated
training fund in place, various training programmes were rolled
out in 2018-19 for both clinical and non-clinical staff to address
service development, professional development and operational
needs. Generic competencies training series in support of grade-
specific training curriculums were continued to strengthen
management capabilities of professional staff at different levels.

The online curriculum Healthcare Services Management
Training was cascaded to all professional staff to enable
acquisition of knowledge of HA and healthcare management.
Applied mediation skills training was provided to enhance
staff's competency in conflict resolution and complaint
management. The Executive Partnership Programme targeted
middle managers was continued to strengthen their skills in
handling major incidents and emergency response.
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Strategic goal.:
Drive accountable and efficient use of
financial resources

The HKSAR Government continued strong support for HA to
maintain its role as the cornerstone of Hong Kong's healthcare
system and safety net for all. In 2018-19, the recurrent funding
to HA amounted to $64.3 billion, which was allocated according
to the triennium funding arrangement as announced in Chief
Executive's 2017 Policy Address, and represented an increase
of $8.3 billion as compared to preceding year. Under the new
funding arrangement, recurrent subvention to HA would be
progressively increased on a triennium basis with respect to
population growth and demographic changes, which enables
HA to address the service demands arising from growing and
ageing population in a more effective and sustainable manner.

Resources of HA were properly deployed to support existing
services, as well as enhancement measures and initiatives
stipulated in the HA Annual Plan, which was formulated by
gathering inputs from frontline colleagues, patient advisory
groups and hospital management. Priority was given to
initiatives which aimed to improve clinical effectiveness and
aligned with the strategic directions outlined in HA Strategic
Plan, and those which helped address pressure areas, while
taking into account prevailing constraints in manpower and
hospital facility situations for capacity growth.

In 2018-19, HA's expenditure amounted to $69.7 hillion,
representing an 8.6% increase over last year. While an
underspending of $1.4 hillion was recorded in the same year, it
was mainly attributable to unfilled vacancies due to manpower
shortage. Such underspending has been transferred to the
Revenue Reserve for longer term financial planning. The
Revenue Reserve will be utilised for meeting the financial
requirement when manpower supply improves in the future.

In addressing the financial challenge arising from the
escalating service demand owing to ageing population, it
was also mentioned in the 2019-20 Budget that the HKSAR
Government will further substantiate its support by setting
aside $10 hillion to set up a public healthcare stabilisation
fund to provide contingency resource backup for HA. We will
continue to adopt prudent measures to ensure public resources
are properly used.
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Contributing to a green environment

HA is committed to foster environmental sustainability through
various energy saving and waste reduction initiatives in daily
operation.

In 2018-19, HA commenced the second phase of improvement
project to gradually replace aged air-cooled air-conditioning
chillers with high efficacy variable-speed-drive air-cooled
chillers in various hospitals and institutions. HA also launched
the second phase of lighting retrofitting projects with
installation of intelligent LED luminaires, which provided real-
time data for the monitoring of energy performance. Besides,
a wide range of energy efficient features and renewable
energy technologies were applied in new hospital construction
projects. By joining the Feed-in Tariff Scheme, hospitals
equipped with the solar photovoltaic systems enjoyed a greener
source of energy and electricity bill rebate.

With the concerted efforts of all hospital clusters, HA has
joined the "4Ts Charter" initiated by the HKSAR Government
to formulate energy saving plans with targets and timeline. A
number of public hospitals and institutions have also joined the
Energy Saving Charter for three consecutive years in support
of the HKSAR Government's appeal to combat climate change.

Participation of hospitals in various waste reduction and
recycling programmes continued in support of environmental
protection. HA also strived to minimise food waste disposal
by promoting waste reduction at source, and adoption of
environmentally friendly food waste decomposers. Collected
food waste was also delivered to the organic resources
recovery centre for turning it into energy.
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HONG KONG EAST CLUSTER (HKEC)
EERERBE(EEREN)

Fast growing and higher than average ageing population, coupled with manpower shortage, poses mounting demand on healthcare service and

become stringent challenges to HKEC.

In 2018-19, HKEC actively strengthened service capacity. Major initiatives included the implementation of 24-hour pharmacy services at
Ruttonjee Hospital, installation of a second Magnetic Resonance Imaging machine and addition of acute beds at PYNEH. HKEC also introduced
new technology to optimise service quality. The first Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy Centre in HA commenced service at PYNEH in September
2018, providing novel treatment modality for patients in life-threatening or emergency conditions to facilitate their recovery with the support of

multidisciplinary clinical teams.

Staff of HKEC were recognised for outstanding performance in the past year, including the 2018 HA Outstanding Staff Award, Young Achiever
Award and Merit Team Award. The Accident and Emergency Training Centre at RTSKH continued to receive external recognition for its exemplary

training services.

PYNEH celebrated the 25" anniversary with various staff and the
community through engagement activities, including staff and family fun
day, art exhibition, community health promotion, PYNEH Day and charity
dinner. The series of events have fostered a strong sense of belonging
amongst staff as well as connection with community partners.

HKEC embarked on formulating its Clinical Services Plan in January
2019, to map out the blueprint of service development for the cluster
in the next 10 to 15 years, as well as role delineation among cluster
hospitals to enhance collaboration. The Ambulatory Care Block at
PYNEH project has been included in HA's second 10-year Hospital
Development Plan, and will be carried out at the current Chai Wan
Laundry site upon its relocation to the proposed new HA Supporting
Services Centre in North Lantau. HKEC is committed to listening to
stakeholders' views and formulating a long-term service development
plan, so as ta cater for the needs of the community.
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CCH — Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok Z#i &% K # &k

PYNEH — Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital BBk A BB+ =5 (R ERT )
RTSKH — Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 1234 & Bh & ER B iR

SJH— St John Hospital £ME&Rz

TWEH — Tung Wah Eastern Hospital BRZEE5 5

WCHH — Wong Chuk Hang Hospital E47 5k



HONG KONG WEST CLUSTER (HKWC)
EERERLGE (ESABN)

HKWC has strived to maintain quality service. Redevelopment projects of QMH and GH not only improve hospital facilities and services, but
also mark a significant step towards enhanced partnership with Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong. Phase 1
Stage 1 of QMH redevelopment project was completed, which involved renovation of the former Senior Staff Quarters (renamed as Block T),
for the accommodation of departments and facilities originally housed at the Clinical Pathology Building, University Pathology Building
and Housemen Quarters. With these three buildings handed over to contractors, Stage 2 of the works on the construction of the New Block
commenced in October 2018 to accommodate key clinical services. Phase 1 of GH redevelopment project is now under advance planning.

Several initiatives were implemented by HKWC to improve service quality. Post-acute day rehabilitation service for discharged neurosurgical
patients of QMH and MMRC was enhanced. With generous donation from Chow Tai Fook Charity Foundation, an advanced model of Da Vinci
Robotic Surgical System was installed in QMH, which facilitated maore precise surgical maneuver and maximised surgical outcomes. QMH
also conducted cross-cluster Robotic Assisted Surgery.

Additional visual field tests for glaucoma patients were performed to meet increasing demand, and service was provided to more patients
under the General Outpatient Clinic Public-Private Partnership Programme. Besides, QMH opened additional acute beds in a female
orthopaedic ward, and set up a hospital dermatology unit to enhance specialty service support for inpatients.

HKWC values staff training and development. Under the Preceptorship Scheme for junior nurses, additional Advanced Practice Nurses were
recruited as part-time preceptors. Extra places were added for clinical staff and security staff on formal resuscitation training and first aid
training respectively.
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GH — Grantham Hospital & &350k

MMRC — MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre Z32& 18R

QMH — Queen Mary Hospital 3EEEEERR

DKCH — The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay A ZRAREAR X A REE R
TYH—Tsan Yuk Hospital ‘2B %z

FYKH — Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital 5% = /Ese e
TWH — Tung Wah Hospital 582525

Number of general outpatient clinics Z @RI FI2 2 FTE B
Throughput BRF &

Number of hospital beds B&BRsm R 21 B
Patient discharges* HBm A2 E*

Total ASE attendances 2AEE BB AR

*Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths fEFz & B BB A R AKX RIET A

NEW TERRITORIES WEST CLUSTER (NTWC)
AR (AN )

To cope with increasing service demand in various specialties due to
growing population in Tuen Mun and Yuen Long districts, NTWC has
strived to expand service capacity, and enhance staff training to ensure
quality medical services.

In response to the demand for emergency and inpatient services of
Tin Shui Wai residents, TSWH has since November 2018 provided
24-hour Accident and Emergency (A&E) services and commenced
inpatient service, offering convenience to the community, and effectively
alleviating the service demand pressure of A&Es and inpatient wards of
TMH and POH.

The expansion of acute services resulted in greater demand for other
medical services. To shorten waiting time for patients, additional
quotas were provided for various services, which included increased
General Outpatient Clinic services quotas, as well as additional hospital
haemodialysis places for patients with end-stage renal disease.
Additional new case Specialist Qutpatient Clinic attendances for adult
patients with common mental disorder, and additional optical coherence
tomography scans and visual field tests for glaucoma patients were
also provided. Rehabilitation care was improved with extended service
coverage to weekends and public holidays for patients with lower limb
fracture and arthroplasty at POH. The continuous enhancement of MRI
service at POH not only benefited residents of Yuen Long area, but also
improved the overall quality of MRI service in NTWC.

Expected to be completed by 2021, the main construction works of
the TMH Operating Theatre Block Extension Project is underway, and
will provide more clinical space to cope with service demand upon its
completion.
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CPH— Castle Peak Hospital & LI%&R%
POH — Pok Oi Hospital t8&E 5z

SLH — Siu Lam Hospital /J\V&E&fz
TSWH — Tin Shui Wai Hospital K7kEI%2k5z
TMH — Tuen Mun Hospital FEPIZ&R%

NEW TERRITORIES EAST CLUSTER (NTEC)
MARBERBE (MARDE)

To address rising service demand arising from growing and ageing population, access block issues and prolonged waiting time, NTEC has
put in tremendous efforts in alleviating the demand pressure with additional hospital beds in different wards, as well as increased service
capacity of operating theatre, outpatient attendance and other ancillary services.

Proactive efforts in developing more efficient service models and strengthening community services were made by NTEC to tackle the
challenges. Round-the-clock intra-venous thrombolysis service for acute ischaemic stroke patients was provided through a cluster-based
network. Besides, oncology clinical pharmacy services at PWH were enhanced by providing 100% screening of chemotherapy prescriptions.
To strengthen community services, additional hospice home visits for patients with advanced progressive diseases, and additional
Community Geriatric Assessment Team outreach attendances for terminally ill patients living in Residential Care Homes for the Elderly
were in place. On community psychiatric services, an additional peer support worker was recruited to support patients with severe mental
illness.

NTEC has strived for excellence in upholding patient safety and providing quality services. Sterile Supplies Unit of PWH was awarded “Central
Sterile Supply Department Center of Excellence Programme Award" by the Asia Pacific Society of Infection Control, in recognition of its quality
disinfection and sterilisation services, being the first hospital in Hong Kong receiving this award. The internet websites of AHNH, NDH, PWH and TPH
were awarded the “Triple Gold Award" under “Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme 2018-19" organised by the Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited, and co-organised by the Office of Government Chief Information Officer. The mobile app PWH easyGO launched by PWH also
waon the “Triple Gold Award" under Mobile App Stream for its initiative to cater for the needs of different groups in the society.
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AHNH — Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital ## &8 K a4 s 34T = 5
BBH— Bradbury Hospice FEI2E&E

SCH— Cheshire Home, Shatin > HZK#ER

NDH — North District Hospital JtEEEERz
PWH — Prince of Wales Hospital BB £ 5%
SH— Shatin Hospital 7 FE&R

TPH — Tai Po Hospital Ai#ZRz




KOWLOON WEST CLUSTER (KWC)
NERERBE (LEMER)

KWC has been serving the biggest population among all clusters in HA. Facing ever escalating service pressure caused by growing and
ageing population, KWC implemented a number of initiatives to optimise its service capacity. Additional hospital beds were opened in various
hospitals of KWC, which included emergency medicine and extended care beds in NLTH; day beds, acute beds and Cardiac Care Unit beds in
CMC; as well as acute beds in PMH.

Public access to outpatient services of KWC was enhanced with the addition of General Outpatient Clinic quotas. Besides, urology specialist
outpatient services were established at YCH and NLTH, while paediatric specialist outpatient service was commenced in NLTH.

KWC has allocated resources to improve and expand various clinical services. Capacity of Cardiac Catheterisation Laboratory for
percutaneous coronary intervention in PMH and CMC was increased, while day surgery service in CMC was strengthened with relocation of
the pre-operative assessment clinic to the Day Surgery Centre, and also additional pre-operative assessment sessions. Besides, sessions
were opened for colonoscopy and Oesophago-gastro-
duodenoscopy procedures at NLTH. Palliative care service
was also enhanced by setting up a multi-disciplinary
palliative care consultative team. Rehabilitation service was
extended to cover weekends and public holidays for patients
with lower limb fracture and arthroplasty at CMC with the
provision of additional physiotherapy attendances.

Staff training and development is one of the key focus areas
of KWC. We continued to recruit additional Advanced Practice
Nurses as part-time clinical preceptors to support junior
nurses. Additional training places of formal resuscitation for
clinical staff were provided.

The KWC Clinical Services Plan was published in the first
quarter of 2019, providing an overarching strategy to guide
the future development of clinical services in KWC.
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HKCH — Hong Kong Children's Hospital *%E“L‘Eﬁ

HKEH — Hong Kong Eye Hospital Z&ARF 52

BTS — Hong Kong Red Cross BLoodTransfuswon Service B +FEEMARFEF L oy
KH — Kowloon Hospital J1EEEERR

KWH — Kwong Wah Hospital EHEE

OLMH — Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Z2R}E&Rz

QEH — Queen Elizabeth Hospital RFI7MEEERE ({RER )

WTSH — Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital B = & AfliEERz
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KOWLOON CENTRAL CLUSTER (KCC)
NEPERBE (NEPBE)

The respective roles of hospitals in KCC have been redefined since re-delineation of cluster boundary on 1 December 2016. HKCH has become
a new member of the cluster since December 2018 in assuming a unique role in coordinating paediatric services in public hospitals in Hong Kong.

To relieve access block and overcrowded wards during winter surge, KCC adopted new service delivery models through improving
collaboration among cluster hospitals and enhanced service capacity. The Accident & Emergency Department of QEH established a Rapid
Assessment and Treatment Team to shorten waiting time for Category Il patients, and activated early discharge planning and geriatric
assessment for elderly patients.

New beds were added to hospitals in the cluster to strengthen service capacity, including gazetted psychiatric beds at KH, medical day beds
and neurosurgery High Dependency Unit beds at QEH. Apart from new cardiac care beds, QEH set up a team with KWH to jointly provide 24-hour
Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention for eligible patients with ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction. Cancer care delivered by QEH was
strengthened with increased quotas of oncology specialist outpatient clinic and enhanced oncology clinical pharmacy service.

Various diagnostic services in the cluster are enhanced to meet service needs, including new colonoscopy sessions and oesophago-gastro-
duodenoscopy sessions for KWH and OLMH respectively. A third MRl machine was installed in QEH to raise capacity of radiology service while
bone densitometry service was enhanced to handle cross-cluster referrals.

Capital projects in KCC are gradually completed. HKBH started services of a refurbished Block D and an expanded operating theatre Sterile
Supply Unit. The new annex building at BTS Headquarters will commence service with increased capacity for autologous haematopoietic stem
cell transplant, as well as Zika virus screening for blood donors to enhance blood quality and safety territory-wide.

The redevelopment of KWH and the planning of new acute hospital in Kai Tak Development area are actively underway. Looking ahead, KCC
will continue to reorganise services, rejuvenate hospital facilities and develop modern service delivery models to meet future challenges.
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HHH — Haven of Hope Hospital B 50z
TKOH — Tseung Kwan O Hospital #$% 88f5

UCH — United Christian Hospital 230458k (MAER)

KOWLOON EAST CLUSTER (KEC)
NERBERLE (NERBE)

KEC has been facing with escalating demand and great
pressure on healthcare services due to expanding population of
Kwun Tong district as a result of Anderson Road development
project, coupled with space constraint and ageing facilities.
The cluster has therefore strived to bolster its capacity
through rationalisation and prioritisation of services.

On capacity building, KEC added acute beds and operating
theatre sessions, as well as set up a cluster-based joint
replacement centre in TKOH. Remarkable improvement of
inpatient services included 24-hour phlebotomist service
for UCH inpatient, and roll-out of Inpatient Medication
Order Entry (IPMOE) system to HHH, making KEC the first
cluster in HA with full implementation of IPMOE system.
KEC pioneered a pilot programme to improve discharge
of patients by setting up a discharge lounge for patients
requiring Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service.
Primary care services were uplifted with additional General
Qutpatient Clinic (GOPC) quotas and enhanced GOPC Public-Private Partnership Programme. UCH improved pathology services with
human papillomavirus testing and genotyping service for patients in need.

Staff training and development has always been the primary concern of KEC. To cope with expanding services upon the completion of UCH
and HHH expansion projects, the KEC Training Committee has been set up to oversee and formulate cluster training and development
strategies and plans. Additional Advanced Practice Nurses were recruited as clinical preceptors to support junior nurses, and formal
resuscitation training for clinical staff was provided.

The capital projects of UCH and HHH are in good progress as scheduled. KEC will closely monitor the work progress to ensure impact on patient
services is well-contained. Guided by the KEC Clinical Services Plan, the cluster will continue its endeavor to deliver quality patient care.
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Hospitals KWC KCC KEC
Bz N[l NEEREHE JURESREA
Number of general outpatient clinics @R AR B FTEE 16 13 8
Throughput [RFEE

Number of hospital beds E&FesR K2 B 4807 5664 2727
Patient discharges* HETm A2 B* 298607 361065 201336
Total A&E attendances SEEZFDIEANR 474082 312561 282 684
Total specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 1374373 1503222 895726
HERPP (BRIK) RB2HEAR

General outpatient attendances L @RI FI a2 AR 1038954 1153 366 985363
Full-time equivalent staff ERI2BA S 28 12252 16293 8480
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of the Hospital Authority

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of the Hospital Authority (“HA") and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 115, which comprise:

« the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2019;

» the consolidated statement of income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
« the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

 the consolidated statement of changes in total funds for the year then
ended; and

» the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of principal accounting policies.

Our apinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of HA and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of the Group's consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Other Information

HA is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of HA and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

HA is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
and for such internal control as HA determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, HA is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless there are events or conditions that have caused or may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
HA.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of the Hospital Authority
(Continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of HA's use of the going concern bhasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
GEEERER

At 31 March 2018

HKS'000
Note At 31March 2019 (Restated)
BizE HKS'000 20184 3 A 31 H
2019% 3 H 31 H BT
BT T (Zit)
Non-Current Assets JEREIE &
Property, plant and equipment #12& ~ #88 K%tk 5 6,268,081 5,829,736
Intangible assets | & E 6 239,308 278,952
Loans receivable FEMETR 7 359 1,012
Placements with the Exchange Fund SMNEE S 8 23,300,000 23,300,000
Fixed income instruments EEASTE 9 799,552 -
_______ 30607300 29409700
Current Assets iiiEI&E&E
Inventories B& 10 1,377,317 1,343,215
Loans receivable FEYEZR 7 568 715
Accounts receivable FEUERR 11 296,251 279,622
Other receivables EftfEUER R 12 268,545 354,992
Deposits and prepayments #&& KT8 13 297,576 294,153
Placements with the Exchange Fund SMNEE S 8 2,290,326 3,202,332
Fixed income instruments EiEAS TR 9 - 849,655
Cash and bank balances & MR1THEAR 14 19,271,625 16,750,479
_______ 23802208 23075163
Total Assets & E 54,409,508 52,484,863
Funds E&
Designated fund 8 EE% 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve A& 2,905,927 1,438,380
Total Funds &8 7 7,983,296 | 6,515,749
Current Liabilities kB &8
Balance with Samaritan Fund #EER &S iEE4 15 84,029 1,456,207
Creditors and accrued charges E# AR EFEH 16 12,820,362 10,859,391
Deposits received EXiZS 17 391,523 345,233
13295914 12,660,831
Non-Current Liabilities JEikEI &8
Balance with Samaritan Fund #EER &S i8R 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities FETREEBFET 18 273,483 257,976
Deferred income EAEW & 19 10,349,426 10,941,620
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 21 6,507,389 6,108,687
RIEWa — BRI REREE
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund AL EHEBAES 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
,,,,,,, 33130208 33308283
Total Liabilities #&8® 46,426,212 45969114
Total Funds And Total Liabilities E& & & %% 54,409,508 52,484,863

i 7 S

Mr Fung Hau Chung, BBS, JP & & Dr Ko Pat Sing, Tony m#kE&E

Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee 1TBHER
MBEREEER

The notes on pages 62 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

% 62 £ 115 ENHERA GRS MBHREN—2 -

056 Independent Auditor's Report and Audited Financial Statements %837 #% $6f4R & & 4S B & A0 B 75 $R =



BALANCE SHEET
BERER

At 31 March 2018

HKS'000
Note At 31March 2019 (Restated)
BfiEE HKS$'000 20184 3 A 31 H
2019 3 H 31 H BT
Vit o (&)
Non-Current Assets JEiREIEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ ~ #38 K54 ® 6,268,081 5,829,736
Intangible assets & EE 6 239,308 278,952
Loans receivable FEYER 7 359 1,012
Placements with the Exchange Fund SMNEE S0 8 23,300,000 23,300,000
Fixed income instruments BEASTE 9 799,552 -
_______ 30607,300 29409700
Current Assets iGEIEE
Inventories #& 10 1,377,317 1,343,215
Loans receivable FEYEZR 7 568 715
Accounts receivable FEUERR 11 296,251 279,622
Other receivables EftEUER R 12 268,545 354,992
Deposits and prepayments #&& KT8 13 297,464 294,041
Placements with the Exchange Fund JNEESER 8 2,290,326 3,202,332
Fixed income instruments B2 ASTE 9 - 849,655
Cash and bank balances & RiR1THEAR 14 19,271,625 16,750,479
_______ 23802096 23075051
Total Assets #E&EE 54,409,396 52,484,751
Funds E&
Designated fund #EEE% 22 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA\ 2,905,921 1,438,374
Total Funds &8 7 7,983290 | 6515743
Current Liabilities kB &8
Balance with Samaritan Fund #EER S ES 54 15 84,029 1,456,207
Creditors and accrued charges E#A R EFEH 16 12,820,256 10,859,285
Deposits received EXiZE 17 391,523 345,233
13295808 12,660,725
Non-Current Liabilities JEikE & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #EBR R ES 54 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities FETREEBFET 18 273,483 257,976
Deferred income &AW & 19 10,349,426 10,941,620
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 21 6,507,389 6,108,687
RN — BRI REREE
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund AL EHFBAES 20 10,000,000 10,000,000
,,,,,,, 33130298 33308283
Total Liabilities##&8® 46,426,106 45969,008
Total Funds And Total Liabilities E£ R & &8 54,409,396 52,484,751

e Y

Mr Fung Hau Chung, BBS, JP & 85t4
Chairman

Finance Committee
MBREEER

The notes on pages 56 to 115 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Dr Ko Pat Sing, Tony mikPtEe4
Chief Executive
1TBHER

% 56 £ 115 EMHERAMBRRMN—ES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

AN EER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note HKS$'000 HKS'000
BizE HE2019 F BZE 2018 F
3B 31 HILEE 3A3BHILEE
AT BETIT
Income ITA
Recurrent Government subvention & #4E T 62,302,049 55,441,085
Hospital/clinic fees and charges Bz / 2 & E 23 4,713,346 4,287,196
Donations 158 58 11
Transfers from E:AH :
Designated donation fund 8 EBiEE S 19 194,326 92,618
Minor Works Projects Fund /NI TI2IBEES 19 1,230,703 1,202,525
Public-Private Partnership Fund AR &R EES 19 261,154 228,780
Capital subventions ZEAfEED 21 1,083,013 930,094
Capital donations B4 21 143,947 138,338
Investment income & & Wk 427,082 243,980
Other income E iz 791,165 773,821
,,,,,,, 71,146,843 83338448
Expenditure zit
Staff costs & T A 24 (48,703,440) (45,112,678)
Drugs Z%) (7,304,601) (6,663,619)
Medical supplies and equipment B&&9 & K& f& (3,312,317) (2,970,164)
Utilities charges AR (1,321,033) (1,183,468)
Repairs and maintenance g R RE (2,407,415) (2,209,755)
Minor works projects funded by the Government HBUSEFHVNETRER (1,230,703) (1,202,525)
Operating lease expenses &£EHERX (103,851) (100,941)
Depreciation and amortisation #7& & #é 5& &6 (1,216,305) (1,042,858)
Other operating expenses Efth&ER 25 (4,101,655) (3,693,465)
,,,,,, 69,701,320) (64179473
Surplus/(deficit) for the year FAZE: / (E5iE) 1,445,523 (841,025)

The notes on pages 56 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 56 & 115 Bl 2 AGA B BEREN—IBD
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeZENaR

For the year ended
31 March 2018
For the year ended HK$'000
Note 31 March 2019 (Restated)
Bz HK$'000 BZE 2018 4
#HE 2019 F 3A3IHIEE
3B 31 HILLEE BETIT
BT (Eit)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year FREER / (E5i8) 1,445,523 (841,025)
Other comprehensive income EftiF &1 &
Item that may not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
AVEBHAEABARZHNER :
-Remeasurement of death liability 18 22,024 20,367
FURANEAEHE
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,467,547 (820,658)
FRBIFSINE

The notes on pages 56 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 56 & 115 EHlf S AGAFISHEN—FH -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ReREREERR

For the year ended
31 March 2018
For the year ended HK$'000
Note 31 March 2019 (Restated)
BiEE HKS$'000 BZE 2018 4
BE2019 F 3A 3 BHILEE
3B 31 HLLEFE BETIT
AETT (Ei)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 28 3,701,154 (160,679)
gERRAE/ (FR)REe®E
Investing activities #& & &)
Investment income received EWIEE 395,551 255,328
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E%)2 - #R L& E B (1,456,364) (1,209,868)
Purchases of intangible assets B & &/ B & 6 (169,298) (150,672)
Net (increase)/decrease in bank deposits with original maturity over three (4,604,214) 4,779,328
months
[RREIHA BB =B A MRITEHRMEEE (Bm) / B
Decrease in fixed income instruments EEA S TR 50,103 1,290,345
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (5,784,222) 4,964,461
RET® (FA) /FeRse®s®
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,083,068) 4,203,786
ReRkBReEEz ORD) /5B
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,257,487 2,053,701
FeReRREEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 4,174,419 6,257,487
FRZRERAEEE
Note: &

The interest on the placements with the Exchange Fund on behalf of the RBBFDESENIIMEESNERZH EELHR
Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance with the — PREIBFIEESAIFEE - FEMLHERMEE 150 HE -
Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in note 15.

The notes on pages 56 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 56 & 115 Bl 2 AGA B BEREN—IBD
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL FUNDS

REEERAEIRE

Capital
subventions
and capital
donations Designated Revenue
HKS'000 fund reserve Total
BEATHE HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REREHE EEEE ONE =
AT BT T BT BT
At 1 April 2017, as previously reported 5,816,580 5,077,369 2,259,038 13,152,987
RIZ—tHINA—B > ME23!
Adjustments arising from change in accounting policy (5,816,580) (5,816,580)
GEBREE) S| BT E
At 1 April 2017, as restated 5,077,369 2,259,038 7,336,407
RIZ—tHFNA—R » MEf
Total comprehensive income for the year, as restated (820,658) (820,658)
FRBREWE - B
At 31 March 2018, as restated 5,077,369 1,438,380 6,515,749
NIZ—\F=A=1+—H ' mE
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,467,547 1,467,547
FNERE MR
At 31 March 2019 5,077,369 2,905,927 7,983,296

RIF-NFE=R=1—R

The notes on pages 56 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

% 56 £ 115 BHIERAREMIEREN—ED
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062

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. The Hospital Authority

(a)

Background

The Hospital Autharity (‘HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial statements. HA is a
statutory body established in Hong Kong on 1 December 1990 under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The Hospital Authority Ordinance
provides HA with the powers to manage and control the delivery of public
hospital services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance,
HA is responsible amongst other matters for the following:

+ advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government") of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs;

» managing and developing the public hospital system;

» recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

« establishing public hospitals; and

» promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training of
persons involved or to be involved in hospital services or other services
relevant to the health of the public, and research relating to hospital
Services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an
agreement was entered into between the Government and HA on 3 June
2011 ("Agreement”), under which the Government and HA agreed that
HA shall be responsible for managing and controlling the government
lands (including all new properties built on government lands) and the
hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and premises established thereon
(as set out in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as “Properties”),
as well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in Annex B of the
Agreement) that may be provided on the Properties. The ownership of
the Properties continues to be held by the Government.

HA also entered into agreements with individual governing bodies of the
ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to assume ownership of some
operating assets as at 1 December 1991 and to manage and control other
assets, the ownership of which remains with the individual governing
bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management of the
public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all operating and
capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December 1991 were assumed
by HA, except for the capital works projects funded under the Capital
Works Reserve Fund of the Government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(a)

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Background (Continued)

The Government announced in the 2016 Policy Address that HK$200
billion would be used to implement a ten-year Hospital Development
Plan (HDP). Given the significant number and scale of Schedule 1 hospital
projects in the HDP, the Government has entrusted HA to carry out and
complete a number of capital works projects for Schedule 1 hospitals
which are funded by the Government. Similarly, HA is undertaking the
capital works projects for Schedule 2 hospitals which are funded by the
Government and the governing bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals.
As at 31 March 2019, there were 11 capital works projects in progress (of
which 10 projects were managed by HA), and the total funding approved
by the Government was HK$41,359,700,000.

As part of the Government's healthcare reform plan, HA has taken over
the management and operation of all general outpatient clinics (‘GOPCs")
from the Department of Health by July 2003. Under the arrangement,
the title and ownership in respect of the related operating assets of
the GOPCs were retrospectively transferred to HA in July 2003 after
receiving formal approval from the Government in June 2006. These
assets were transferred at nil value.

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese medicine
in Hong Kong, HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited entered into agreements
with 10 non-governmental organisations (“NGOs") in collaboration
with certain universities in Hong Kong to operate 18 Chinese Medicine
Centres for Training and Research (“CMCTRs"). Under the agreements
with the NGOs, HACM Limited has provided an annual funding to the
NGOs for operating CMCTRs in Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have
provided Chinese medicine outpatient services including the prescription
of Chinese herbal medicine and related services. HACM Limited has
also provided funding to six tripartite CMCTRs for provision of Chinese
medicine services to HA patients under the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine ("ICWM") Pilot Programme which have been implemented at
seven hospitals for four disease areas.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record (‘eHR")
programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare reform, HA
has been engaged to serve as the technical agency to the Government,
leveraging its experience and know-how in the Clinical Management
System (“CMS"). With this role, HA undertakes multiple streams of eHR
related projects, which are funded by the recurrent subvention and
other designated funding from the Government. During the financial
year ended 31 March 2019, HA recognised HK$340,023,000 (2018:
HKS$292,464,000) as other income to match with the expenditure
incurred in relation to the eHR related projects.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. The Hospital Authority (Continued)

(b) Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2019, HA had under its management and control the
following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice

Caritas Medical Centre
Castle Peak Hospital
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin

The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital

Haven of Hope Hospital

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

Hong Kong Children's Hospital

Hong Kong Eye Hospital

Kowloon Hospital

Kwai Chung Hospital

Kwong Wah Hospital

MacLehose Medical Rehahilitation Centre
North District Hospital

North Lantau Hospital

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Pok Oi Hospital

Prince of Wales Hospital

Princess Margaret Hospital

Queen Elizabeth Hospital

Queen Mary Hospital

Ruttonjee Hospital

Shatin Hospital

Siu Lam Hospital

St. John Hospital

Tai Po Hospital

Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

Tin Shui Wai Hospital

Tsan Yuk Hospital
Tseung Kwan O Haspital
Tuen Mun Hospital

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital

United Christian Hospital

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital

Yan Chai Hospital
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(b)

(c)

(a)

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals Charitable
Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Specialist Outpatient Clinics

General Outpatient Clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Autharity Building,
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") as appropriate
to Government subvented and not-for-profit organisations. They have
been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets
which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying HA's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

RIFS R MEE

(b)

(c)

(a)

RixEERH (18)

BiRRAEftEE (F)

BEERES:
LeBREEETES
BRSHIERZEETES
BhEEREEES
SLBREES

REABRABITRERES
RENBRAEES
fﬁ% WRBREEETES

ErEE

Fithtiis :

eHR HK Limited
BEREERPEERRERAT
BRI TFEHMREH L
BRPIZ DM

EEMPID 2R
HAibDmAT KRR R A

TENWER

BERNEERFRRNE
B BREBRARE -

BNEEREEMH 147

EREAER

RREMBRRAANERS BRI
T RIEBEHA  ELBR-—BRANEIRE
FENET -

WAZEE

AUBRERERBREBGHMASHELER
RBFHRIFEFEEBN (FEMBREE
A) - DREFERECERLREERNRE
BARERE > MELUAREBIHNEREE
SRRENGEMFRE

R (BAERERSER) FIRENYBERE

FRMATHERNS G LEREEERR

RESFBCRABREDEHFE - BEEARHE

RBREH  ABBRRRETHUBREREE
RYENIAR A 4 WE -

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2 B% & 32 /5 % & 2018-19

065



066

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.

(b)

(c)

RIFSERaRMEE

Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEEEHEK ()
Basis of consolidation (b) KEEFZEE
The financial statements of the Group include the income and EENVERERBREEE_S—NE=A
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, Charitable =+— EZE&‘E&EEWEE*@&% HY 48 i
Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and R WEKE  FEBR ZEEHES B
other institutions under its management and control made up to 31 R ivi4Fﬁu/u/ﬁﬁlkiiﬁﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁﬁqii\$ﬂfi
March 2019. & e
The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those AU BBRERREEMEECEERAAEZ
assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group. BEMNERCHRAE
Subsidiaries (c) MIEHE
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The WERERIEEEREZENEER - 258
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, EEAHSHERBNEBEENAEXNZTEERH
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability SOHNERIER - WaAERHEENESE
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the BNEBEMTEZEL®  IRKEEEFTER
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that control is B TERBEEWEHECH  WEHERER
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that M BEN SRS 2 BEEEHNEREN
control ceases. EEERLE  BAREEREES -
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions EEABECENRS « BRERERZZZK
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised & EIRAEVERERE - B RIERZEER
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of HEPFEENEEERE  SRRERCER
an impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting policies of the TNERER o BHEN S BUREERTEA—
subsidiaries are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the & EHBUR °
Group
At 31 March 2019, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise: EIZ-NE=A=1—H BERNTIENE
R
Effective percentage
Place of directly held by the
incorporation/ Group
Name Principal activities operation EEERFENER
&1E FEXH FRMARIL / & E I, KLl
HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) of Chinese medicine services BB
EREERPEEZRERAA RPN EZ RN R RELE
(BRERAR)
eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, maintain Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) and license the intellectual property )
(ERBRAR) rights and assets related to eHR

programme
FRREA B RERGTERET
RECHOBRMBNASERLEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(d)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, including
interpretations, amendments or improvements to the existing standards,
which become effective in the current period. The following new
standards which are effective for the Group's financial year beginning 1
April 2018 are relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, and addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liahilities, introduces a new
expected credit loss model that replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used under HKAS 39. A substantially reformed approach to hedge
accounting is introduced. Changes that are relevant to the Group include
classification and impairment of financial assets as highlighted below.
The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 retrospectively without restating
comparative information.

Classification of financial assets

Accounts receivable and fixed income instruments which were previously
classified as “loans and receivables” and “held to maturity investments”
respectively under HKAS 39 are reclassified as “debt instruments” and
are measured at amortised cost. Meanwhile, HA continues to measure
the placements with the Exchange Fund at fair value through profit and
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

From 1 April 2018, financial assets are subject to the new expected credit
loss madel prescribed by HKFRS 9. The Group is required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for each class of assets carried
at amortised cost.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have a material impact on the
carrying amount of the Group's financial assets. Further details of the
accounting policies for the placements with the Exchange Fund, fixed
income instruments and accounts receivable are set out in notes 2(i), 2())
and 2(l) respectively.

RIFS R MEE

(d)

FREEECR (1)

IRAHRET / EIEETHY (ERMTTIMSER)

BRI MASEMT LR B E RN
5/ RIEFTH (BRMEREER) - BEYE
HRRRE  BAIHHR - LITHFERIESR
E_F—-/\GFUA—-HRRMBEREER I
BRERER :

(ERMFREER) Fo% "EMIR,

(BEEMBREER) &9 RIMA (FBGHE
A E39% "SMIH : BRAKEE, - AIE
REREENSHARNDE  FFEMKILRE
R BIANH TERAEEERRE )  BARE
FIAM 'EREBBRERE )  ALHHPE
FEIAKREBRENTE - BRNEENEEBE
TINEREESELAE - KEENER (B
B HHREER) %95 UMEAMLRER -

FEUIRA R EEA B TRELUERE (B g%
A1) % 39 RARBER T ERREHIRR , K
TREIMEANKRE, @ HEHRIER TEBEL
8, RESRKAEER - BERSRERINE
BEeHERRARBEIIRAERSAE -

H-F—/\FOA—RE SRHEERER (F
BUBREEN) BRI T RBEES
BEL | 78 - REARKILEA R ERES
BRAES RN E B RIE T HRETE ©

R (BAMBRSER) FoRVEESH
BEENRABENSREARE - RENEES
R BEAS LR REBYIRIIE TR © &
BEGIEE 20), 2() & 2() -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(d)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 estahlishes a comprehensive framework for the recognition
of revenue. It replaces HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” which covers
construction contracts and HKAS 18 “Revenue” which covers contracts
for goods and services for revenue recognition. The core principle in the
framework is that revenue is recognised if the performance obligation is
satisfied. That is, the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided. HKFRS 15 also introduces new disclosure
requirements on revenue, provides guidance for transactions that were
not previously addressed comprehensively and improves guidance for
multiple-element arrangements. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no
material impact to the results of the Group.

The Group has also reassessed the accounting policies and presentation
of the various revenue-related financial statement line items and has
revised its presentation of capital subventions and capital donations in
the consolidated balance sheet. In order to better align with industry
practice, the Group has reclassified such capital subventions and capital
donations as deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations
in the consolidated balance sheet. Previously, Government subventions
and cash donations that were spent on property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets were recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in total funds under capital subventions and capital
donations. The comparative figures have been restated accordingly as
shown below. The related accounting policies are set out in notes 2(g)(iv)
and 2(f) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE
STATEMENTS

2.

(d)

Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEEEHEK (8)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) (d) IRFIFRET / $B{EETHY (B BEATSREERD) ()

Effect on consolidated balance sheet (extract):

The Group
&5

At 31 March 2017

HKS$'000 At 1 April 2017
(As previously Changeiin HK$'000
reported) accounting policy (As restated)
2017438 31 H HKS$'000 01TE481H
BETIT S BRED WBEETT
(FPIEZ3)) BT (e )
Funds &
Capital subventions and capital donations 5,816,580 (5,816,580)
BERFYNE ARG
Total Funds* £ &#@%8 * 13,152,987 (5,816,580) 7,336,407
Non-Current Liabilities JEZEIEE
Deferred income — capital subventions and capital donations - 5,816,580 5,816,580
B — BB RENEE
Total Non-Current Liabilities* JER B & &858 * 28,035,698 5,816,580 33,852,278
Total Liabilities* & f&#8%8 * 40,268,222 5,816,580 46,084,802
Total Funds And Total Liabilities* £& & Sf&#8% * 53,421,209 - 53,421,209

The Group
£8

At 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 At 1 April 2018
(As previously Changein HKS'000
reported) accounting policy (As restated)
20184 3 A 31 H HKS'000 2018F4H81H
BETIT S ERREY BETIT
(BlE231) BT (FnEA)
Funds £&
Capital subventions and capital donations 6,108,687 (6,108,687)
BRI R ERBE
Total Funds* E &% * 12,624,436 (6,108,687) 6,515,749
Non-Current Liabilities JERENEE
Deferred income — capital subventions and capital donations - 6,108,687 6,108,687
R — EAEREARRE
Total Non-Current Liabilities* JEREN & & iEEE * 27,199,596 6,108,687 33,308,283
Total Liabilities* &f&#@%E * 39,860,427 6,108,687 45,969,114
Total Funds And Total Liabilities* E£ k& &% * 52,484,863 - 52,484,863
*The tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that *RAEF T HEERKRIBENRE - WRIIARZ LB ENMT
were not affected by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and EE - AR HNE T N AR PR B \Gt RIS R -

totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. EEEEHBER (48)

(d) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) (d) IRE#ET / BIEETHY (SBRITEMEER) (18)

Effect on balance sheet (extract):

HA
HEER

At 31 March 2017

HKS$'000 At 1 April 2017
(As previously Changein HK$'000
reported) accounting policy (As restated)
2017438 31 H HK$'000 01TFE 4818
BT SHBRED BT
(FLIEZ3)) BT (e )
Funds &
Capital subventions and capital donations 5,816,580 (5,816,580)
BRI N E ARG
Total Funds* E&#8% * 13,152,981 (5,816,580) 7,336,401
Non-Current Liabilities JEFEE &
Deferred income — capital subventions and capital donations - 5,816,580 5,816,580
B — BB RENEE
Total Non-Current Liabilities* JERE & fE#8%E * 28,035,698 5,816,580 33,852,278
Total Liabilities* &&##E * 40,268,145 5,816,580 46,084,725
Total Funds And Total Liabilities* £& & & &4 * 53,421,126 - 53,421,126

HA

BER

At 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 At 1 April 2018
(As previously Changein HKS'000
reported) accounting policy (As restated)
201843 A 31 H HKS$'000 2018 4H81H
BT GBS BT
(FLIEZS)) BETIT (et )
Funds £&
Capital subventions and capital donations 6,108,687 (6,108,687)
BRI R ENBE
Total Funds* E&#8% * 12,624,430 (6,108,687) 6,515,743
Non-Current Liabilities JEREEE
Deferred income — capital subventions and capital donations - 6,108,687 6,108,687
R — EAHEREARRE
Total Non-Current Liabilities* JERE & fE#8%E * 27,199,596 6,108,687 33,308,283
Total Liabilities* & f&#&% * 39,860,321 6,108,687 45,969,008
Total Funds And Total Liabilities* £& & B &85 * 52,484,751 - 52,484,751
*The tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that *RAZF T HEERKRIBEENAE  WEIIARZEEVENHT
were not affected by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and B - AR T R AR I FTHRTEA /et RIS RTAREE ©

totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIF5ERaRpicE

STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FEEEHEK (8)

(d) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) (d) IRFIFRET / $B{EETHY (B BEATSREERD) ()

AR AKSRNZE

Effect on consolidated statement of comprehensive income (extract):

For the year ended
31 March 2018 For the year ended
HK$'000 31 March 2018
(As previously HKS'000
reported) Changein (As restated)
BE 2018 & accounting policy BE 20184
3A3HIEE HK$'000 3R 3 HIEE
BETIT S BRED WETT
(FLUE231) BT T (fnEH)
Other comprehensive income Efthiz & U5
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income
or expenditure:
HETREEN M ERRASEZHNIER
- Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 1,358,718 (1,358,718)
- BRI REAIREEN
- Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 1,821 (1,821)
-ERENATRERES
- Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,068,432) 1,068,432
- BRI AR E R
Total comprehensive income for the year* (528,551) (292,107) (820,658)
FRMEmEUE

*The tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that *RAZF TR EERREENAR  WEIIARZEDZENH]

were not affected by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and
totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs which are
effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The
Group has not early adopted these new/revised HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. The following
assessment has been carried out.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating
leases. Under HKFRS 16, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised in the balance sheet.

Management has assessed all lease contracts as well as contracts which
do not satisfy the lease definition under the new standard. Except for
operating leases that will expire within 12 months or less from 1 April
2019, the operating lease commitments as disclosed in note 32(b) will
result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments
according to the new standard.

BE - AARENBF AT ATIRE NN RIS RE -

BRGIMASTEMY L RE_F—NEMN
A—REHz R EHHELERNI / REFT
M (BAMERSER) - KEEEE"_F—A
F=A=T—RLENPBEHRRLZERERA
BT / KB (ERMBHREER) X
BETLUTAS -

(BRUFHREER) F 165K THE,

(ERMBREER) £ 16 REIRFEREE
EHENSFRE - RIFHER > BE (HER
BEMERE) BEXNESNERaBERNEERR
REER °

EHEBDREMEAFEERESN  BRA
HEHEEENEN - REFNER BRY_F
—AENA-ABR+ BRI R+ZEAR
MmN EERSE - R 3200) KENEEMR
EREEREBENLEAREREENINESH
aR-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(d)

(e)

(f)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

As a lessee, the Group will apply the standard using the modified
retrospective approach. Under the modified retrospective approach, (i)
comparative information for prior periods is not restated:; (i) the date of
the initial application of HKFRS 16 is the first day of the annual reporting
period in which the Group first applies the requirement of HKFRS 16, i.e. 1
April 2019; and (jii) all right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease payments).

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an accruals
basis, except for those subventions for designated programmes or capital
items that are recognised when the related expenditure is incurred as
set out in note 2(q).

Inpatient hospital fees and charges, such as inpatient admission
and maintenance fees, itemised charges for private inpatients, are
recognised over time during hospitalisation. Other hospital/clinic fees
and charges such as outpatient attendance fees and drug charges, sales
of self-financed drugs and medical reports and records, are recognised
when services are provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations are
recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects Fund and
Public-Private Partnership (‘PPP") Fund are recognised as set out in note

2().

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as set
out in note 2(j).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Donations
(i) Donated assets

Furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and intangible assets
donated to the Group are capitalised initially at fair value on receipt
of assets according to the policy set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and 2(h)
respectively. The amount of the donated assets is accumulated in
deferred income under capital donations. Each year, an amount
equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets
and the net book value of assets disposed of is transferred from
deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure. Other
donated assets not fulfilling the capitalisation policy are recorded as
expenditure and income in the year of receipt of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Donations (Continued)

(i) Cashdonations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor are
accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the fund is
utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the capitalisation
policy as set out in note 2(g)(ii) or note 2(h), they are accounted for as
expenditure of the designated donation fund. Cash donations that
are spent on property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
as set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and 2(h) respectively are accumulated in
deferred income under capital donations, and the corresponding
amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the
depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and the net
book value of assets disposed of is transferred from deferred income
to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes are
recorded as donations in the statement of income and expenditure
upon receipt of cash.

(9) Property, plant and equipment

(M

(i)

(i

(iv

Completed building projects transferred from the Government and
individual governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals are recorded
at nominal value and included in property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised and the
corresponding amounts are recognised as deferred income - capital
subventions and capital donations for capital expenditure funded by
the Government and donations respectively.

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Additions represent new or replacement of specific
components of an asset. An asset's carrying value is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The cost of assets acquired and the fair value of donated assets
received by the Group are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:

RIFS R MEE

2.

(f)

(9)

FREBR (18)
1o (%)

(i) R

AR AEERENRSRESIIA—EE
EREES - BESMNERRHARAH
&t 2(9)(i) SHHTEE 2(h) MERLRTE © 25
AZEEESNRAXKRER - ERESEEN
B S E AR BYRE 200)(i) R 3%~ 1B E8 LR
BEWE 20 NEVEE - eRELRS
ZTHERNBRREE  MERRETEER
ERM= - BRLRBEDETEE - 85
—ERFRELEEMENBENSELT
EEENREFERETRSERENHE

ke

FR—REEZHIHEERRIRE  KIK

HEIAZEE MBS AR RA ©

W5 - HER R ER A

() HBUFRER R ERE B ERNE
ERERTRIUAREENK  JIRME

e Rgdes o

(i) BRETKBETIRSN  AmKEERDNY
X BENRBEERL  USRTZBA
B SR BERMAERERED B BT

it —BERRFE REABRER

(i) BRETERBETRS » ¥  Bas KRIETD
BREAEREARBAERAEAR - £A
BMAKREREEN NN ERREY - 5
ENRAEESNME AREERE  HRE

EBEESHFREAAKEEE -

(iv) EEFRGHNEENRASRREENAR
~REEENRTAERFHL

BENFE -
BEREITRE

Leasehold improvements
HEMEERE
Buildings &%)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment R & - BEEEE MK 3-10years £
Motor vehicles /5 5-7 years £
Computer equipment SE&RE 3-Byears &£

QOver the life of the lease to which the improvement relates
RERE 2 FH
20 - 50 years 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.

(9

(h)

U

()

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(v) The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

(vi) The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of income
and expenditure.

(vii) Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset is
placed into commission.

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development costs,
which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised as intangible assets
and the corresponding amounts are recognised as deferred income —
capital subventions and capital donations for capital expenditure funded
by the Government and donations respectively. Intangible assets are
stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment and
are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
one to three years.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss". HA determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and such
classification depends on HA's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed to the statement of income
and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred and HA has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are measured at amortised cost based on HA's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis and
stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverahble amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or
premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term of the instrument
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

()

(k)

U

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Fixed income instruments (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the fixed income instruments and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the fixed income instruments is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Where
applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.
Inventories are stated net of such provision in the balance sheet, Net
realisable value is determined with reference to the replacement cost.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivahle are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for expected credit losses. HA applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The carrying amount of the accounts receivable is reduced
through the use of an allowance for expected credit loss account, and
the amount of the expected credit losses is recognised as an expense
in the statement of income and expenditure. Decrease in the previously
recognised expected credit losses shall be reversed by adjusting the
allowance for expected credit loss account.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on the debtors'
profiles of accounts receivable over a period of 36 months rolling
historical credit loss experienced. The historical credit loss rates are
adjusted for forward looking estimates that may affect the ability of
debtors to settle the receivables.

When an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written
off, the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the allowance
for expected credit loss account for accounts receivable. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
current year's expenses in the statement of income and expenditure.
Accounts receivable are written off after all possible debt recovery
actions have been taken by HA and taking into account prevailing
economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
bank deposits with original maturity within three months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liahility, unless the probability of outflow
of economic henefits is remote. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as expenses as they fall due. Payments made to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group's obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan. The retirement benefit costs charged in the
statement of income and expenditure represent the contributions
payable in respect of the current year to the Group's defined
contribution retirement benefit plan and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme.

(i) Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
costs when there is an obligation to make such payments without
possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group's obligations in respect of death and disability
benefits provided to employees is recognised as staff costs in the
statement of income and expenditure with reference to annual
actuarial valuations performed by an independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as post
employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death liahility
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the statement of income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out
in note 18.

Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract gratuity
are accounted for as they accrue.

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following are
classified as recurrent subvention income.

(M

Government funding for building projects, together with contributions
from the individual governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals, are
received by HA for undertaking the capital works on their behalf.
Accordingly, the amount incurred on building projects and the funding
received are reflected as changes in current assets / current liahilities.
Any outstanding reimbursement of project costs incurred by HA is
recognised as current assets, while advance funding received by HA for
meeting the project costs in future periods are recognised as current
liahilities. Further details are set out in notes 12 and 16.

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor works
projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the related
investment income are recognised as deferred income —Minor Works
Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on the minor works
projects is transferred from deferred income to the statement of
income and expenditure or deferred income — capital subventions as
appropriate. Further details of the deferred income — Minor Works
Projects Fund are set out in note 19(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2.

(a)

(r)

(s)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Government subvention (Continued)

(i) The Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to establish
an endowment fund for PPP programmes. The investment returns
of the PPP Endowment Fund, together with the remaining balance
of the one-off designated funding for HA's PPP programmes as at
31 March 2016 are recognised as deferred income — PPP Fund. Each
year, the amount spent on the PPP programmes is transferred
from deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure
or deferred income — capital subventions as appropriate. Further
details of the PPP Fund are set out in note 19(h).

(iv

Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(g)(ii) and 2(h)
respectively are accumulated in deferred income under capital
subventions, and the corresponding amounts are capitalised as
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets respectively. Each
year, an amount equal to the depreciation or amortisation charge for
these assets and net book value of assets disposed of is transferred
from deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as expenses in the statement of income
and expenditure on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and
losses are dealt with in the statement of income and expenditure except
for Minor Works Projects Fund, which are recognised as deferred income.

Independent Auditor's Report and Audited Financial Statements %837 #% 86T & R 18 B &% 00 B 75 i %

RIFSERaRMEE

2.

(a)

(r)

(s)

FREFECR (i8)

IRFTHEED (4R)

(i) BFmEERFERAEE 10,000,000,000 7T
RUBRES DT ALERFE - 2
RERFEAESHRERR  ERBTFR
TEERALERFEIN—RIUEEEER
RIFB—AREZA=1T—ANEHEDRAHE
Ll — ALEREES - B8F > ARE
WEEt BRI RE > MEE  BELK
S EHETYE T RERREL NS — EXE
B AEALEREESHFBRNIE
19(b) °

(iv) BRHEE 2(0)i) 2 ~ 38 KR I kP =t
2(h) BV EEHBTHED » R W
BTINEAMBRE - HRSEEEAL
DRTNEIR ~ BEXRERETVEE °
F o —ERENZFEETENRENSE
MHEBEENKREFES HEL WA EAE
WS

EEHE

MBBEENARES BRAESERREHE
AITE - BDEREERE - REEEHREMX
NHFE CREHEARTHEREE) REE
FHLERA AR R KR -

ShEsIRE

SEMBHRRASEREYUEELEREER
RERGNERERAE (THRES ) - BER
FAZFNSEUETREL - RIEBHIHEE
NG -

HNER ZRIRER 5 A ERAGINEE SRR Th
BEEW - LOMNERELNEREEREE  KE
EEERNAPRERER  ZRERAENE
ERABRRARS RS N TEREES
AlBRSN - SHERRIELW S -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(t)

(a)

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa. Related parties also include key management personnel
having autharity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between the
Group and Government departments, agencies or Government controlled
entities, other than those transactions that arise in the normal dealings
between the Government and the Group, are considered to be related
party transactions.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities of providing healthcare services to patients, the
administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce and
the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks being
mitigated by the Group's financial risk management process. The Group's
underlying principles of financial risk management are to transfer
the cost of financial risks of significant level through insurance with a
diversity of insurers, to self insure for the operational risks and to comply
with regulatory insurance requirements as an employer and owner of a
motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's policies and
guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet liquidity requirements,
to protect capital and to provide a reasonable return. The investment
portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31 March 2019 consisted of bank deposits,
fixed income instruments and placements with the Exchange Fund.
Based on the risk control measures as summarised below, the risk of
default by the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio
has no significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group has no
significant currency risk because substantially all assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group's functional and
presentation currency. The Group manages its cash flow requirements
and risk as disclosed in note 3(c).

RIFS R MEE

(t)

(a)

FREBR (18)
BBAL

HREREHNAL REEEIEEERIZH
SEFEHMBRERRE B LREZENEE
BAT > R2TR - BEEATTERAERNLE
BAEME EOLEEERSENEREEA

= o

BAMBRK R - EEEBUTERR © A
BREHERCENRS  RENRERNES
R BEEEBMALRS °

g Tl ygiis

HHEBRER

SEFMETHNEBENARARLEERRY 88
ZY)  RREABERMLRETDT  BHRE
ENFBRRIOR - L ERETHBERR
HERBE SEMZEEREENIZRA - =2
ZRATNARBRATDBERRRBTAKRERF
B - RERERMEZNMREREY » UK
BETFEREIRFEERNEBERRRRRE
B -

RRERH  RESEEEBREES  HER
BERRNARBESHNTR  REESRRMLS
B -#E2_F-NE=R=1—HHKREH
B (TH#E,) BRETER BEASIAR
SNERSTER © RIE T XAAFINERESER -
BERXZHANEREARETRERE  MHEE
TRBEANGESTER - ItH » AREEH
EENGERBLBIETABM - BEEN)
BEREINEE  WEEANEBEAR - KEHR
BRESFTEREARNER » FHFE 3(c) HKE -

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2 B% & 32 /5 % & 2018-19

079



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(M

(i

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that counterparties may default on
its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and placements with the
Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group's approved banks which
are of investment grade as determined by Moody's or Standard and
Poor's. For bank deposits, banks must meet the minimum credit
rating not lower than Moody's Baa3 or equivalent. The impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9 do not have a material impact on the bank
deposits. Credit risk arising from the bank deposits is not significant
to the Group.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or paid for
upon delivery through approved banks and safe kept by the approved
custodian with high credit ranking. The credit risks of the issuers
are assessed based on the credit rating determined by Moody's or
Standard and Poor's. Investments in fixed income instruments (i.e.
certificates of deposits and bonds) are with issuers of credit rating
not lower than Moody's A3 or equivalent at the time of investment.
Where the maturity is over three years, the credit rating is not lower
than Moody's Aa3 or equivalent.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are entered into between
HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA") and it is
expected that the HKMA can fulfill its contractual obligations to HA
in respect of the placements.

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio's interest rate risk arises from interest bearing cash
at bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments. Cash at bank,
which earns interest at variable rates, gives rise to cash flow interest
rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits and fixed income instruments
expose the Portfolio to fair value interest rate risk. Sensitivity
analyses have been performed by the Group with regard to interest
rate risk as at 31 March 2019. If interest rates had been increased
or decreased hy 20 basis points, which represent management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in those rates, and
all other variables were held constant, the effect on the Group's
operating results and total funds is insignificant.

Price risk
Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused by

the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and market
interest rates as disclosed in note 3(a)(i) and note 3(a)(ii) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Currency risk

The Group's financial assets and liahilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group's functional and
presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to significant
currency risk.

(b) Fair values estimation

(M

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group's financial instruments that are measured at fair value
are categorised hy level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liahilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservahle inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1. None of the instruments of the
Groupisincluded in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation technigques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. None of the instruments of the Group is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

o

(b)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair values estimation (Continued)
(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the reporting date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are included in level 3. The
following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the
financial years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018:

R ERaR AT

3. HHEMRERE (1)

(b) RffEEREE (8)
() BRARBEIENESREE (&)

RUGESR T AENEEMERMEE :

- AERTENTZREIRZHRE
- EMSNESNMAREBEEARSEBNE
HEXET  MASEENEERE;

- Eftpdlr o GINIrER SR - BLIE
EHBERTANARER -

IEERESESBNE=E - TREJFET
F-NFZAZ+-HLER"Z-N\E=A
—t-HLEFEE=ETANES:

The Group and HA
EEREER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HE2019 F BZE 2018 4
3B 31 HILEE 3A3BHILEE
BT BETIT
At the beginning of the year IA44]) 26,502,332 25,667,339
Interest earned/accrued interest FERI S / FE&TFI S 1,069,543 834,993
Interest withdrawn $2EUFI & (1,981,549) -
At the end of the year [note 8] FAE# [ Mzt 8] 25,590,326 26,502,332

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values

The fair values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of
deposits and bonds) at the reporting date are provided by the
approved custodian. These instruments are summarised below:

(i) FEUAREBE2IINSHEE

BEASIR (MERERES) ERER
MAREEARERE ARM  BEESIM
T

The Group and HA
EEREER

Carrying Value [Note 9] Fair Value
RAREDE(E [ Bf5E 9] AREE
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 H 31H 2083 831 H 20193 B 31H 20838 31 H
AT T BT AT T BETIT
Fixed income instruments 799,552 849,655 809,627 849,049

EEASIER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3.

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair values estimation (Continued)

(iii)y The carrying values of other financial assets and liahilities such as
cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts receivable and
trade payahles approximate their fair values and accordingly, no
disclosure of fair values for these items is presented.

Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) ALl money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for that
purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided to HA by
the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees, rent,
interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund and deferred income as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. At 31 March 2019, the capital of the Group was
HKS$24,840,111,000 (2018: HK$23,566,056,000).

The Group's objective for managing capital is to safeguard the Group's
ahility to continue as a going concern to ensure sustainability of the
public healthcare system. The Group has always been prudent in
financial management so as to ensure proper and effective use of public
resources. Through the annual planning exercise, resource requirements
of individual hospital clusters are identified and considered against the
total amount of funding available to the Group, with a view to meet the
rising service demand for public hospital services and build up Hong
Kong's future healthcare workforce with recruitment of new graduates.
The Group also continuously strives for enhancement of efficiency in use
of its resources. To facilitate the delivery of value-for-money services,
the Group regularly monitors a set of performance indicators covering
performance in clinical service, human resources management and
financial management.

RIFS R MEE

(b)

(c)

AEEREE (18)

DREEEE (8)

(i) HthEmEERBRMNRSRBITHER B
WER - BUERARENE ZRFHREE
EREAREERE  WELRBNARE
ERBE5 -

BFEE

BE (BREERGEA) - SENERERE

() ABRBNTEERMRUEZSEBAREREN
FURHPTETRIR » LUK BURF AE 5 708
WEERNNE &

(i) BERUBINAARMFARYE BFER
B REER B ASREERA -

Bt KENELBRREEERAGRAH
MBAER BEEESRELKS - 82
“E-NE=ZRA=1T—8 KRENELXA
¥ 24,840,111,000 T (ZF—\F : B
23,566,056,000 7T ) °

SEEXEENARRAREENED BT
FERENER LRFAVEBRETINIRE
B0 - RE—EETERNMBEERRA - DR
{”ﬁéﬁ&ﬁ“&ﬁ&L% BEREETFR
fpe  BERSTENBRERNEREER
T SEFERTREFELER  LENALE
FeiR# A B MNFER » WEFHEXLEES
BRARNBEEAT - RETAEBANRAERE
mmmw o REERU A T RBRENRE - £H

HER-—EATERERE ANEREERY
%Eﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁh@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

4.

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. The
following is a review of the more significant accounting policies that
are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for which different
amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using
different assumptions.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each medical
malpractice claim. For those professional liahility claims in excess of
the retained sum, the claims will be barne by the insurer. In view of the
complex nature and long development period of the claims, a Claims
Review Panel consisting of the participating medical malpractice
insurers, the external panel law firms appointed by the insurers and HA's
in-house experts review the status of potential and active claims semi-
annually and assess the provision required on each significant case. An
independent qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment
of the exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments
and the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external actuarial
consultant respectively, management reviews the claims exposure and
determines the provision required to cover the Group's exposure at each
reporting date. Such provision is included in accrued charges and other
payables in note 16.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess the
present value of ohligations for its death and disability scheme at
each reporting date. Major actuarial assumptions include the discount
rate and salary inflation rate which are set out in note 18. The present
value of the Group's ohligations is discounted with reference to market
yields on Hong Kong Government Bonds, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related obligations. The long-term salary
inflation is generally based on the market's long-term expectation of
price inflation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

5.

Property, plant and equipment

R ERaR AT

5. X - WKl

The Group and HA
SEREER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HKS'000 vehicles equipment Total
HKS'000 XE - EEERE HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BEYMRKE R RE e R HEEt
BT T BT T BT AT AT
Cost kA&
At1April2018 2 201844 B 1 H 1,093,728 11,522,158 294,879 562,300 13,473,065
Additions ¥&0 800 1,349,203 34,859 71,502 1,456,364
Disposals H&E (1,033) (461,909) (15,292) (17,073) (495,307)
At31March2018 X 2019438310 1093495 12409452 314446 616,729 14434122
Accumulated depreciation 2T&#E
At1April201874 201844 B 1 H 450,936 6,576,173 231,582 384,638 7,643,329
Charge for the year AEE 2 & 28,125 889,474 20,582 69,182 1,007,363
Disposals & (1,033) (451,423) (15,292) (16,903) (484,651)
At31March2018 1 201943310 478028 1014224 236872 436917 8,166,041
Net book value RREF{E
At31March201974 2019463 A 31 H 615,467 5,395,228 77,574 179,812 6,268,081
The Group and HA
SEREER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HKS'000 Z%E - EEkE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEYRRE R AE e R #EEt
AT AT AT T AT T BT T
Cost B &
At1April2017 R 201748 1 H 1,091,725 10,963,818 272,067 518,018 12,845,628
Additions 10 2,003 1,115,984 31,154 60,727 1,209,868
Disposals H&E = (557,644) (8,342) (16,445) (582,431)
At3IMarch201874 2018538318 1093728 11522158 204879 562,300 13,473,085
Accumulated depreciation £T&# &
At1April2017 » 201744 B 1 H 423,741 6,312,043 211,174 332,677 7,279,635
Charge for the year AEE iz & 27,195 796,201 28,750 68,405 920,551
Disposals & - (532,071) (8,342) (16,444) (556,857)
At3|March2018i 201838318 450936 6576173 281582 384638 7,643,329
Net book value BREFE
At31March 20184 2018 3 A 31 H 642,792 4,945,985 63,297 177,662 5,829,736
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL A TR R bt 5
STATEMENTS
6. Intangible assets 6. B|EEE

086

The Group
£

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HE2019 F BZE 2018 4
3B 31 HILEE 3A 3 BILEE
BT T BETIT
Cost A&
At the beginning of the year IRE4]) 1,413,263 1,263,436
Additions &0 169,298 150,672
Disposals H& (1,024) (845)
Attheendof theyearptspt¢ 1,581,537 1413263
Accumulated amortisation R
At the beginning of the year RE4]) 1,134,311 1,012,849
Charge for the year A"FE 2 #H 208,942 122,307
Disposals H& (1,024) (845)
Attheendoftheyearpdsete 1,342,229  1,134311
Net book value fREF{E
At the end of the year F4E#% 239,308 278,952
HA
BER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE 2019 F BZE 2018 4
3B 31 HILEE 3A3HILEFE
BT T BT T
Cost pk&
At the beginning of the year IRE4]] 1,407,340 1,257,513
Additions %0 169,298 150,672
Disposals H& (1,024) (845)
Attheendoftheyearptsgt¢ 1575614 1,407,340
Accumulated amortisation EF&#sH
At the beginning of the year 7AF4]) 1,128,388 1,006,926
Charge for the year ARG #4H 208,942 122,307
Disposals & (1,024) (845)
Attheend of the year £%¢ 1,336,306 1,128,388
Net book value fRE$E
At the end of the year A4FE#& 239,308 278,952
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.

Loans receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of their
residential properties (“Downpayment Loan Scheme”). The repayment
period of the loans is the shorter of the mortgage life and 20 years.
Interest charged on the downpayment loans is determined by the Group
from time to time and is set at 1.257% as at 31 March 2019 (2018: 1.132%).
Downpayment Loan Scheme has been suspended since April 2002.

At 31 March 2019, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff
which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows:

A5 ehaRbfaE

FEIRETR

ERERETHNBESRASZRAET  —L&
REREENESENERLUBERM (TEH
EGETE L)  BERETNERMRYERBE
#3020 F 0 DIBEERE - EHERNSXH
BERARGIE  RZZE—NF=A=1+—HK
£ 1.257% (ZF—/\F : 1.132%) - BEHER
AERER_FNAEEEE -

E_E-NF=A=1t—H CEBRGERE
ENEHMERABMEETRERAT

The Group and HA
SHREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HK$'000 HKS'000

2019 %3 A 31H 208F 3/ 31 H

AT T BT

Repayable within one year —5A1EE 568 715
Repayable beyond one year i#iB—F {12 359 1,012
927 1,727

The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivable mentioned above. According to the terms and conditions of
the scheme, the manthly principal repayment and payment of interest
in respect of the downpayment loans are deducted from the employees'
wages and that any benefits to which an employee will be entitled to
receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand charged with
repayment of downpayment loan and interest thereon if such debt has
not been paid by the employee upon resignation or on an agreed date. On
this basis, the receivable balance is considered to be fully recoverable.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss". The valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are
the discounted cash flow and discount rate respectively. The placements
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Their fair values are determined
with reference to the estimated rates of investment return for future
years.

ERESIEAMIRE - AREBRANGEE
R CAERHIREERE © REFEINERK
&t BEHMERNEAAENABERSERE
HFrEIER - FERENEBFNEE B HAREE
BERERRAEANE  AIEERE TBREE
RAEEE ) TENEAER - SRFEDE
B - A BREREREALERRE -

INEEETFH

HEERSHEHEU TRAREBIREEERE
BreMEE 8 HARBESEMHNG
EEMMERRTREBA  DHRHRFASRA
REBRE - BIRRBRLUETTABA - HAREE
RERTEENGTREDREET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BA 5 EhakbficE
STATEMENTS
8. Placements with the Exchange Fund (Continued) 8. SMEEETFF (1)

The interest on the placements is at a fixed rate determined annually in
January and payable annually in arrears on 31 December. Currently, the
rate of return is calculated on the basis of the average annual rate of
return on certain investment portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past
six years or the average annual yield of three-year government bond in
the previous year (subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the
higher. This rate of return has been fixed at 4.6% and 2.9% per annum for
January to December 2018 and January to December 2019, respectively.
The interest earned but not yet withdrawn by HA would continue to
accrue interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.

As agreed with HKMA, HA renewed the placement with the Exchange
Fund for the Samaritan Fund at HK$6,000,000,000 for another six
years at its maturity on 8 November 2018. All the interest earned
up to 7 November 2018 of HKS$1,661,549,000 was withdrawn and
transferred to the Samaritan Fund.

EEFFNEXRETE AR —REE  URE
FHZA=T—AX - RWF - BHRERZRINE
ESREMGBERENTHRERRE > %=
FHRGESBE -GN FIFERARIE
(RIER 0%) LR ERE - _F—/\G—R
Et_RAR_F-NE-AET_ANESED
BENRIR 4.6% K 2.9% - BERFTEBRE
RENAEEZASAZEX@EERENE

REBRERESERNGS  BBEANEESA
238 6,000,000,000 THHIBER T —/\E
T—ANBEBREENIMNEES  AERE -
EERERERENEE_S—/\E+—A+tH
BTERSE 1,661,549,000 TH & » WHEHRET

ROBNDRESE -

EBEZS-NF=A=1T—HLNEE  BE
BARBEBE_F—t&+_A=+—HME
HEBDA S - HEEE 320,000,000 7T ° fE A
PALEBFTEEECH -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, HA also withdrew HK$320,000,000,
being part of the interest earned up to 31 December 2017, to support the
operation of the PPP programmes.

SHERSHBRANNT :

The placements with the Exchange Fund are analysed as follows:

The Group and HA
EEREER

Custodian for PPP Fund and PPP
Samaritan Fund Minor Works Endowment Fund
[Note 15] Projects Fund [Notes 19(b) and 20]
ERRIBIDES [Note 19(a)] AHERERER
HREA NTIRERES AHERERAES Total
[ 5t 15] [ BiE 19(a)] [ Kzt 19(b) & 20] “Et
At31March  At3IMarch At31March At31March At31March At3lMarch At31March  At31March
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2019 & 2018 2019 £ 2018 2019 & 2018 2019 & 2018
3B3IE 3B3H 3B3IH 3A3IH 3B3IH 3A3RA 3B3H 3A3A
BETT  ABTT BTt ABTh BTt B%Tt BTt AETR
Principal amount &< 6,000,000 6,000000 7,300,000 7,300000 10,000,000  10,000000 23,300,000 23,300,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn 40,833 1372584 1,478,206 1,092,167 589,598 440,351 2,108,637 2,905,102
at the reporting date
Wi AFTEERFRINF BMA
Accrued interest fEzT I 8 43,196 83,623 62,771 95,188 15,122 118419 181,689 297,230
6,084,029 1456,207 8,840,977 8,487,355 10665320 10,558,770 25,590,326 26,502,332
Less:non-current portion (6,000,0000 (6,000,000 (7,300,000  (7,300,000) (10,000,000) (10,000,000) (23,300,000) (23,300,000)
B BB
Current portion fEhE45 84,029 1,456,207 1,540,977 1,187,355 665,320 558,770 2,290,326 3,202,332
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE
STATEMENTS

9. Fixedincome instruments 9. EEARIE
The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar certificates of EEASTEREHESAME AFERZIH
deposits and bonds with maturity periods within five years from the date WETERERES  EHREBNRERSN T
of purchase. The investment yields at the reporting date were between 3.05% Z 3.18% @ « (ZF—/\fF: £ 1.88%
3.05% and 3.18% (2018: between 1.88% and 2.03%). F2.03% ZME) e
At 31 March 2019, the fixed income instruments held by the Group and HA RIZ-NEF=A=1+—H 5BLEERFE
are as follows: MEEASTEWNT :
The Group and HA
EBEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
AT T BETIT
Maturing within one year —F A% = 849,655
Maturing between one and five years —Z2 A REIH 799,552 -
799,552 849,655
The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit FSREESERANBE  ELEENF
quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the maximum SEXFERNE 30@) c BHREH  ZAMNE
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of these SRBRENE 300 A ELEENARER -
assets as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group does not hold any collateral as EENCRE A AR @A -
security.
10. Inventories 10. 78
The Group and HA
EBEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000
2019 3 A 31H 20184 3 B 31 H
BT T BT
Drugs Z% 1,157,659 1,128,752
Medical consumables BEESHFE R 199,554 191,557
General consumables —f&E#ER 20,104 22,906
1,377,317 1,343,215
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

11. Accounts receivable

RiF5EhaRbfaE

11. FEURBRSX

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HK$'000 HKS'000

2019 %3 A 31H 2018 3 A 31 H

AT T BETIT

Bills receivable [note 11(a)] FEUEREE [ izt 11(a)] 341,778 312,263

Accrued income [note 11(b)] BEETHA [ HizE 11(0)] 34,562 39,146

376,340 351,409

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses [nates 11(c) and 11(d)] (80,089) (71,787)
B TREMERIRAEHE [ 5L 1100 K 11(d)]

296,251 279,622

(@) Aging analysis of hills receivable is set out below:

FEUCRERIBRE A ITANT -

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000

20193 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H

BT T BETIT

Within 30 days 30 HA 215,138 187,223
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 49,141 47,626
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 12,583 24,597
Over 90 days #&3# 90 H 64,916 52,817
341,778 312,263

The Group's policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i) Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency services
are required to pay fees before services are performed.

(i) Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay deposit
on admission to hospital.

(iii) Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final hills are
sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled on discharge.

(iv) Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical fees
and charges for medical services provided on or after 1 July 2007.
The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of the outstanding
fees past due for 60 days from issuance of the hills, subject to a
maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill. An additional 10% of the
outstanding fees are imposed if the hills remain outstanding 90 days
from issuance of the hills, subject to a maximum additional charge
of HKS$10,000 for each bill.

=

Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be
considered for waiver of fees charged.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

R ERaR AT

1. BUERTE (78)

BHERERENBIRENRRITNT

The Group and HA
EBEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000

2019 %3 A31H 201843 A 31 H

BT T BETIT

Past due by 5 :

Within 30 days 30 B 174,352 144,680
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £260 H 33,002 32,656
Between 61and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 2,033 14,528
Over 90 days ##&48 90 H 6,771 1,736
216,158 193,600

Receivables that are past due but not impaired include outstanding debts
to be settled by government departments, charitable organisations
or other institutions for whom the credit risk associated with these
receivables is relatively low. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these halances.

Accrued income for hospital fees and charges represent contract assets,
which are recognised when the Group has provided services before the
debtors pay consideration or before payment is due.

At 31 March 2019, bills receivable of HK$125,620,000 (2018:
HKS118,663,000) were impaired by HK$80,089,000 (2018:
HKS71,787,000). The aging analysis of these receivables is as follows:

(c)

ARERERENBERSERBUTHA &
EEESE B REENRR - EEBLERTOS
ENEERREHAE - KEVRFEEMER
mAFEH o

BREENESTRABSNEE  EXBEER
AXRENERIBAREREE TR -

RIF-NFE=R=+—H % 125,620,000
IT (2B —/\4E : ## 118,663,000 7T ) HIFEUL
BB E S 80,089,000 TT ( ZB—/\F : B
71,787,000 7T ) * ELL R BB ANEREE DATAN TS

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

2019 %3 A 31H 2083831 H

BT BETIT

Within 30 days 30 B 40,786 42,543
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £260 H 16,139 14,970
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 10,550 10,069
Over 90 days #&3# 90 H 58,145 51,081
125,620 118,663
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

11. Accounts receivable (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for expected credit loss of accounts
receivable are as follows:

R ERaR AT

1. BUERTE (18)

BURSF A EREAEENEEHMT

The Group and HA
EBREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

HKS'000 HKS$'000

BE2019 F BZE 2018 4

3B 31 HILEE 3B 3 HIEE

BT BETIT

At the beginning of the year 44 71,787 63,949
Additional provision B0 57,535 62,955
Uncollectible amounts written off sE88HI R EIFRER (49,233) (55,117)
At the end of the year P44 80,089 71,787

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

(d)  The Group applies the simplified approach to provide expected credit
losses as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected credit
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The gross and net carrying amounts of the accounts receivable and
the lifetime expected credit losses analysis are as follows:

AHRER - RANEERRE DABKERTNA
REE - KEURFHEMERRFELR

d) KSEER (FAMBRSER) £ IRAEN
2IEBERRREETE  ERDEREYR
RRELEEFERNERRXL - At ERAE
BEX  BURACERERNEREREEA
BHEREIE - BUERRNRERENRIDFE
REEFESNRAERRAMIMNT

The Group and HA
EBRBER

Lifetime Weighted
Expected Average
Credit Loss Lifetime
Gross Carrying HKS$'000 Net Carrying Expected Credit
Amount BEEE Amount Loss Rate
HK$'000 HARY TR HA HK$'000 I
ARE#EE (SEEPS AREEE THHEAEF
AT BT BT BRE
At 31March 2019 2019 %3 A 31 H
Within 8 months 6 B AR 335,326 (43,809) 291,517 13%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 & 12 @A 14,451 (9,767) 4,684 68%
Over 12 months &8 12 @8 26,563 (26,513) 50 100%
376,340 (80,089) 296,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.

12.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

A5 ehaRbfaE

1. FEUERSR (78)

The Group and HA
EEREER

Lifetime Weighted
Expected Average
Credit Loss Lifetime
Gross Carrying HKS$'000 Net Carrying Expected Credit
Amount BEFE Amount Loss Rate
HK$'000 HAR9TEHA HK$'000 g
AREEE EREX AREFE TaHAfEH
AT T BT T BT T BRE
At 31 March 2018 2 2018 £3 A 31 H
Within 6 months 6 B2 A 322,087 (44,526) 277,561 14%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 £ 12 {8 A 13,081 (11,134) 1,947 85%
Over 12 months &8 12 @ A 16,241 (16,127) 114 99%
351,409 (71,787) 279,622

The lifetime expected credit loss balances disclosed above include
HKS54,181,000 (2018: HKS45,815,000) which were related to
receivables individually determined to be impaired. These mainly related
to non-eligible persons, the recoverability of which are considered to be
low after taking all possible debt recovery actions.

Other receivables

TR ENREFERNERERRANGS
BEEEL418100T(ZFE-NE:BE
45,815,000 7t ) £ BIR EREN KR ES
B IRERFHRERAL  BACKIAE
ARATBIAAFIRKARR  ERIIKEEERK -

12. HAtEUERTR

The Group and HA
EBEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HKS'000 HKS'000

20193 A 31H 208438 31H

BT T BT

Donations receivable FEYIEER 96,178 55,120

Interest receivable FEYF S 82,959 53,926

Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of expenditure 161,877

incurred on capital projects [note 12(a)]

B ESUREEA TR B SR EMGRIE [ iE 12()]

Others HEAth 89,408 84,069

268,545 354,992

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The balances mainly
represent outstanding debts to be settled by government departments,
charitable organisations or other institutions for whom the credit risk
associated with these receivables is relatively low. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 March 2019, advance funding received from the Government for
meeting the capital project costs in future periods was HK$263,219,000
and was recognised as current liahilities in note 16. Movements in the
balance with the Government for funding the expenditure incurred on
capital projects are set out in note 16(e).

Hit BRI EREEE B ERBREBG
BFY  AEERNHMORBRERNR B
BRERTS RIEERBAHAE - EREEN
BRANEERARRE LIS ARKKENARE
B - KREWRFFAEMERRIFER

RIZF-NE=A=1+—H  ESRLBFKZ
BUSZNBREATRERERAMNBLETR
& 263,219,000 7t KKz 165 AREE
& - B EATRIEB MR BTIERE
FHAMIEE 16(e) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

13. Deposits and prepayments

R ERaR AT

13. BEKRIAMNTOR

The Group
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
AT BETIT
Utility and other deposits AR EE R Efbize 26,870 26,608
Prepayments to Government departments RIEFIERFI T IR 96,487 91,874
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments (REGHI REMTENFIE 174,219 175671
297,576 294,153
HA
L=
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 B 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
AT BETIT
Utility and other deposits AR EE K Efbize 26,758 26,496
Prepayments to Government departments RIEFIERFITEITEIFRIE 96,487 91,874
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments (RE& W L HMTEAFIE 174,219 175671
297,464 294,041

14. Cash and bank balances

14, RE RIRITHEER

The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
20193 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
BT BETIT
Cash at bank and in hand ST M FHFES 715,476 787,213
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 3,458,943 5,470,274
[FRREIE B A EE =18 A HRITER
Cash and cash equivalents B&RIREEFE 4,174,419 6,257,487
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 15,097,206 10,492,992
RAREIE BB =18 A BITER
19,271,625 16,750,479

The cash and bank balances included bank deposits designated for
Minor Works Projects Fund and PPP Fund of HK$138,055,000 (2018:
HKS$1,389,049,000) and HKS$151,622,000 (2018: HKS73,161,000)
respectively. The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits is
between 0.001% and 3.00% (2018: 0.01% and 1.68%). These deposits have
an average maturity of 50 days (2018: 63 days).

At 31 March 2019, the Group and HA had undrawn banking facilities of
HK$1,350,000,000 (2018: HKS1,350,000,000).
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RE M THER R/ T RIEEES NALER
EESMIEERITHEH - DR 138055000
7o (ZF—/\EF 1 B 1,389,049000 7T ) B
151,622,000 7T ( ZF—/\&F: B#73,161,0007T ) °
RMRITHERNBERANER 0001% = 300% 2
B(ZZ—/\F:001% E 1.68% ) ELRE
FIHIEHAR S0OR (ZF—/\F 63 R) -

RIF-AF=RA=1—R KEREBERRD
FIHVIRTIR (F 8 R /B 1,350,000,000 7T (=&
—/\4F - 3% 1,350,000,000 7T ) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

15. Balance with Samaritan Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government injected
HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the Samaritan Fund,
which was established in 1950 hy resolution of the Legislative Council
for the purpose of providing financial assistance to needy patients.
As instructed by the Government, HK$4,000,000,000 was vested
immediately in the Samaritan Fund. The balance of HK$6,000,000,000
not immediately required by the Samaritan Fund was placed with the
Exchange Fund since 8 November 2012 by way of a credit facility entered
into between HA and HKMA for a fixed period of six years during which
time HA would not be able to withdraw the principal amount. As agreed
with HKMA, HA renewed the principal amount of HK$6,000,000,000
for another six years at its maturity on 8 November 2018. All the interest
earned up to 7 November 2018 of HK$1,66 1,549,000 was withdrawn and
transferred to the Samaritan Fund.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the cumulative
investment return up to 31 March 2019 was recorded together with the
principal amount as balance with Samaritan Fund, which is unsecured,
interest free and denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows:

The Group and HA

A5 ehaRbfaE

15, RIEH B SRR

ERE_R—=F=RA=t—HLZWBEE
BUS RIS R SR B <€)+ &% 10,000,000,000
T UXFESNEF BBENDESR
—NAFRERIUERRELY  BENRABT
ENRARKEDY REBGER REE
% 4,000,000,000 TR BRI AES M
B S R Bl B 3 Z 19 7% % 6,000,000,000 Tt -
REBERASERMINGERE AZ
E-_Ft-ANBBBANEES  FHE
ERANE - EILRHRE  BERTRRENEE
A& REBERESERNGE  ZFEEE
6,000,000,000 THAS R ZF—N\E+—AN
AEMRECNINERES - AHAF - BERE
PEEREE"F-/\GE+—- A CAMENES
1,661,549,000 LA S - W HAERHIBNDES -

ARBEERRFABBNIESHNREA £
BE_S-NE=R=T—HLEENRER
BOHRERAAS  SIEBBANDESHESR - &
FERREMRLEE  LUBTTREM -

HOBM R ESHEHFAITANT

SEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HK$'000

201943 A 31H 2083/ 31 H

BT T BT

Principal amount A% 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 40,833 1,372,584
HEBPTEERBRIA SMA

Accrued interest FE5HFIS 43,196 83,623

6,084,029 7,456,207

Less: non-current portion J& : FERENER S (6,000,000) (6,000,000)

Current portion fi&h#B45 84,029 1,456,207
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE

STATEMENTS
16. Creditors and accrued charges 16. BERAKREMGEH
The Group
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HK$'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 A 31H 2018 3 A 31 H
AT BETIT
Trade payables [note 16(a)] FEfFE S8R [ Mzt 16(a)] 710,287 631,624
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] /&1 & f R EMERFK [ Kzt 16(0)] 6,513,419 5,904,597
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals for capital - 447
projects [note 16(c)]
BB BB A B B A 1218 B AJERUA [ iEt 16(c)]
Current account with the Government [note 16(d)] 5,333,437 4,322,723
ST ERERE [ Mz 16(d)]
Advance funding received from the Government for meeting the expenditure 263,219
incurred on capital projects [note 16(e)]
P EIBT R E A T 215 B A R M TE Bk [ Mzt 16(e)]
12,820,362 10,859,391
HA
BEER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
20193 A 31H 201843 A 31 H
BT BT T
Trade payables [note 16(a)] BT E S8R [ KizE 16(a)] 710,287 631,624
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16(b)] /&2 f R AthAR 5K [ BizE 16(0)] 6,504,854 5,897,081
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals for capital - 447
projects [note 16(c)]
AU BB P T B A MIE Rt A T 1218 B AERUE [ fEE 16(c)]
Current account with the Government [note 16(d)] 5,333,437 4,322,723
SE 2 BMRARE [ FEE 16(d)]
Advance funding received from the Government for meeting the expenditure 263,219
incurred on capital projects [note 16(e)]
P EIBRt E A Ti21E B A R N TaC ik [ Mzt 16(e)]
Current account with a subsidiary 8,459 7,410
SN B HIE ERERE
12,820,256 10,859,285
(a)  Anaging analysis of trade payables is set out below: (a) ENEZRFMNERITNT
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HK$'000 HKS'000
20193 A 31H 2018 3 A 31 H
AT BETIT
Within 30 days 30 HA 656,986 603,890
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £60 H 18,726 22,382
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 18,762 3,029
Over 90 days &8 90 H 15,813 2,323
710,287 631,624
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

16. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued)

All trade payahles as at 31 March 2019 are expected to be settled within
one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows and banking
facilities for settlement of trade payables.

() Accrued charges and other payables of the Group and HA (b
included accrual for annual leave of HK$2,150,106,000 (2018:
HKS$2,022,356,000) and contract gratuity accrual of HKS1,781,162,000
(2018: HKS1,652,222,000).

() Movements in the contributions from the governing bodies of ex-  (c)
subvented hospitals for capital projects are as follows:

R ERaR AT

16. (RIEARENER (18)

_E-NEZR=T-HNENEZRIER
—ERRY - KEFERARBDRSLBITRE
BERNENEZRR -

SEREERNENERREIMREIBERK
FEBRMES 2,150,106,000 T (ZF—/\F :
B 2,022,356,000 T )+ LIRS E WM<
7 #1,781,162000 T ( ZF— /N F: B
1,652,222,000 5¢) ©

AR ERE A RER AT RER RERE
BN :

The Group and HA
EEREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000

HE 2019 F BZE 2018 4F

3B 31 HLEFE 3B 3 HIEEE

AT T BETIT

At the beginning of the year IA44]) 447 193

Contributions received from the governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals on 19,430 16,992

capital projects

AT EImHB B e E A TR IH B AENRIR

Amount incurred on capital projects E£A T8 BT H 78 (19,877) (16,738)

At the end of the year FAF#& - 44T

(d) The balance mainly included Government funding for designated  (d)
programmes or specific items that were already received and will be
recognised as income over the periods in which the related expenditure
isincurred and charged to the statement of income and expenditure.

(e) Movements in the balance with the Government for funding the  (e)
expenditure incurred on capital projects are as follows:

EREIRAEABFREIEEEFANEER
BB BLEEREERAXRERETAR
XARERFEFERELA

BREAEATREREBMSAXNBERERED
mE

The Group and HA
EEREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000

BE 2019 F BZE 2018 4F

3B 31 HILEE 3A3HILEE

BT T BETIT

At the beginning of the year 7 4F4]) 161,877 281,674
Government funding received on capital projects FtEA T 218 B UEI VTR T A K (2,804,109) (1,747,055)
Amount incurred on capital projects £ATRRIEE TS A 2,379,013 1,627,258
At the end of the year BR4E#% (263,219) 161,877
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

R ERaR AT

17. Deposits received 17. BliRE
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
BT T BETIT
Patient deposits [note 17(a)] IS AIRE [ FfizE 17(a)] 49,478 42,632
Other deposits [note 17(b)] Efthizs [ Mzt 17()] 342,045 302,601
391,523 345,233
(a) Patient deposits represent contract liabilities and mainly consist of ~ (a) WAREBENWEE  TZEEFEELIRER

deposits received from private patients and non-eligible persons on
admission to hospital services. The amounts are recognised before the
Group provides services. Except for the amounts averpaid which will be
refunded to patients and deposits for privately purchased medical items,
the full balance is recognised as income in the statement of income and
expenditure in the next financial year according to the accounting policy
set out in nate 2(e).

(b)  Other deposits mainly consist of deposits from contractors which are

held as securities for due performance of the contractors' warranties,
undertaking and obligations under contracts.

18. Death and disability liabilities

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to death
and disahility benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the recurrent
subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

18.

ARFHREBALTARERXANEZS B
RSB RURERER - RY ZANHRS
REGREA  LREEEBFHEBENRS 28
HEREHE 2(e) NEFHRRN T —EMKE
EEWXEERPEBR/BA

HitZe T RORARBESE  FRAREGEY
BTANARIRE « AR R EEHNER -

RCRIGERMN ST

RERAGN  BERNEENZAXTLER
BAMRE - Z B AEEREEBTNEE LS
BT LR

BESERTLERNFENT

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000

2019 %3 A 31H 20184 3 A 31 H
AT BETIT

Present value of funded obligations JFEETMIRE 294,747 261,591
Fair value of plan assets s & B ENANEE (21,264) (3,615)
273,483 257,976
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as follows:

R ERaR AT

18. AT RIZERMTIE (48)

EEERECHEEZBNT

The Group and HA
EBREER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000

HE2019 F BZE 2018 F

3B 31 HLLEFE 3B 3 BILEE

BT T BETIT

At the beginning of the year 7 44]) 261,591 263,757
Current service cost IR{TARIEFAZ 38,235 40,334
Interest cost F| SFxZ 5,330 4,375

Benefits paid 125! (9,394) (6,405)

Remeasurement of disability liability BEEFEEEH £ 2,771 (11,356)

Remeasurement of death liability ZE BN EEEHE (3,786) (29,114)
At the end of the year FAF#& 294,747 261,591

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

AEBENARBEREMT -

The Group and HA
SEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
HBE2019 F BZE 2018 &
3B 31 HLEE 3A3IHILEE
BT BT
At the beginning of the year IA44]) 3,615 10,339
Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 18,238 (8,747)
FHEIEEMNRE (REERBKA )
Employer contributions B3 45k 8,805 8,428
Benefits paid E1&F! (9,394) (6,405)
At the end of the year IR4E#% 21,264 3,615

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and the
current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2021. The fair
value of plan assets was taken as the present value of the expected
death benefits with respect to the obligations covered by the policy.

EEREBERBASRRARERIIETEN
RE BITRBAEERAE_Z_—FtA
=1+—A - FEEENAREERRREIEE
FEURMNEENRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income and
expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive income have
been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation and are as follows:

R ERaR AT

18. ACKBEIBHEE (18)

THRREBEMESHYEFRGKRZEER
Kira 2R R IFEBRIRER |

The Group and HA
SEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HKS$'000 HKS'000
HE2019 F BZE 2018 4
3H 31 HILEE 3A3HIEEE
BT BETIT
Current service cost RITARIEFZ 38,235 40,334
Interest cost FI S Fx 5,330 4,375
Remeasurement of disability liability SRR ETEH 12 2,771 (11,356)
Total, included in staff costs [note 24] #&&t (BFEEE TEAR ) [ iz 24] 46,336 33,353
Remeasurement of death liability ZECBH EEEH & (3,786) (29,114)
Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (18,238) 8,747
SHEIBEMAZE (REEFIRKA)
Total, included in other comprehensive income #8&t (BEEEMRAUERA ) (22,024) (20,367)

Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as

BERERANEEBRERRZMNT ¢

follows:
The Group and HA
EEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HBE 2019 F BZE 2018 4F
3B 31 HILEE 3A3HILEE
% %
Discount rate B3R 2 1.70 2.10
Assumed rate of future salary increases fRE R R E &L 1R 4,00 4,00

The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded
obligations as at 31 March 2019 would have increased/(decreased) as a

THAIMRREUT EZREERRZANE  FH
—_FNEFZRA=T-HEIEREREREN/

result of the following changes in the principal actuarial assumptions: (B )
Increasein Decreasein
50 basis points 50 basis points
HKS'000 HKS$'000
FIEF 50 2HF FIpE 50 27
BT T BT
Discount rate BRI X (16,595) 18,219
Assumed rate of future salary increases fRs& KRS 18 17,551 (16,106)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

19. Deferred income

The Group and HA
EEREER

(a)

A5 ehaRbfaE

19. SEHEYTEE

Minor Works
Designated Projects Fund
donation fund [Note 19(a)] PPP Fund
[Note 2(f)] HKS$'000 [Note 19(b)]
HKS$'000 NEUT#2 HKS$'000 Total
EEREESE BHEEE DREREEE HK$'000
[ Bt&E 2(9)] [ Bz 19(a)] [ BftEE 19(b)] &t
AT T BT T AT T AT
AtTApril2017 A 2017E4 81 H 599,674 10,678,620 503,986 11,782,280
Additions during the year SR 10 47,990 - 3,575 51,565
Interest earned FTER & - 298,854 334,665 633,519
Transfers to deferred income - capital (1,821) (1,821)
subventions and capital donations
IR — EARHB R E AR
Transfers to consolidated statement of (92,618) (1,202,525) (228,780) (1,523,923)
income and expenditure
R RAWIER
At 31 March 2018 2 2018 £ 3 A 31 H 555,046 9,773,128 613,446 10,941,620
Additions during the year A 291,091 - 6,254 297,345
Interest earned FTER & 370,120 431,860 801,980
Transfers to deferred income - capital (5,336) (5,336)
subventions and capital donations
HEADRE W — EARHB N E AR
Transfers to consolidated statement of (194,326) (1,230,703) (261,154) (1,686,183)
income and expenditure
ERATRAUIEE R
At 31 March 201974 201943 A 31 H 651,811 8,907,209 790,406 10,349,426
Minor Works Projects Fund () MEIREBE=R

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to HA
for minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public
hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual block
funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund - Improvement
Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers minor works projects
under five planned programmes, with costing not more than HKS75
million for each individual item. The five programmes are facility
rejuvenation programme, capacity enhancement programme, safe
engineering programme, universal accessibility programme and regular
maintenance/minor works and preparatory works for major capital
works projects.

REZE_2-—NE=A=1+—HINFREE
A BT TE X B 13,000,000,000 7T (2 B
8083MMIET ) FTEER » DIt ET/NETRE
BE  WEAYERRDETHBRRSE - EE—
AUBRERESEZRERATEREES -
RETENERER (2B 8100MX) » MikH
BEEEETEELRABE 7,500 ETH
NERETR - A EEEREEEE R
BERAE  Z2HMETE  MARAAGER
1TatEl > DIREREE / N TREEZET R
EITEmIIE -
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19.

(a)

(b)

20.

Deferred income (Continued)

Minor Works Projects Fund (Continued)

As approved by the Government, HA has placed HK$7,300,000,000
with the Exchange Fund over a period of six years since 11 April 2014
while the remaining funds have been managed internally and invested
within the ambit of HA's prevailing investment guidelines. The approved
grant, together with the related investment income, will be fully used
to meet the costs of the minor warks projects in the coming 10 years
or so starting from April 2014. For the use of funds, HA will continue to
seek prior approval from the Government for each individual item of
expenditure to be funded by the one-off grant, as has been the practice
for the use of funds under Subhead 8100MX.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised non-
current items.

PPP Fund

The Government allocated to HA a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 on
31 March 2016 as an endowment fund (note 20) to generate investment
returns for regularising and enhancing ongoing clinical PPP programmes,
as well as developing new clinical PPP programmes in future. HA can
make use of the investment returns together with the remaining balance
of the one-off designated funding provided previously to support the
ongoing operation of the PPP programmes commencing from April 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Government provided
recurrent subvention of HK$6,254,000 (2018: HKS$3,575,000) to HA for
pay adjustment of staff deployed on PPP programmes. The subvention
was transferred to the PPP Fund and was recognised in the deferred
income — PPP Fund when the subvention was received.

Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund

As approved by the Government, the endowment fund of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been placed with the Exchange Fund for a
period of six years since 12 July 2016.
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19.

(a)

(b)

20.

T (1])

METRERES (R)

BEREBIE  R_F-NEN/+—H&
# & 7,300,000,000 TEASMEES - BB
F - BREANGEE  TREBERRTNEE
REETRE - BREERBREMNSBA - #
MU B ZF—MOEN A BRRNTHER/N
DTRRARMY - HRESHNER  BERSL
RBAERSE 8100MX B FESMMUL » B
BE—RBERENNEERIAE FEERK
JFHLAE

N TEREESHFBEIRZBRIFRBER -

DIEHEESR

RIF-—XREZA=T—H BAREERHK
FO&# 10,000,000,000 TR BAES (MiE
20)  MHAFERERRUEREEMNBRILFE
HETHRARATLEWES DRI REHETH
HIEHEl - BERAARKRERR - BRBUFZH
BTN RILEEERNGEES  FEZER_F
—NFOARETHALERERE -

RBEE_F-AE=A=+—HIENTHEE
B ATREE RIIEMEHE 6254000 T (ZF
— J\4E ¢ #1% 3,575,000 T ) KE MR B
EAFE BT BB E M AR - BEME
REEIREREALERERES  UHRARE
T — ARERIEES ©

NLEREEREE

B ERERB _S—A"EFtR+HEH
71 10,000,000,000 TTHBAESFRIMNEE
& REAE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

21.

22.

Deferred income - capital subventions and
capital donations

A5 ehaRbfaE

21, BN — EXHBIREAIRIE

The Group and HA
EBEREER

Capital
subventions Capital donations
[Note 2(g)] [Note 2(f)]
HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
BB BEAEE HK$'000
[ KtzE 2(q)] [ KizE 2(0)] &t

AT T AT T AT
At1April2017A 2017481 H 4,541,263 1,275,317 5,816,580
Additions during the year £ R0 1,213,430 145,288 1,358,718
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 1,821 1,821
RN TREEES
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (930,094) (138,338) (1,068,432)

expenditure
R RANS AR R
At 31March 2018 X 2018 £ 3 A 31 H 4,826,420 1,282,267 6,108,687
Additions during the year SR 10 1,514,621 105,705 1,620,326
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 5,336 5,336
ERRNETREEES
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (1,083,013) (143,947) (1,226,960)
expenditure

HRERAWMSEER
At 31March 201974 201943 A 31 H 5,263,364 1,244,025 6,507,389
Designated fund - Home Loan Interest 22. IBEEE — BEEHF SR

Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an interest
subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong Kong. Eligibility
under the scheme is primarily determined by the employee's length of
service. The amount of subsidy generally represents half of the interest
rate payable by the eligible employee up to a maximum of 6% per annum.
However, eligibility and the maximum amount of subsidies granted are
subject to a number of restrictions as further defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention from the
Government. A designated fund has been set aside for the scheme and
is maintained in designated bank and investment accounts. At 31 March
2019, the designated bank and investment accounts were included under
cash and bank balances whereas they were included under both cash
and bank and fixed income instruments balances at 31 March 2018.

Tl

REWRNE  KERGERESRE-BANE
2R BBMAERERERR - EREIZRE
RESHRBFE - 2SR —RAGERES
BRMSXRN—F ERABE6E% - FNB &
B2 R B RAR GBI LR ERRE

ZBREEREBBENNKESEMTUE
B - SRR —SiEEES  BUEINERER
FISZEEANEERES - WENEERITRE
FO -NZZF—NE=R=1+—H ' BERTE
EFOSIARSREBTHESRA  MRZ—N\F
ZA=T—HAMARSERBITEEEAST
BB o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE

STATEMENTS

23. Hospital/clinic fees and charges 23.

The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied in
accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the Government
has established a set of policies and procedures on granting fee waivers
to the needy patients, the hospital/clinic fees and charges recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of income and expenditure
are stated net of such waivers. The amount of hospital/clinics fees and
charges waived for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HKS$1,030,496,000 (2018: HKS874,210,000).

Hospital/clinics fees and charges (net of waivers) are derived over time
and at a point in time in the following categories:

Bl / 2EFINE

SEFRENBERE - ZREBRATTERAIMK
EXMUIER - ARBHEH —ERTRE
BRERAZRBRNBRRER  RAERS
WX R RPERRBANSER / 2EMEE
EHNRTELEREAE - ERE_F—NF=H
ZT—HIERHMREER  BRRHNELR / DR
FTURE Bt 1,030,496,000 7t ( ZF—//\4F -
7Bk 874,210,000 7T ) °

TIBERER / DEMEE (BENRELEE)
E—BRERNSAER—FRES

The Group
%1

Over time At apointin time Total
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
E—EREFEA EX—BFE ot
AT T BT T BT T

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 2019 % 3 B 31 HitFE
Inpatient fees {FFrUE 780,127 = 780,127
Outpatient fees P92 4 & - 1,345,706 1,345,706
Itemised charges A TEWE 114,443 2,376,139 2,490,582
Other medical fees HinEa &2 1,259 95,672 96,931
895,829 3817517 4,713,346

The Group
£

Over time Atapointin time Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
E—EXRFREIRN EE MR #ast
AT T BT T AT

For the year ended 31 March 2018 X 2018 &£ 3 A 31 HiLEE
Inpatient fees /U E 806,995 - 806,995
Outpatient fees P24 & - 1,305,333 1,305,333
[temised charges A RUE 115,058 1,969,471 2,084,529
Other medical fees Hth s FRUs 2 1,493 88,846 90,339
923,546 3,363,650 4,287,196
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

24. Staff costs

The Group
£5

(a)

A5 ehaRbfaE

24. BTRA

For the year ended For the year ended
31March 2019 31 March 2018
HK$'000 HKS'000
HE 2019 F BZE 2018 4
3B 31 HILEE 3A3HIEE
AT BETIT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 45,170,241 41,778,137
HEA S LEMG I EERA
Post-employment benefits B Bi& @R :
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 24(a)] 2,733,115 2,603,983
- BirE R RABSFEIfK [ MiE 24()]
- Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 24(b)] 753,748 697,205
- RBSET IR [ M 24(0)]
Death and disability benefits [note 18] st TR &5t@A [ Kzt 18] 46,336 33,353
48,703,440 45,112,678
HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS") (a) EBREERAREEE

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme was
established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed and Rules
dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (‘ORSQ").

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment are
eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The HAPFS is a
defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation to
contributions except that a minimum death benefit equating to twelve
months' salary applies on the death of a member. However, when the
member's account balance is less than his twelve months' scheme
salary, the difference will be contributed by the Death and Disabhility
Scheme of the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at 15%
of each member's monthly basic salary. The percentage of benefit
entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or retirement,
increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2019, the total membership was 28,669 (2018: 29,073). The
scheme's net asset value as at 31 March 2019 was HK$68,393,082,000
(2018: HKS67,642,644,000).

'BREBRARSAE  R—RAEHRTGE -
RUHERRE_FT=F—H_THIANE
ARNERR  R_FF=FNR-HRILEF
HEET  URE (FRBRRAFEGRN) 5

18 fRatf -

REPERERERERGRANES  BRE
BENESURN "BREBRABSHE, -
'EREERARSHE  R—ERTEMHRTE
RARBRTREKEAMREREEN T _ERHF
SNREXTEMNI - FIEANBHRLETRR
E o AiB - ERENREERERENZEI T
TEAFEFESRE ZERASHEENT
TRBEESRHE -

SENBALEHFBEABEER 15% - &
ERERBSURAE I ENA S L XBEREBEFE
1B e

RIB-NE=ZA=1+—H ' =r8X% 28,669
ZHRE (ZB—/\F 29,073 %) :tEINEE
SB{E A5 68,393,082,000 T (ZB—/\F :
S 67,642,644,000 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

24.

(b)

25.

Staff costs (Continued)

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS")

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master trust schemes. HA
permanent employees can choose between the HAPFS and the MPFS
while contract and temporary employees are required to join the MPFS
unless otherwise exempted.

The Group's contributions to MPFS are determined according to each
member's terms of employment. Members' mandatory contributions are
fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2019, the total membership was 59,435 (2018: 55,741). During
the financial year ended 31 March 2019, total members' contributions
were HK$640,035,000 (2018: HK$588,864,000). The net asset value as
at 31 March 2019, including assets transferred from members' previous
employment, was HK$9,676,861,000 (2018: HKS$9,096,115,000).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital supplies,
non-capitalised project expenditure and other administrative expenses.
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, other operating expenses
included an accrual for auditor's remuneration of HK$1,950,000 (2018:
HKS$1,950,000).
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RIFSERaRMEE

24.

(b)

29.

BTmA (&)

MHNEAREEE

R (REMEATBSHBGRE)  SEMAER
ErtatE  RBIESRUBHIMEATRSHE - BE
REERENEESN "BREB/ARSH
B, 3 TRAMAEESE - REEGRS
BHNREREERSM TRNEARSE -

SEY TRHMAESEE IR RESE
HEMRAGRATRE - REXRFERTEER
A% 5% LI A B 1,500 TRLR -

RIZE-NEZA=1+—H8 - stE8HHE 59,435
ZHE (ZE—N\E 55741 8) BBEZ
F-NE=ZA=+—HUEZVBREERN K&
Mt R 28 A 18 640,035,000 5T (ZF—N\
£ @ Btk 588,864,000 T ) e RZFE—HE=H
=1+—HB  FEMEEFE  BEKELIBIM
HERANEE BB 9,676,861,000T (ZF
— \£ : #1% 9,096,115,000 75 ) °

Hit&E X

Hit e BRXBEMAZRR BRYE  FE
AMRERXREMTERS - BE_F—NEF
ZR=t—RIZHBREE HtEERXBRE
FE 5t R B A Bl <2 75 1,950,000 5t (ZF— N\
£F 1 511,950,000 7T ) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

26. Remuneration of Members of the Board and

Five Highest Paid Executives

No Board members are remunerated for the services provided in the
capacity as Board members.

The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which comprises
basic salaries and other short term employee benefits and post-
employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs for the year, is as
follows:

A5 ehaRbfaE

26. REMEROBREFHITHAER

i<

FEHERERENALIHZERUNESH
RERIBMENME

FANETIHABBEXNFUTAEERH
TBRAENMSE - EREFAESFHEREME
HREEANLEBEER

For the year ended
31 March 2019
HKS'000
BE 2019 F
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A 3 HLEFE
R / ITIHA B A AT
Chief Executive 1TEUfE%k 6,261
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 21aB &4
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East)* & B B * 5,550
Dr Che Chung LUK BEEIEEE A
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) JiEE BRI 2 5,550
DrChiYuen LO EEEEE
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) # SRR Bt BB E: 5,127
DrSu Vui LO ZREEAE
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon East) J1EESREAiB#EE: 5,076
Dr Kam Tim TOM ZdgiR B4
27,564

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to performance.
*Dr LUK transferred from Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) to Cluster Chief Executive
(Hong Kong East) with effective from 1 October 2018.

i | FrRTTRARLREIRKRE BN A TR
CESRELREREEARERE  R"F—/\G+A—HEEE
BEREHRIEE -

For the year ended
31 March 2018
HKS'000
HZE 2018 £
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A 3 HLEE
REFRAL / (THASE AT T
Chief Executive fTBU&zk 6,018
Dr Pak Yin LEUNG 2iag84
Director (Cluster Services) BRI 18 2 5618
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG RZBFE4
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & i@ 12 & 5335
Dr Che Chung LUK PEEIEEE 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) /18 HrE iR &S 5,334
DrChiYuen LO EEEEE
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East) i SR B E 5318
Dr Chor Chiu LAU 212541884
27,623

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to performance.

i | FTETTRABMAREIRR R AN A TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

27. Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group include
the following:

(@) HA has a number of contracts with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (“EMSD") of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, electrical,
mechanical, air-conditioning, building services and other services (e.g.
capital and improvement works) to the Group. The amounts incurred for
these services for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HKS1,783,379,000 (2018: HKS1,533,192,000).

()  HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide
serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and other
eligible persons with the services and facilities at all public hospitals
and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates as prescribed in the
Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year ended 31 March 2019,
revenue foregone in respect of medical services provided to these
persons amounted to HK$463,476,000 (2018: HK$424,620,000). The
cost of such services has been taken into account in the Government's
subvention to the Group.

(c)  Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives,

Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.

Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown below:

RIFSERaRMEE

21.

(a)

BRI A TR %

SEEBMALAENERRZ5E

BERARGHREIRET LY RNGH A
ZEASERGENEEL—RETIERE
BO B =R BTRBREMRE (W
EXTREREIR) BE_F-—NE=A
=T AL BREEAGRRE S KHTE
1 1,783,379,000 ;T (ZF — /\F : B
1,533,192,000 T ) °

BERAEBUGIILY % RRBIMERAATE
& HEERNZXBRAMTEGERALIURE
KB ABEROMTRBEREAIBRRDE
PRI At - BE_F—AE=A=1—R
e HBEE  RILRALARENERRE
BN R IRR B 463,476,000 T (ZF
— )\ : B 424,620,000 ¢ ) * BELRENE
FERRAEBT R REREEA -

TEEEAEHM
IREEASREREOREERE  BORE

EEEZEBOAL EERTHHAR  BRE
& BMELMNEEEMMNAES -

TEEBAEHFMAEANT -

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

HK$'000 HKS'000

BE 2019 F BZE 2018 4F

3B 31 HiLFE 3B 3 HIEEE

BT T BETIT

Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits E£4%& kH g HEE =7 67,070 66,610
Post-employment benefits BEREER 6,643 6,393
73,713 73,003

(d)  Other significant related party transactions with the Government include
annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 21) and designated
funds (notes 19 and 22). Details of transactions relating to the Group's
retirement schemes are included in note 24.

(e)  Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2018 and 2019

are disclosed in notes 8, 12,13, 15, 16 and 20. The current account with a
subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL RIFS R EE
STATEMENTS

28. Net cash generated from/(used in) operating ~ 28. &&E&EFT15 / (P ) IREFER
activities

The Group
%0

For the year ended
31 March 2018
For the year ended HKS'000
31 March 2019 (Restated)
HKS'000 BZE 2018 F
BE2019 F 3B 3 BIEEE
3B 31 HILEE BETIT
BT (Z|4t)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year A& / (E512) 1,445,523 (841,025)
Investment income & &M (427,082) (243,980)
Interest for Minor Works Projects Fund /N TRRIEEESFIS 19,233 36,576
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,230,703) (1,202,525)
EAE/ N TREEES A
Interest for PPP Fund AR ERIEESFE 325,073 3,330
Income transferred from PPP Fund B B AT EREESZ WA (261,154) (228,780)
Capital subventions for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,519,957 1,215,251
W2 ~ W R BRI EECEAREED
Capital donations for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 105,705 145,288
D2 ~ Was DB R BB EAIRHE
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (1,226,960) (1,068,432)
EIEEAREE R EARBE A
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 10,656 25574
HEME « BENERNEFEESS
Depreciation and amortisation $7& K4 1,216,305 1,042,858
Increase in death and disability liabilities 6T R/SEBRIE L0 37,531 24,925
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income MEfEU RN / CGRA ) 97,683 (42,874)
Increase in inventories &0 (34,102) (46,733)
Decrease in loans receivable FEYERURA 800 936
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEUERFR (38H0) / B (16,629) 46,616
Decrease in other receivables EEKERF RS 115,480 149,479
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments & & FEFIE (3840 ) / B4 (3,423) 29,452
Increase in creditors and accrued charges EEA R ERE BN 1,960,971 143,613
Increase in deposits received E¥dREE N 46,290 49776
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 3,701,154 (760,675)
SETEME/ (FR) BeF8
29. Funds held in trust 29. E5tE
At 31 March 2019, Health Care and Promotion Scheme of HK$10,910,000 RIZ-—NE=A=1T—H EBELUGETESK
(2018: HKS18,637,000) was held in trust for the Government but not R ARTEREBE 10,910,000 T (ZF—/\F:
included in the financial statements. 751 18,637,000 7T ) M2 ERETE R AR5t # -

EERBARIAMEREKA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

30. Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust made donations totalling HK$36,601,000 (2018:
HKS$94,042,000) to the following institutions:

RiF5EhaRbfaE

30. REEAEREHEEETEEN

1REE

BE S NE-A=T-HLENYREE
N BEEEQLEECEESHATIIHE
BH B 36,601,000 8 (ZF—/\F : Bk
94,042,000 T ) :

HKS$'000

AT

Queen Elizabeth Hospital FFIi{AERT 17,480
Tai Po Hospital K#EERr 11,329
Enhanced Home Renal Replacement Therapy Programme (Various hospitals) REZEN&E] (REERR) 2,250
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) BE & ZBES 2] (RRER) 1,444
Wong Tai Sin Hospital E=A{1LERE 1,158
United Christian Hospital E&## & B 955
Kowloon Hospital J18EER 897
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 28325518 B 880
Princess Margaret Hospital #5521kt 208
36,601

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

A5 ehaRbfaE

31. Net proceeds from fund raising activities 31. Bt EigHZ e AR BHET IS
under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP") EITEFUEENFFRITA
granted by the Social Welfare Department
The net proceeds from fund raising activities under PSP granted by the ERRTeRAEREARENTUBERE
Social Welfare Department of the Government during the stated period PRETEFEBMEFRANT :
are set out below:

Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HKS'000
Institution N:GEE Purpose Period Covered FUHA
g BEIE BHY HEEE BT
Alice Ho Miu Ling 2018/075/1  Toraise funds for improvement of the 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 140
Nethersole Hospital quality of patient care services
RS AT B A4 R Bt EXAESERARBER
Bradbury Hospice 2017/212/1  Toraise funds for patient care 16/9/2017-15/9/2018 15
AEBEEERL EXAERARH
Caritas Medical Centre ~ 2017/105/1  Toraise funds for patient services 1/5/2017-30/4/2018 32
FRZER EXRERARE
Castle Peak Hospital 2018/082/1  Toraise funds for mental health education 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 20
SILER activities
EXRAFRHERAEED
Cheshire Home, Shatin 2017/149/1  Toraise funds for healthcare services 1/7/2017-30/6/2018 82
WHREKEER EXAFEERRE
Grantham Hospital 2018/026/1  Toraise funds for improving patient services 1/2/2018-31/1/2019 19
BENMER 2018/150/1  of Grantham Hospital 1/7/2018-31/1/2019 2
EXAESEEELBRRR RS
Haven of Hope Hospital ~ 2018/076/1  To raise funds for services by the Haven of 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 30
BEER Hope Hospital
EXAFEEERRNRE
Hong Kong Buddhist 2018/017/1  Toraise funds for the purchase of medical 1/2/2018-31/1/2019 113
Hospital instruments/ equipment and office
BB EER equipment, improvement of hospital
premises and supporting patient related
activities
BEBRERNMNIATRE  IEBRRER
RNEERE
North District 2017/302/1  Toraise funds for North District Hospital 1/12/2017-30/11/2018 68
Hospital Charitable Charitable Foundation so as to support
Foundation North District Hospital inimproving the

TtREREEETES

physical and mental health of the public

in the community and to promote health
education, medical education and research
EFRE TEERESETES ) DR
BERHEHEALRA TS BRBHEE -
WRERERE - BERENHE

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2 B% & 32 /5 % & 2018-19



n2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

31. Net proceeds from fund raising activities
under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP")

granted by the Social Welfare Department

(Continued)

RiF5EhaRbfaE

31. R E e ARBETAIE
ETRIEEAERAA (1)

Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HK$'000
Institution UNESE-E Purpose Period Covered FUWA
Hig PRI B iR BHY HERRE BBt
Our Lady of Maryknoll 2018/066/1  Toraise funds for improvement of patient 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 50
Hospital service
EHER EXAERE AR ANRE
Prince of Wales 2017/194/1  Toraise funds for healthcare services of the 1/9/2017-31/8/2018 142
Hospital Charitable Prince of Wales Hospital
Foundation EFRFRBITH T B SRR
BRI EBRESET
%
Queen Mary Hospital 2018/079/1  Toraise funds for hospital service 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 46
BEER 2018/156/1  enhancement 1/7/2018-31/3/2019 23
EXAFRA BRRE
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu 2018/064/1  Toraise funds for volunteer services, 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 70
Kin Hospitals patient related activities and improvement
YA K EPERERT of hospital service
EXAEELIRE - MAEBRBEBRRE
Shatin Hospital 2017/295/1  Toraise funds for developing patient service 1/12/2017-30/11/2018 [
b A E& EXAERRRARE
Tai Po Hospital 2018/065/1  Toraise funds for Improvement of the 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 28
RIFEERT quality of patient care services
EXAERERARBER
The Hospital Authority ~ 2018/080/1  To raise funds for The Hospital Authority 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 349
Charitable 2018/123/1  Charitable Foundation in supporting its 14/5/2018-31/3/2019 117
Foundation 2018/228/1  work to promote healthy living, subsidise 1/10/2018-31/3/2019 -
BEREEREZZES the medical expenses of the needy patients,
support activities of patient groups,
promote health education and develop
volunteer services
EFAEIREREERESESNIE 8
FEHEERREE  EhERRAINERER
BB AMBROEE « EERRABUNER
HE LR
The Pamela Youde 2017/206/1  Toraise fund for enhancing the services of 1/9/2017-31/8/2018 313
Nethersole Eastern 2018/274/1  Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 8/11/2018-17/11/2018 1,523
Hospital Charitable or any other non-profit making hospitals/
Trust medical facilities in Hong Kong
R ER AT EER EXAERARRLERABITRERNEHE
REETESD HASEAFIRR / BREENRBER
The Princess Margaret ~ 2017/296/1  To raise funds for Princess Margaret 26/11/2017-25/11/2018 12
Hospital Charitable Hospital for enhancement of patient
Trust services quality
BRIBhEEES EXAERABEIERRARBER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

31. Net proceeds from fund raising activities

w

1.

under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP")
granted by the Social Welfare Department

(Continued)

A5 ehaRbfaE

EHBEN RN ABSNATR
ETEHERSTIMA (B)

Net
Proceeds
PSP No. HK$'000
Institution UNEEES Purpose Period Covered FUA
e PRI B iR =]z HESE BT
The Queen Elizabeth 2017/331/1  Toraise funds for supporting research 1/1/2018-31/3/2019 140
Hospital Charitable into the improvement and development of
Trust medicine at Queen Elizabeth Hospital
BRI AEREEETE EXAERERBRFARIVAERMEEERE
& IfF
Tseung Kwan O Hospital  2017/226/1  To raise funds for patient's benefit and 25/9/2017-24/9/2018 7
HEERERT enhancement of hospital services
EXAERARH R BRRE
Tuen Mun Hospital 2017/132/1  Toraise funds for: 1/6/2017-31/5/2018 19
BB (I) Patient benefits / services uses;
(Il) Health and diseases education;
(Il Community Services Centre;
(IV) Medical research and development
projects for the betterment of the
community
ERME:
() WATERI / BR75
() BERFEFHE
()t @R 5
(V) BRM AR ZRAZUHEME
United Christian 2018/083/1  Toraise funds for service improvement of 1/4/2018-31/3/2019 69
Hospital United Christian Hospital
EBHHEER EXAEREEBRH A BRNRE
Yan Chai Hospital 2018/020/1  Toraise funds for the services and facilities 1/2/2018-31/1/2019 451
CEER of Yan Chai Hospital

EXRECERRNRB IR

The net proceeds received from fund raising activities under PSP were
accounted for in the designated donation fund in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii).

REHEE 2(06) IS st BOR - BRARER
FABETETESAMBHZRATIAEER
BESA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

32. Commitments

At 31 March 2019, the Group and HA had the following commitments:

R ERaR AT

32.

AiE

R_BE—NE=B=1+—H  EEKEEREL
TRZAE

(a) Capital commitments (a) BEFEE
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000
2019 %3 A31H 201843 A 31 H
BT T BETIT
Authorised but not contracted for EERIEERTTZN 11,266,070 6,233,590
Contracted for but not provided E&T 2 #BAREE 19,647,679 8,801,278
30,913,749 15,034,868
The capital commitments disclosed above include (i) costs to be FAFTFIMERZERRE () B EREYE
capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible assets; (ii) WELRLBIENVEEER () AFEEARL
expenditure not meeting the capitalisation policy and are to be charged RENBRARTEERNEL K i) REH
to the statement of income and expenditure; and (iii) amounts to be & 2(0)0) Tt 25T ECR » BERKBUE KA
incurred by HA for undertaking the building works projects on behalf of BHEREAMERTRETREEMSNE
the Government and governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals as set e
out in the accounting policy note 2(q)(i).
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEHSKEE

At 31 March 2019, the Group and HA had commitments for future
minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

RIF-NE=A=1—R SEXEERBR
ER TR BN AT HEEEEE ZRK
RIENFURIE

The Group and HA
EBRBER

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

HK$'000 HKS'000

20193 A 31H 201843 A 31 H

BT BETIT

Buildings and equipment EF K&/

Within one year —ERHim 63,027 65,368
Between one and five years —Z RF A 52,453 87,767
115,480 153,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

33. Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance.

34. Contingent liabilities

Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements after
reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into account legal
advice received.

35. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year' presentation.

36. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
26 September 2019.

A5 ehaRbfaE

33.

34.

35.

36.

AL

BEREZ (BREZRGEM) BERRHHE > &L
EFHBIRER -

BARRIE

R AHRBRARRERNRL - WREAFE
BER  HUBERRCFHRHNER -

HEHF

ETUREFESL  LREAEEZESA
# o

RIS ERZRAYEE

AUBREER_F-NEAA_TABREERE
ERKEES -
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Appendix 1
Bitsx 1

Membership of the Hospital Authority

EREIREE

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2018-19

Name 2018-2019 £ Committee participation in 2018-19*

w4 HE2ERERE 20182019 FEBHNEES S *

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, GBS, JP 13/15 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC

Chairman, HA 2BRE TREEENESEEREREETR

2ECHR

BLEERLE

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS 8/9 Chairman of HRC, Member of EC, EEC and MSDC (all up to

(up to 30.11.2018) 30.11.2018); HGC Chairman of Tuen Mun Hospital

BRERsest ANERZEEIRE  THEES  EREEREZEGRER

(BZ 2018411 H307) REBREESGHE (2HFE 20184 11 H30H ) TP
BRRERERF

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 14/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health BERBEREZEGNE

BREEEL

HEEER

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, 5/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Prince of

SBS, JP Wales Hospital

BRE e ANEREZER  BERBRRZSGRPREEZEGNE
BRI EERE s REGNE

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching 9/15 Member of ITGC and MTB; Chairman of HRAC; HGC Member

BRELLT of Shatin Hospital
BERRERBEEREZEERPAREZEERE | BEEEHNA
ZEEIR  VHEREAREESNE

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP 6/6 Member of FC, HRC, MSDC and MTB (all from 11.12.2018)

(from 1.12.2018) MBEEE ANEREES BRERBZRRZEGNHPAKRR

SEIRE A ZEEHE (2 20184127 11 HiEE)

(20184128 1 HE)

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP 10/15 Vice-Chairman of SSDC (from 1.12.2018); Member of ITGC and

FXERE MTB; Chairman of KRAC (from 1.12.2018); HGC Member of
North District Hospital
TERBEREESRER (20184 127 1 HE)  EAR
RRBEREZEGNHAREZEERE ' NEREHZAZES
TR (H20184F 1281 HE) teBERELEZEEKE

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, 11/15 Vice-Chairman of FC; Member of MTB; HGC Chairman of

BBS, JP Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

HEBEE UHEEGETRE  FRARRREGHE s REABRABITEER
REREEEERE

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP 5/6 Member of ARC, MTB and SAC (all from 20.12.2018); HGC

(from 1.12.2018) Chairman of The Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion

mEREAE Service

(B 20184F 12/ 1 HE) Bt NEREEZE S PARERESNBE LFEEERE
(2H 20184 1220 HRE) ; BB TFEHMREH L
EREEGTR

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP 8/9 Chairman of ARC, Member of EC, EEC and SSDC (all up to

(up to 30.11.2018)
(#Z 20184611 530 8)

30.11.2018); HGC Chairman of Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
Bt NEAREEZEETIR  THRES EREERERES
EXERBBRESGKE (2R E2018F 11308 )

EREREAREEER

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2 B% & 32 /5 % & 2018-19

n7



Appendix 1

Committee participation in 2018-19*
2018-2019 EELHENEZES *

Btk 1

No. of plenary meetings

attended in 2018-19

Name 2018-2019 &£ /&
) HE2ERERH
Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS 14/15
HExEL
Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi 6/15
BigRELL
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP 14/15
wWakt
Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki 15/15
MERSEA
Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS 11/15
WERTE
Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP 5/6
(from 1.12.2018)
BIZEHRR

(B 20184 12/ 1 HAE)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP 11/15
Bz +

Mr Stephen LEE Hai-yin 13/15
FRELL

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP 7/9
(up to 30.11.2018)

FFHHIR

(BZE20184€ 11 H308)

Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC, MSDC and SSDC;
HGC Chairman of Queen E izabeth Hospital

mﬁxﬁﬁ %%%%%Ex;ﬁ&i%%%ﬁﬁxﬁﬁmﬁ?
FERPEBREAREESERE

Chairman of HRC, Member of EC and EEC (all from 1.12.2018),
HRC and MTB (both up to 30.11.2018); HGC Member of Hong
Kong Children's Hospital

ANERZEEIRE THREES EREERERES (24
2018 12A 1 HE ) ANMERZEGRHPRREEZESGHKE
(HBEZE20184F 11 H30H ) BEREBRERRZESKE

Chairman of SSDC (from 1.12.2018); Vice-Chairman of SSDC
(up to 30.11.2018); Member of EC and EEC (both from 1.12.2018),
MTB (up to 30.11.2018) and ARC; HGC Member of Shatin
Hospital
TERBREEZESERE (H2018F 128 1 HE) ) TERHE
ﬁ%x,\am FE(HEZE2018F 11 H30H); THREES
RSB REZES (HH 2018E 12H 1 HEE ) ~ HRFIE
x%(%ﬁ 20184F 11 A 30H) REFTRAREERZEEKE

WHEREREZEEKE

Member of HRC (from 1.71.2018), ITGC (from 19.4.2018 to
6.9.2018), MSDC and MTB (both from 19.4.2018)

ANEREZEES (A 20184 11 A1 HE) EANBREE R
ZEEG(H20184F4H 19HF 201849 A 6 H) » BERHE
BRESGNPRERREZSENE (191 2018 4 19 HEE)

Member of HRC, FC, MSDC, MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

ANEREZESR WHEER  BERBBREZES  PARE
ZEENIERBREZEGHE  REABRRAKTRBERE

LR =)
BEREEKE

Member of HRC, MSDC, MTB (all from 11.12.2018) and ITGC
(from 17.12.2018)

ANEREZEES  BERBEZREES HPRREZESS
#2018 4F 12 11 HE) RERRRBRBERREGKE
20184 12 A 17 &)

Vice-Chairman of HRC (from 1.12.2018); Member of HRC (from
5.7.2018 to 30.11.2018), SSDC (up to 5.7.2018), MTB and PCC;
HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O Hospital

ANBREZEEQRER (B 2018F 128 1 HE) ; ANEERZ
Ee(H2018FETHSHE20184 11 30 8) BRI
BREEZES (BME2018F7H5H) PREEZEERAR

RAFEEBRE | KERERELREEERE

Vice-Chairman of ARC; Member of FC, ITGC and MTB; HGC
Member of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital

HTRERERZEGRIIE  WHEES  ENRBRBERE
BERPREEEEGNE | SILER L NERRE sZEENE

Vice-Chairman of MSDC, Member of HRC and MTB, Chairman
of KRAC (all up to 30.11.2018); HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O
Hospital

EBRRBEREEGE IR ANERZEERPRKERZES
KA jLﬁEl:ﬁE RALRESXRE (FHZ 20184 11 H30H);
HEREREAEEERE

(2
(A
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Appendix 1

Bis% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2018-19

Name 2018-2019 &£ Committee participation in 2018-19*

) HE2ERERH 20182019 FE2HENEE S *

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, 5/15 Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Hong Kong

GBS, JP Children's Hospital, Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk

REEHIR Hospital
ERRBEREZEEGNNAREZEGRE  BBRERBR - 5§
BERMEEEREREEERE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP 15/15 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC, MTB,

Chief Executive, HA SSDC, all RACs and HGCs

RIgEEL éﬁ%ﬂﬂ&ﬂﬁ%éﬁéﬁ‘Iﬁ TBZEES RREERERE

BB ETHEH ﬁﬁ%ﬁcs\‘ ANERZEE BERERREZSS AR
Tx = TERERREZEE  REEHEAZEEREER
ERE E\gﬁg\

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, 5/15 Vice-Chairman of PCC; Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC

SBS, JP Member of North Lantau Hospital

REFRER NBREFEEGREERE  BERERRZEGRIPREERES
BKE 5 ERIELEREREEGKE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP 9/15 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Alice Ho Miu Ling

EREET Nethersole Hospital
PARREZEEG LR ERBERZEGNE | BEXMPERIT
REREREEEKE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung 77 Member of ARC, HRC, MSDC and MTB (all from 20.11.2018)

(from 1.11.2018) ETREAREREES ANVEREES  BRRBEEZES

g RAIR RARBEEEENRE (24 20184F 11 H 20 HE)

(B 20184E11 51 HE)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS 8/15 Chairman of MTB (from 1.11.2018) and PCC; Vice-Chairman of

e lshees MTB (up to 31.10.2018); Member of EC, EEC, FC and HRC; HGC
Member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
RARKIEREE (B 20184F 11 A1 HE) RABKFEESE
B AREEZEEE IJ’H%(&E@ 20184 10 A 31 H) 5 1T ZE
B ZREEREHRES WBEZEERANERZEERE
RE-—GREREREESTNE

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee 4/6 Member of MSDC, MTB and SSDC (all from 11.12.2018)

(from 1.12.2018) EERBERERES PREERRSSAIRREZEZESNE

ERGEIE (2H2018F 128 11 HE)

(2018 128 1 HE)

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP 15/15 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC

Permanent Secretary for Food and ZSEEREEES  WHZEEE ANERZER  BERE

Health (Health) BREREBGNZERBRREESKE

#AEtat

RYRELEZEUNER (F4E)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP 7/9 Chairman of SSDC, Member of EC, EEC and FC (all up to

(up to 30.11.2018)
THEERE
(BZ 20184 11 5308)

30.11.2018); Member of NRAC; HGC Chairman of Tin Shui
Wai Hospital; HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O Hospital

XERBEREZEGTIR  THERES EREERERSSR
MBEEEERE (2HF20184F 11 A30H ) :IAEEKA
ZEEHE  RKEBRELRRESER  HEREBRELRES
EWE

I]
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Appendix 1
Bftdx 1

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2018-19

Committee participation in 2018-19*
20182019 FE2HENEE S *

Name 2018-2019 &£ /&
) HE LR REH
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP 15/15

B ia

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP 8/8

(up to 31.10.2018)

ERIEIR

(BZE 20184 105 31 H)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai 7/15

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong 13/15
e

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP 15/15

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury
RNERE

B REBRENER

Chairman of MSDC (from 1.11.2018); Member of EC, EEC
(both from 1.11.2018), MTB (up to 31.10.2018), MSDC (from
27.7.2018 to 31.10.2018), ARC, FC and HRC; HGC Member of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon Hospital

BRRBERESEIR (A 2018F 11 51 HZ); THEE
g RREEREEEE (YA 2018F 11 51 HE)  HREKR
BZES (HZE20184 10531 ) BERERRZES (&
2018 7H 27T HE 20184 10 5 31 ) Bt AR EER
88 WBRSERANEREZESGNE  EBERNEBRINE

BREAREEKE

Chairman of MSDC and MTB, Member of ARC, EC, EEC and
HRC (all up to 31.10.2018); HGC Chairman of Shatin Hospital;
HGC Member of Hong Kong Children's Hospital
BERRBRREEZESGRIPAREZESGTIR Bt AREER
Bg TREES RREEREZEGRANEREZEEHKE
(2BE20184F10H31H); WHEREREZEELE ' &
BREEREREEGNE

Chairman of ARC (from 1.12.2018); Member of ARC (up to
30.11.2018), EC, EEC (both from 1.12.2018) and FC; HGC Member
of Kwai Chung Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital

B REREBREQEF (H20184F 128 1 HE) Btk
EREEZES (HE2018F 11 HA30H)  TREEE &R
SEERERES (HH20184F 128 1 HEE) RUBERESH
B XBBRLAERIBRERZEGNE

Member of HRC, ITGC, MSDC, MTB, PCC, SAC and SSDC;
Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of North District Hospital
and Tuen Mun Hospital

ANEREZEES  EAREREEREZES BERBRREEE

=]
& hREBEAL  ARRHEAR BALFEEARTE
z88

BEZREZESHKE  TRESZAZTESER ) LEERRT
FERELRZEEERE
Member of FC and MSDC

WEREELERERERREEEHS

*Note

Board Members are not separately remunerated. They discharge the role of
governance of the Autharity through formulating policies and directions and
overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as well as taking part in

steering the work of various committees of the Authority including:

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee
EEC - Emergency Executive Committee
FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC - Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee
KRAC - Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee

MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee
MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC - New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC - Supporting Services Development Committee
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Appendix 2(a)
Biisk 2(a)

Hospital Authority Committee Structure

=helERE

= A

BE

b))
-~

i

Hospital Authority Board

BREER "
v v v
Regional Advisory Hospital Governing Audit and Risk .
Committees Committees Committee Main Tender Board
N L . ST S PRBIFEES
BEEAEZES ERrErEES T LEARERRES =
. . Medical Services
Exece’il;;iorlttee Development Committee
THE==H EERBRRESS
Emergency Executive Public Complaints
Committee Committee
EREEREEES NRHEESR
Finance Committee Staff Appeals Committee
MBEES BB FFEES
Human Resources Supporting Services
Committee Development Committee
ANERZEES XERBRRERES
Information
Technology Services
Governing Committee
BRI EREER
ZE9
Note; Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices 3, 4 7 BEESXERBHNMEE3 4 K5

and 5.
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Appendix 2(b)
fiiek 2(b)

Hospital Authority Executive Structure
EREIERITIEE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP Chief Executive

RIEHEBE TEAEH

122

v

v

Clusters Head Office
k4 MIREER

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 30.9.2018) "o’

bkl e

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing

Director (Cluster Services)

Kowloon Central

Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen

Cluster Chief Executive

s o SRR
BHEMEE (822018495 308) BT AR
Hong Kong East - Dr Beatrice CHENG
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive (from 1.7.2018 to 30.9.2018)
Cluster B E
3 o =l Dr CHUNG Kin-lai
AL RERBS HEBBIE (52018478 1E98308) Director (Quality & Safety)
Dr LUK Che-chung, JP SEERELE
Cluster Chief Executive (from 1.10.2018) BERLZ2MHE
PEGHAE L
HHEMEE (120184108 1H#)
Dr Libby LEE Ha-yun
Dr LUK Che-chung JP Director (Strategy & Planning)
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 30.9.2018) TERE4L
P paBE A RES B AR
Hong Kong West BSE (B22016595308)
Cluster DrTh LI Tak-lai
3 EE r Iheresa ak-lal .
A STEERE Cluster Chief Executive (from 110.2018) Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu
= @E% Director (Finance)
BHEAEE: (82018410814 [C e
HERE

Kowloon East

Dr TOM Kam-tim

Cluster Chief Executive

Cluster B5inE Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-ling

JURE H EE Pl 48 %ﬁﬁg Head of Corporate Services
RBRUL
HEEBETE

Kowloon West

Dr Doris TSE Man-wah

Cluster Chief Executive

Cluster _
) BAFRE
FLEER ERBR N8 Bpies Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai

Head of Human Resources (up to 30.9.2018)

FRERL
ADEREE (BE2018%9H308)

New Territories

Dr Simon TANG Yiu-hang

Cluster Chief Executive

Cluster —
Expe B Dr PANG Fei-chau
hAEREHA Bieee Head of Human Resources (from 1.10.2018)
) ERMEE
New Territories . Dr Lc% Sflé'VU' AHEREE (20184108 1848)
ter Chi ti
East Cluster usg . {/;:;u e
FREERHE = MR

Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung
Head of Information Technology and Health Informatics /
Chief Medical Informatics Officer

West Cluster RN LE
3 57 P BB Pre i 8 ﬂﬁ%ﬁi ENNEREREETE / BREATE
BRI T f

Note I: Dr LAU Chor-chiu's last day of duty was 29.6.2018. His last day of

service was 30.9.2018.
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Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional Committees

SEREEMEREESE

Audit and Risk Committee
Bt KEAMEERZES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
£33 ERAMEE (BZE 20184 11H30H)
Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai (from to 1.12.2018)
BEEEE (H2018FE#£ 128 1 HE)

Vice-Chairman
BIEFE

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRELE

Members Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP (from 20.12.2018)
K& RS (2018 £ 12 5 20 HE )

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiEXEL

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WELE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung (from 20.11.2018)
BiEeaHIR (H 2018 11 F 20 HE )

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP

Tt

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
EREHE (BZ 2018410831 H)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai (up to 30.11.2018)
BERSEE (BZE 20184£ 11 A 30H )

Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
AERUL

In Attendance Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
SIRE RIABEA 1TEIEH,

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
HAS BT

RYRELERZENER (%)
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Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Terms of Reference

Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure that

its:

(@) mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic coverage of
the internal control and risk management systems put in place by
the Management; and

(c) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit fee to
the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by the external
auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or dismissal;

Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:
(@) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(c) management letter and management's response; and

(d) matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw attention;

Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and fairness
of audited financial statements, including appropriateness of accounting
policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and significant audit
adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance Committee);

Oversee the effectiveness of systems far risk management and internal

control, including to:

(@) monitor the implementation and effectiveness of Hospital
Authority's Organisation-wide Risk Management (ORM) policy and
strategy;

(b) review and approve changes to the components of the ORM
framework;

(c) review reports on the organisation-wide risk profile and significant
risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive; and

(d) monitor Hospital Authority's financial and administrative control
processes, including those designed to ensure the safeguarding of
resources and operational efficiency, through the results of internal
and external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for monitoring:
(@) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;
b) compliance with Hospital Authority's Code of Conduct;

) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud; and
) effectiveness of Hospital Authority's whistleblowing mechanism.

o

(
(
(d

Note: Although the functions of the Audit and Risk Committee cover a wide

area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature (such as medical ethics)
are not within its purview.
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Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met six times to exercise active oversight of internal
audit function of HA, considered matters related to the audit of HA's financial
statements, and oversaw the effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls at HA in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Committee.

In regard to HA's internal audit function, the Committee received from Chief
Internal Auditor quarterly progress reports on audit results on HA's operational
areas. The discussions focused on audit conclusions, major audit observations
and corresponding follow-up action plans. Key internal audits considered by
the Committee included “Governance and Reporting of the Ten-year Hospital
Development Plan", “Utilisation and Efficiency of Operating Theatre Services”,
“Governance and Control of Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme" and
“Management of Supply of Blood Products to HA Hospitals". The Committee
also deliberated on key observations identified by audit analytics on clinical
systems. In planning ahead for 2019-20, the Committee took part in prioritising
areas for internal audits and endorsed the Internal Audit Plan.

Through a joint meeting with the Finance Committee, the Committee
reviewed and endorsed HA's draft audited financial statements for 2017-18. The
Committee also considered reports from the external auditor on the 2017-18
internal control matters, the results of the external auditor's risk assessment
of HA and the 2018-19 financial statement audit work plan.

For risk management, the Committee oversaw implementation of HA's
organisation-wide risk management systems across HA. Specifically, the
Committee discussed the Key Organisation-wide Risk Report 2019, focusing
on the planned mitigation actions for the 10 key risks consolidated from
functional risk reports reviewed by the concerned functional committees.
During the year, the Committee also deliberated on risk management reports
on specific areas, including interruption of information technology systems
and cybersecurity, service capacity (inpatient, accident & emergency and
outpatient capacity), infection and infection control, the Electronic Health
Record Programme and the Clinical Public-Private Partnership Programmes.
The Committee also received annual reports on compliance with HA related
ordinances and the handling of whistleblowing cases.

To maintain good governance and high level of probity, the Committee
considered recommendations from the Corruption Prevention Department
of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) via assignment
reports on HA's Management of Overtime Work of Nursing, Allied Health and
Supporting Staff, Control of Access to Medical Records and Other Patient
Data, and Administration of the Samaritan Fund. The Committee also received
progress updates on the Implementation of the recommendations of the
Director of Audit's Reports on HA's Drug Management and Management of
Public Hospital Projects.
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Executive Committee
THEES

Membership List

RERE

Chairman
*E

Members
(77 =]

Terms of Reference

1.

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, GBS, JP

BH(CHIR
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 30.11.2018)
MREmAiE (BE20184F 11 H30H)

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
EaAkE (BZE2018F 11 H30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiBXELT

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 1.12.2018)
EGBRELLT (B 20184 128 1 HE)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 1.12.2018)
WakhE (B 2018F 128 1 HE)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RInESA THIEH,

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

ik i v

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
FEEBAAE (BE20184F 11 H30H )

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP (from 1.11.2018)
TihEaE (B 2018 11 A1 HE)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
EREHE (BZ 2018410831 H)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai (from 1.12.2018)
GEBE (F 20184 128 1 HE)

T E

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on long- 1.
term strategy and planning, risk management, corporate governance,
performance management and succession planning, and facilitate the
Board in discharging its responsibilities in this regard;

Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the Management 2.
including an annual forward looking agenda and key matters raised by
Functional Committee Chairmen;

Serve as a forum for the HA Chairman, Functional Committee Chairmen 3.
and the HA Chief Executive to consider major matters relating to the
leadership and oversight of the HA,
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4, Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure and
processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee their annual
self-assessments; and advise the Board on the appointment of chairmen,
vice-chairmen and co-opted members of the Functional Committees;

5. Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the HA
Head Office and its Divisions;

6.  Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff matters:

(@) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives and
Directors of Divisions;

(c) approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration changes
and contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of
Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions; and

(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives;

7. Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in accordance
with HA's Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented by a senior Food
& Health Bureau official when meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met nine times to discuss and consider various
matters of strategic importance and overall policies and directions of HA.
Pursuant to the HA Board's leading and managing role, the Committee
continued to oversee and monitor implementation of the various
enhancements in the HA Review Action Plan. Other strategic matters
considered by the Committee included the formulation of HA Budget and
Annual Plan for 2019-20, the review of doctor and nursing manpower situation;
development of genetic and genomic services; implementation of the First
Ten-year Hospital Development Plan (HDP); planning of the Second 10-year
HDP; management of minor works projects in HA; as well as supporting to
Government's Chinese Medicine initiatives.

The Committee also discussed and determined a wide range of matters
concerning HA's talent management, which included the appointment and
remuneration matters of senior executives at HA Head Office and clusters,
career posting and succession of senior executives, reports on staff complaints
against senior executives; alignment of contract full-time and permanent
full-time employment packages in HA; management structure of Information
Technology and Health Informatics Division, etc.

Internally for the Board, the Committee regularly reviewed the succession
planning in the Board's Committees, and other membership matters relating
to Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) and Regional Advisory Committees.
[t received annual summary report on activities and feedbacks of HGCs.

The Committee regularly advised on agendas of Board meetings as proposed
by the management.
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Emergency Executive Committee
RoEEREREE

Membership List

ERE

Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, GBS, JP

£33 (In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be elected among its
standing members)
BE(CHIR
(EBEE B EER LB N T B RARSTEL)

Members Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 30.11.2018)

7= ] MREmiE (B E20184F 11 H30H)

Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
BREELE

[AXRYREEBEFHER (F4£)]

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
maAdE (BFE2018F 11 H30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

HigxEt

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 1.12.2018)
BIGRZELLT (H2018F 128 1 HE)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 1.12.2018)
WakE (20184 125 1 HE)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
(In his absence, the Deputising CE)
ZRBEE THES

(TTB AR TS ST )

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
e[S e

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
FHEEBEL (B2 20184F 11 H30H)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP (from 1.11.2018)
TSt (A 201841151 HE)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
ERERIR (BFE 2018F 105 31 H)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai (from 1.12.2018)
BEREE (H20184F 128 1 HE)

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) will automatically be called — &: EBER4EBAEH  BHE2EEEFENAGEER

into action when the HA activates the Tier-three Strategic Response LZHER - M RRBERNBRERA (S2) 5
to a major incident, which is defined as an incident with prolonged and ZohhEE BEREREE=ERBES
territory-wide implications, such as the Serious Level (S2) or Emergency ESEEREZESHRMAER -

Level Response to influenza pandemic.
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Terms of Reference I iEEE

To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and

functions, including:

(a) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority policies,
standards, guidelines and procedures; and

(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle particular
matters at hand.

To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital Authority
in emergency situation;

To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency
formulated by the Hospital Authority Central Command Committee, and
monitor implementation progress in all HA hospitals and institutions;

To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees
including Hospital Governing Committees;

To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages to key
stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the public; and

To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular
reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as practicable.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

No meeting was convened in 2018-19.
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Finance Committee

B3 EEE

Membership List

ERE

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS

B HiEx#Et

Vice-Chairman Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
BIEE HBEDEE

Members Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP

B8

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))

BREELLE
[RERYRELEREENER (FE)]

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP (from 11.12.2018)

SEMRHALAE (B 20184E 12 5 11 HRE)

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WEREE

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

FRELE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEEBAE 1THES

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
i[5 wiast

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)

FTHBRE (BE 20184 11 H30H)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
i

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP / Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan
(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

RNBRL/BHEELL
[ARIEEHREBRFER ]

Terms of Reference

1.

Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the
Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan;

Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, control,
performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the Haspital Authority;

Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including
investment, business and insurance;

Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation policies;
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5. Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial
statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme
on financial and control related matters and make recommendations to
the Hospital Authority where appropriate;

7. Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and
risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other relevant areas
contributing to the financial risk profile of the Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met six times to assist the Board in ensuring
proper stewardship and effective use of public funds through making
recommendations to the Board on various finance related matters for the
Authority.

In support of the corporate strategy and policy development of HA, the
Committee deliberated on the development of a new costing analytics tool
named Total Patient Journey Costing for resource utilisation analysis, as well
as more in-depth analysis on healthcare spending driven by ageing population
and growing chronic diseases in Hong Kong. In examining the medium-term
financial projection conducted for the period from 2019-20 to 2023-24 based
on the latest service demand projection, the Committee gained assurance
that the estimated recurrent subvention required for 2019-20 and 2020-21
was largely in line with that under the triennium funding arrangement with
the Government. The Committee also reviewed and endorsed the proposed
revisions of HA Financial and Accounting Regulations and Delegation of
Authority on Finance Functions in relation to finance operations.

Dovetailed with HA's annual service and resource planning process, the
Committee examined the proposed 2019-20 HA budget and resource allocation.
For HA's insurance programme, the Committee endorsed the renewal
approach and direction for 2019-20. With the assistance of its subcommittee,
the Treasury Panel (TP), the Committee considered matters related to HA's
treasury management and operations, as well as investment performance
and yield enhancement initiatives. On accountability reporting and monitoring
of HA's financial position, the Committee reviewed and endorsed HA's draft
audited financial statements for 2017-18 in the joint meeting with the Audit and
Risk Committee. The Committee also considered the 2017-18 audited financial
statements / accounts for a number of designated programmes undertaken
by HA, including the Electronic Health Record Programme Development, the
Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Assistance Programmes, The HA
Charitable Foundation, the minor works under the Capital Works Reserve Fund
Head 708 Subhead 8083 MM and the HA Public-Private Partnership Fund. The
2017-18 Operation Report of the HA Provident Fund Scheme was received by
the Committee at a joint meeting with the Human Resources Committee.
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On HA's financial performance, the Committee received monthly financial
reports and considered a mid-year financial review together with the
unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2018.
The Committee also considered matters relating to key financial performance
indicators, waivers and write-offs of hospital fees and charges, and debt
management. In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management
framework, the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation
actions taken in the past year on finance aspects, and proactively assessed key
financial risks anticipated for 2019 and considered corresponding action plans.

To facilitate HA in discharging its stewardship responsibility over the use of
public funds, the Committee considered the Annual Work Plan of the Finance
Division and reviewed the measures implemented and planned to build a
competent and sustainable finance workforce in HA.

The Committee received regular progress reports from TP, and approved TP
appointment and formalisation of TP membership arrangement.
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Human Resources Committee

ANNEREZEE

Membership List
ERE

Chairman
*E

Vice-Chairman
BER

Members
8

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 30.11.2018)
BREREE (BE 20184 11 H30H)

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (from 1.12.2018)
BiBRZLLT (A 2018F 125 1 HE)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (from 1.12.2018)
BINLE (H 20184128 1 HE)

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP

BRR 8%

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP (from 11.12.2018)
SEIREE (B 20184 12 8 11 HREE)

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (up to 30.11.2018)
BigRALL (B2 2018411 H30H)

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki (from 1.11.2018)
MEESELE (20184 11 A1 HE)

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS

WERLE

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP (from 11.12.2018)
BR2EHIE (B 20184 125 11 HEE)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (from 5.7.2018 to 30.11.2018)
BN (H2018E7TH5HZ 11 F30H)
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
XBZHZ (BE20184F 11 H30H)

Miss Linda LEUNG
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
REBTT

[RRRYRELEREEUER (FE)]

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RInBeLE TS

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung (from 20.11.2018)
AsER#IT (A 20184 11 20 HEE)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
i

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
EREHE (BZ 2018410831 H)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXELRE
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Terms of Reference
1. Advise on manpower planning;
2. Advise on staff training and development matters;

3. Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources policies
and related issues;

4, Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on
the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

5. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on
staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

6.  Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority on
any other staff related matters;

7. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to human resources management;

8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority as
and when necessary; and

9. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on member and communication related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider various human
resources (HR) matters of HA.

The Committee considered and advised on a wide range of HR management
initiatives to boost staff morale and retain talents. These included further
enhancing the recruitment of non-locally trained doctors under the
Limited Registration Scheme, introducing a new Locum Package for short-
term engagement of locum staff on need basis, enhancing the Fixed Rate
Honorarium for doctors and the Continuous Night Shift Scheme Allowance for
nurses; restoring annual increment mechanism for employees joining HA on
or after 15 June 2002, enhancing the Retired and Rehire Scheme for doctors,
nurses and supporting staff, pilot implementation of the fractional work
arrangement for full-time medical staff working in designated departments,
engaging an external Consultant to review and recommend strategies and
initiatives to help address the manpower issues of supporting staff, and pay
enhancement for supporting staff. Same as in the past years, the Committee
also considered and supported the 2018-19 annual pay adjustment for HA
employees for approval by the HA Board.
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Staff training and development is one of the key HR strategies. The Committee
received regular reports from the Central Training & Development Committee
(CTDC), a subcommittee formed under the Committee to oversee and
advise on the priorities of resource allocation related to staff training. The
Human Resources Committee also discussed and supported in principle
the proposed framework on honorary appointment in HA. Separately, the
Committee considered and supported the selection of a collaboration partner
for upgrading HA's Higher Diploma in Nursing Training Programme from
Qualifications Framework Level 4 to Level 5.

For staff welfare and communication / engagement, the Committee endorsed
extension of service scope of Staff Radiology Programme and revised
provision of medical items / treatment to HA employees; and supported
the implementation of Focused Staff Survey 2019. The Committee received
an update on the provision of legal support to HA's professional staff for
supporting them in disciplinary inquiry of their respective regulatary
professional bodies, and noted the enhancement measures of staff clinic
services.

In accordance with the HA arganisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee considered the People Resources Risk Assessment for 2019
and reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken on HR front
in the past year, proactively assessed HR risks anticipated for 2019 and
considered the corresponding action plans. It also received the first report
on whistleblowing cases received from November 2016 to 31 December
2017, i.e. after promulgation of the “Guideline on Arrangements for Handling
Whistleblowing Disclosures in Hospital Authority” in November 2016.

During the year, the Committee reviewed quarterly reports on HR Key
Performance Indicators, and was hriefed on the Annual Report on HA
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. It also received annual reports on a wide
range of HR-related matters, including 2017-18 Operation Report of the HA
Provident Fund Scheme in a joint meeting with the Finance Committee, Annual
Report on Occupational Safety and Health and Workplace Violence 2017-18,
Report on Staff Complaints Received in Year 2017, as well as Progress Report
of Human Resources Projects in 2018-19.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee
MR FEAREE

Membership List

RERE

Chairman
*E

Members
(77 =]

Terms of Reference

1.

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RInESA TEIEH,

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BESUL

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
FNHESRE

Prof Daniel LAI, BBS, JP
BIBEAHIR

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki (from 19.4.2018 to 6.9.2018)
MERSE (f2018F4H19HE9H6H)

Mr Victor LAM, JP (from 13.7.2018)
Government Chief Information Officer
WEBEE (B 20184E7 A 13 HEE)
BRFEMPIREE

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP (from 17.12.2018)
BZEEHIR (B 20184 125 17 HE)

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRELE

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP
BN EE

Ir Allen YEUNG Tak-bun, JP (up to 1.7.2018)
Government Chief Information Officer
BEmEE (BAE2018FE7TH1H)
BTEARE A

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BXERLE

Miss Amy YUEN Wai-yin, JP (from 25.4.2018)
Deputy Secretary for Food & Health (Health)2
EBLt (A 2018F 45 25 HE)
BYLRELRRINER (F4£)2

T E

Approve corporate policies and standards for Information Technology / 1.

Information Systems;

Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of the 2.
Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan;

Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology / 3.
Information Systems Annual Business Plan;
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4, Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information Technology
systems development and implementation;

5. Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical Advisory
Subcommittee;

6.  Receive performance and status reports;
1. Provide periodic progress report to the Hospital Authority Board; and

8. Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk mitigation
relevant to Information Technology across Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met four times to discuss various issues relating to
strategic development of IT / information systems in HA. During this period, the
Committee discussed various strategies and initiatives, in support of the five-
year IT Strategy 2017-2022 (IT Strategy), which laid out key directions for the
IT and Health Informatics Division (IT&HID) to support transformation of HA's
service provision and uplifting its service capability. These included the Smart
Sourcing Strategy for ensuring optimum use of IT resources and encouraging
innovation; IT Operation Strategy for improving the operation and performance
of HA's IT systems; “HA Go" as HA's territory-wide mabile patient application
for enhancing patient experience and outcome; and the initiative of adopting IT
tools for process automation being undertaken by IT&HID.

The Committee also deliberated on the setting up of HA's Institute of Health
IT to serve as the hub for exchange of health IT knowledge, experience
and innovation opportunities between HA IT and the IT ecosystem. It also
considered the IT innovation initiatives being undertaking by IT&HID, focusing
on three technologies, i.e. mobility; Internet of Things and big data analytics.
The Committee also discussed IT&HID's progress of work on cybersecurity risk
mitigation for further strengthening the protection to HA IT applications and
data.

On plans to meet the growing demand for IT systems to support the operation
of the organisation, the Committee endorsed the IT Block Vote Submission
for 2019-20 and the IT&HID Annual Work Plan 20139-20 for responding to
challenges in continuing existing service delivery and delivering the major
strategic IT-enabled projects and IT&HID's transformational initiatives. The
Committee also deliberated and endorsed the plan for HA to provide its
Laboratory Information System application software and the related service
to two private hospitals for use in their pathology departments through a
cost-recovery partnership project. Following its endorsement for the setup of
HA Data Collaboration Lab in 2017-18, the Committee received the progress
update of the Lab's setup and endorsed the Lab's proposed service provision
in 2018-19, and received further updates on its pilot run implemented in the
fourth quarterin 2018.
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To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the work stipulated in the IT&HID Annual Plan by
considering, amongst others, the performance and status reports of respective
IT functions. Progress update on various IT projects including Clinical
Management System Ill and IV, business supporting IT systems and Electronic
Health Record (eHR) projects were among the standing agenda items of the
Committee's meetings. The Committee also monitored the ongoing efforts
of IT&HID in the development and implementation of the Government's eHR
Programme for which HA was the technical agent and participated as a
major user of eHR Sharing System and endorsed the draft audited financial
statements related to eHR Programme undertaken by HA annually. In addition,
the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken
in the past year, and assessed IT risks anticipated for 2019 and considered
corresponding action plans.

The Committee reviewed regular progress reports from the Information
Technology Technical Advisory Subcommittee (ITTASC), a subcommittee
formed under the Committee to advise on major IT initiatives and IT technical
matters proposed for implementation in HA, and approved appointments of
ITTASC membership.
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Main Tender Board

RRRIEREE

Membership List
ERE

Chairman
*E

Vice-Chairmen
BER

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
mE

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (from 1.11.2018)
MEAIREL (B 20184E 11 A 1 HAE)

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
ERERE (BZ 20184 10531 H)

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS (from 1.11.2018)
RXAIEE (2018 11 B 1 HE)

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS (up to 31.10.2018)
Jeg . (BZE 20184 105 31 H)

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
ERLE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

(or his nominated representative)
ZABEL THES
(TTHHEHEZ K )

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu, Director (Finance)
(or her nominated representative)

BRRmL L AR
(M BEREREZERR)

Two of the following rotating members:
UTERRRERS :

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan
BREZHR

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

BREZLE

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
BRER =R

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
[EYo

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BRIt

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
EREy v
Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BERIR

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP (from 11.12.2018)
SEIBHAELE (B 20184E 128 11 HE)

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
FXERE

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
RBEBELE
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Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP (from 20.12.2018)
kI (B 2018 12 5 20 HE )

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi (up to 30.11.2018)
EBGRZLLLt (BE 2018411 H30H)

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
BRI

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
WakE (BE20184F 11 H30H)

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki (from 19.4.2018)
MEEEE (F20184F 45 19 HiEE)

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WEREE

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP (from 11.12.2018)
BEEHT (B 2018F 128 11 HE)

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
Zheoeas

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FRELE

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FEEHL

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
FYBHRR (BHE 2018 11 H30H)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP

REBHER

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS (up to 31.10.2018)
RXISELE (BFE 20184105 31 8)

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
RERIE

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS

BEEELL

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EREEET

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

ERELRSE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung (from 20.11.2018)
BHEBRBIR (H 20184 11 F 20 HiEE)

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee (from 11.12.2018)
BEEZIY (B 20184 128 11 HE)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
Tt (BZE 20184 108 31 H)

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun

B AT

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

EXELE



Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Terms of Reference

1. To consider and approve tenders and contract variations in the Hospital
Authority in accordance with the delegation of authority limits approved
by the Board, including:

(@) Toreview and assess the recommendations made by the assessment
panel;

(b) To review the procedures and criteria adopted by the assessment
panel in the course of its selection;

(c) To approve the selection made by the assessment panel after
satisfying itself that (a) and (b) are in order and such approval should
be final.

2. Toreceive management reporting of acceptance of offer approved in
the Head Office by a Director in exercising Special Authority for Urgent
Direct Purchase.

Note: Under the prevailing Hospital Authority Procurement and Materials
Management Manual approved by the Board, the schedule of authority
limits in respect of the Main Tender Board includes approval of tender
exceeding $1.5 million centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head
Office, or exceeding $4.5 million for those arranged by the clusters /
hospitals.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

The Main Tender Board (MTB) is organised into two Tender Boards,
each meeting once a month, with MTB(1) mainly focusing on tenders for
pharmaceutical products and medical consumables; and MTB(2) on tenders
of other subjects (e.g. medical equipment, contract services, consultancies
etc.) In 2018-19, MTB considered some 700 papers on procurement of various
supplies and services with value of over $1.5 million for HA Head Office and
above $4.5 million for clusters and hospitals. Tenders for procurement of
supplies mainly covered purchases of pharmaceutical products, medical and
laboratory equipment and their consumables, whereas service tenders were
mainly related to hospital supporting services, maintenance of medical and
laboratory equipment, and information technology systems. Capital works
tenders were mainly concerned with hospital redevelopment projects and
minor works improvements for maintenance of hospital premises.

An annual briefing was conducted to facilitate Members' understanding of the
procurement policies and strategies of the HA and related matters. Prior to
the briefing, an “"Annual Summary on the Work of MTB 2017-18" was circulated
for Members' information. It formed the framework of the briefing session in
which topics including implementation of the key recommendations of the
review of the Procurement and Materials Management Manual, different
procurement channels, risk mitigation measures, and drugs expenditures and
pricing trend, etc. were covered. The briefing also served as an orientation
to new Members and annual meet up for Members to exchange views on the
work of MTB. During the briefing, Members shared their views and comments
on various matters, including the audit of procurement process, alignment of
procurement practice across hospital clusters, quality assurance measures for
drugs and automation of supply chain management, etc.
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Medical Services Development Committee
ERRBEREZES

Membership List

ERE
Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP (up to 31.10.2018)
£33 ERERE (BE 20184 10F 31 H)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP (from 1.11.2018)

EmSut (A 20181181 H#E)
Vice-Chairman Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
BER TFRHE (BE 2018411 H308)
Members Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP
74| Director of Health

BEEEL

FHEEER

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 30.11.2018)
BREmtE (BE 20184 11 F30H)

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP

BRI

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP (from 11.12.2018)
SEBEASEAE (B 20184E 128 11 HEE)

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiExXEL

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki (from 19.4.2018)
WEESLE (B 2018F 48 19 HE)
Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WEREE

Prof LAU CHAK-sing, JP (from 11.12.2018)
BEEHRT (FH20184EF 128 11 HE)
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
REBHE

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
ZRBEE THES,

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP

REFRHE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung (from 20.11.2018)
BERBIT (20184 11 5 20 HE)

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee (from 11.12.2018)
BREZZ (H20184F 12/ 11 HE)

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
AT

RBYREERBZAWNER (G4)

Appendices %



Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP (from 27.7.2018 to 31.10.2018)
Tt (B 20184 7H27THET10A 31 H)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXERE

Ms Carol YUEN Siu-wai, JP / Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan
(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

RNBRL /BB LL
[ARIEFEHEREBFRER ]

Terms of Reference

Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing needs of
the community in respect of clinical services provided by public hospitals
and institutions;

Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies, directions
and strategies relating to the provision, planning and development of the
public hospitals and related services, having regard to the availahility of
technology, staff and other resources and the need to provide a patient-
centred, outcome-focused quality healthcare service by a knowledge-
based organisation;

Consider and make recommendations on the averall priorities for the
planning and development of the public hospitals and related servicesin
order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available resources;

Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to medical services development; and

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(a) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund, on the
recommendation of the Management Committee of the Samaritan
Fund;

(b) approve the scope of coverage of the Hospital Authority Public-
Private Partnership Fund, on the recommendation of the
Management Committee for the Hospital Authority Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) Fund and Clinical PPP Programmes; and

(c) approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on financial
provisions.
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Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider matters
relating to the planning, development and management of clinical services.

Along the corporate strategy and planned future service directions of HA,
the Committee discussed and approved the Clinical Services Plan (CSP) for
the Kowloon West Cluster (KWC); supported the formulation of CSP for the
Hong Kong East Cluster; and discussed the Strategic Service Framework for
Cancer Services and for Genetic and Genomic Services. It also received the
final report on re-delineation of cluster boundary of Kowloon Central Cluster
and KWC. In support of demand management, the Committee deliberated on
the service demand projection and facility planning; manpower requirements
and strategies for doctors, nurses, allied health and pharmacy professionals;
and the review on roles and responsibilities of nurse consultants. The
Committee also considered and discussed various clinical Public-Private
Partnership Programmes which aimed to share out demand and enhance
patient choices. For clinical services development, the Committee discussed
on new service models and on-gaing projects such as the paired / pooled organ
donation scheme; paired kidney donation programme; primary percutaneous
coronary intervention service; central provision of autologous serum eye
drops by Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Services; enhanced
mechanism for introducing specific ultra-expensive drugs (including those
for treating uncommon disorders); the Chinese Medicine Centre for Training
and Research; and development of the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine
pilot programme. To promote partnership with patients, the Committee was
briefed on the update on mental health direct and patient support call centre;
development of Patient Resources Centres service; and pilot scheme on the
dementia community support service for the elderly.

The Committee considered and commented on a wide range of clinical
management issues, including the approval of the new drugs / indications and
medical items to be covered by the Samaritan Fund in 2018-19, commissioning
of medical services in completed hospitals projects as well as update on
individual hospital projects (e.g. service commissioning and utilisation of space
and medical equipment at the North Lantau Hospital and service development
of the Hong Kang Children's Hospital and Tin Shui Wai Hospital). In regard
to the HA organisation-wide risk management framework, the Committee
monitored clinical risk management through considering the report on
patient service and care, which assessed the effectiveness of mitigation
actions taken in the past year as well as the risks anticipated for 2019 and
the planned actions. Other matters considered by the Committee on clinical
governance and quality improvement included corporate open disclosure for
clinical incidents, hospital accreditation and 2017-18 HA Patient Experience
Survey on inpatient service. The Committee also considered proposals /
regular reports on other matters, including the Controlling Officer's Report in
2018-19, management of access block problem, winter surge preparation and
development and manitoring of clinical service key performance indicators.
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Public Complaints Committee
NRKFEES

Membership List

ERE
Chairman Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
£ ik diSh v
Vice-Chairman Prof Raymand LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP*
BIEXR RERHE
Members Dr Jane CHAN Chun-kwong
B8 BRENEE
Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
BRERSE
Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han, BBS
GES
Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BUKESE

Mr Vincent CHAN Wing-shing, MH (from 1.12.2018)
BEKERIELE (B 20184 128 1 HE)

Ms Peggy CHING Pui-ki
BmEL T

Rev Dr Andrew CHOI Chung-ho
BCRAIAD

Dr CHUNG Chin-hung*
ERIRRL

Mr HO Sau-him

S v

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
AR

Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting

FEIESRE

Mr Joe KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM
Pkt

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM
PR

Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau

WEHSEE

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
e

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim* (up to 30.11.2018)
EHEEL (BZE2018F 11 H30H)

Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
EEREL
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Mr Peter LEE Shung-tak, BBS, JP

Ms Maggie LEUNG Yee-mei
REELL
Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH
MAREL L

Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH
SHREE

Mr TSE Man-shing, BBS, JP

HAEHLE

Dr WONG Chun-por, JP*

TRREL ™

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP* (from 1.12.2018)
THEBRE* (B 2018 125 1 HE)

Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
HRERIEE

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP*
BRIDRL L™

Ms Agnes Garman YEH

BEUL
Ms Lisa YIP Sau-wah, JP* (up to 30.11.2018)
BERELT* (BE20184F 11 H30H)

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BXERLE

*Panel Chairman /NEEE

Terms of Reference

1.

The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint redress
and appeal body of the Hospital Authority (‘HA").

The PCC shall independently:

(@) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the public
who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA / hospital to which
they have initially directed their complaints;

(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints.

Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise and monitor
the HA on the PCC's recommendations and their implementation.

In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC Complaint
Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended from time to time.

The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make reports
to the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising important
issues where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints
Committee (“the PCC")

1. The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (“the HA") to
consider appeals made by the public relating to its services. Based on
its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set by the PCC to
facilitate the handling of complaints.

2. ThePCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(a) if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more than
2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint, unless the
PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances it is proper to
conduct an investigation into such complaint not made within that
period;

(b) if the complaint is made anonymously and / or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

(c) if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of the
patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging of the
complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the patient has
died or is for any reason unable to act for himself or herself);

(d) if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

(e) if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

(f) if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted legal
proceedings, or has indicated that he / she will institute legal
proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons who
provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall not
entertain any request for compensation);

(g) if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of its
services;

(h) if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical staff
pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such scheme provides
for a channel of appeal, for example, the granting of sick leave under
the provisions of the Employees' Compensation Ordinance, Cap. 282;

(i) if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual matters
and commercial matters;

() if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious or is
not made in good faith; or

(k) if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar nature, has
previously been the subject matter of a complaint which had been
decided upon by the PCC.

3. Takinginto account the following:

(a
(b
(c
(
(

the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;

the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

the PCC is not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

an aggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions such
as the courts or the Medical Council;

d
g

the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public
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4, Inconsidering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to time
obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts relating
to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers appropriate,
it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the medical staffs or any
other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be amended
from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Public Complaints Committee held 17 meetings and
handled a total of 235 cases relating to medical services, administrative
procedure, staff attitude, etc. In addition to the handling of appeal cases,
the Committee also advised on complaint handling policies to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of the Autharity’s complaints system, and make
recommendations for system change and improvement of healthcare services.
Regular internal and external communication programmes were conducted
to enhance the transparency and credibility of the Authority's complaints
system and the Committee as the final appeal body. Through its Secretariat,
the Committee also shared important lessons learned for risk management
and enhanced the complaint handling skills of frontline staff through regular
specialist complaint management training including applied mediation skills
training.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted self-

assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having regard to
its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.
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Staff Appeals Committee
A= ==

Membership List

ERE
Chairman Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
£ FEWREL
Members Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP (from 20.12.2018)
B8 Al sesE (B 2018 4E 12 B 20 HAEE)
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BXERE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
REREE

Terms of Reference

1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have
raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels and
who wish to appeal against the decision made.

2. The Committee shall:
(@) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation by the
management;
(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated;
(c) have access to all the relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;
(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and
(e) reply to the appellant.

3. The Committee's decision shall represent the Hospital Authority's
decision and shall be final.

4, The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital Authority
Board.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

The Committee is tasked to consider and decide on appeals from staff
members who have raised a grievance and appeal through the normal internal
complaint channels established in HA and who wish to make further appeal
against the decision made. The Committee's decision shall represent HA's
decision and shall be final. The membership of the Committee comprises
individuals who are not staff members of HA.

In 2018-19, the Committee concluded one staff appeal case carried forward
from 2017-18 and received two new appeal cases. One of the new cases received
was referred back to the respective cluster management to follow up as the
complainant had not yet exhausted the normal internal complaint channels in
HA. The other new case was received in March 2019 and consideration was still
in progress as of the end of 2018-19.
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For the appeal case carried forward from 2017-18, the Committee found
that the appellant had fully presented his case, and the management had
followed due process in the course of investigation. In considering the case, the
Committee had reviewed all the relevant information, including HA's prevailing
policies and practices and other details related to the case. The Committee
considered the detailed information and came to the view that the conclusion
reached earlier by the management was justified.

Appendices %

ARt E 2017-18 FEMNLHER - ZREERRLE
FAECERAEER MEEESFCREBERRF
FHAE - RESEEZZERE - ERAMEHEEE
K BRABERFENEERRTER  BERER
MR A - BAEEASLRBERMAFAE
AEFEE -



Appendix 3
Bitex 3

Supporting Services Development Committee

XEREEREZEE
Membership List
ERE
Chairman Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (from 1.12.2018)
B WaEEE (B 20184F 125 1 HEE)
Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
TRERAE (BZE 2018F 11 H30H)
Vice-Chairmen Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2018)
EE S FXIERE (F 20184 128 1 HE)
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
WESLE (BFE 20184 11 5308)
Members Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan
& BREZHR
Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
[EYo

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2018)
EaAdE (BE2018F 11 H30H)

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HiEXEL

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS

WEREL

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP (up to 5.7.2018)
BRI (BZE2018F7H5H)

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FEEHLT

Miss Linda LEUNG

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health))
BRIt

[AXRYREEBEFHER (%) ]

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEBBAE 1TEEH

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS

XA

Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
BEREEREL

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee (from 11.12.2018)
BREZE (H2018F 128 11 HE)

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
g ts

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXELRE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best support
clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

2. Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved by the
Hospital Authority Board;

3. Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

4. Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support Services
such as improvements in supply chain management, equipment
management, strategic outsourcing and public-private-partnership of
non-core functions, and the development of supporting services for
revenue generation;

5. Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services and
implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital Authority; and

6.  Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to business support services and capital expenditure
projects and other areas under the purview of the Committee.

Focus of Work in 2018-19

In 2018-19, the Committee met four times to advise on directions and policies
related to the development of business support services and capital planning
to support clinical service delivery in HA. On business support services, the
Committee discussed HA's plan to form a Central Procurement Team to
strengthen the support for procurement of forward procured furniture and
equipment (F&E) for new hospitals and hospital development projects and
its implementation of a standardised approach, with enhanced measures, for
planning procurement of F&E items for commissioning of hospital projects.
The Committee received updates on the latest development of the HA
Supporting Services Centre and deliberated on the way forward in handling the
latest service demand projection of supporting services in HA. It also received
reports on the performance and progress of improvements of hospital security
and fire safety, as well as on contracts with price adjustment approved hy the
respective HA management via “Authorise and Direct” as delegated by the Main
Tender Board. The progress of procurement of new purchases of equipment in
2018-19 and the procurement plan for replacement of aged equipment up to
2021-22 were discussed. It also considered the review of the Procurement and
Materials Management Manual (PMMM) of HA with proposed revisions to the
PMMM,
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With respect to capital planning, the Committee noted the implementation
progress of projects under the Ten-year Hospital Development Plan with the
earmarked government funding of $200 billion and the high level situation and
expenditures on maintenance of newly completed / redeveloped hospitals.
It reviewed the annual capital expenditure plan for both major capital works
projects and the one-off grant for minor works projects for 2018-19 and
endorsed that for 2019-20. It endorsed the proposed updates to the Schedule of
Delegation of Authority for issue and acceptance of tenders for construction-
related contracts by HA. The Committee also examined the regular facility
condition assessment of HA hospitals; the review of hospital engineering
related incidents and the related mitigation measures; the annual report on
accident statistics of capital works projects in 2017; and the findings of the
latest building safety inspections for HA hospitals. For minor works projects,
the Committee noted the latest progress of the projects in 2017-18 and
endorsed the audited accounts for the one-off grant for minor works projects.
It also reviewed the findings on the review on management of minor works
projects and the action plan for improvements; as well as the tools developed
for monitoring progress of project implementation and accounts finalisation.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management framework,
the Committee assessed the risks relating to business support services,
pharmaceutical supplies and capital planning, including the effectiveness of
risk mitigation measures taken in the past year, risks anticipated for 2019 and
the planned actions.

During the year, the Committee received regular reports from the management
on the implementation progress of major capital works and minor works. It
also reviewed regular progress reports from the Capital Works Subcommittee
(CWSC), a subcommittee formed under the Committee to advise on mainly the
planning implementation as well as progress and financial monitoring of major
Capital Works projects, and approved appointments of CWSC membership.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees
EREAREEME

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
TR XM BRI T =E

Chairman Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
£33 RIFIEEAL

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE ElrE R RTBES N EAR

Hospital Chief Executive

ERriTEdRE

Members Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

j74=| R R4
Bishop Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa
RIREEE
Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai, MH
RESBIEA
Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
BRELZL
Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung
AL
Ms KO Sui-fun
S
Rev Canon Peter Douglas KOON Ho-ming, BBS
B EIS A BN
Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man
R e
Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah
Rev Augusta LEUNG Lai-Ngor
ZREBIEN
Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
BXAISEE
Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
=S v
Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
EREEET
Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
e
Mr SIU Sau-ching
EEELE
Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu
LR s
Rev WONG Ka-fai
FEIEEN
Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP
HEBUT
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Bradbury Hospice
HEEZEERD

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho
FNREL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R
Hospital Chief Executive
EERTTBGER

Dr Amy CHOW Yin-man
BREBT

Dr David KAN Kam-fai

Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
B EELT

Dr Vincent TSE Kin-chuen
EREL

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
TR B B

Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
HREREE

Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
[ o
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Caritas Medical Centre
R EEL R

Chairman Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
£33 RDIEHER

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Dr Wallace CHAN Chi-ho
K& BRESET
Mr CHAN Wai-ming, MH, JP
BRiZAAA

Dr Denis CHANG Khen-lee, JP
SRR BT

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
AL

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
Paktast e

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS
XEZER

Mr Joseph LEE King-chi, BBS

Dr Vincent LEUNG Tze-ching
RYIFE4

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
2o E T

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
HEREL

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
AR
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital

BILER A/ MBS

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRIRIGSE A

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R
Hospital Chief Executive
EERTTBGER

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FTRELE

Mr Jason Joseph LEE Kwong-yee
FEREL

Dr Raymond MA Siu-wing, MH
BkeREBE

Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
FERISEE

Prof SHAM Pak-chung, JP
ARSI

Mr TSANG Hin-hong

BREELL

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
REREL

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
THREL

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
B B
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
BHBEEKESR

Chairman Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
*E FESIEE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
74| BEEEL

Mrs Shelley M CHOW
REBL+

Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
BREALL

Dr Bernard KONG Ming-hei
STRREREE A4

Mr Peter LI Lan-yiu

FHREL

Prof Leonard LI Sheung-wai (up to 22.11.2018)
TEEBE (BZE2018F 11 H22H)

Ms Janice MORTON
BYRLL

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BRI L
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Cheshire Home, Shatin

WHEREER
Chairman

E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
mE

Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah (up to 16.11.2018)
FRE2ELL (BE2018F11H16H)

Prof Leonard LI Sheung-wai (from 23.11.2018)
TEEZBIE (B 20184 11 23 HE)

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERrEERTEERNEAEK
Hospital Chief Executive
BErTEaE

Mrs Shelley M CHOW
REBL+

Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
RYM+

Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
RERERL

Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
ZIAEEL

Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
Pl

Ms Janice MORTON
EE)

Mr NG Hang-sau, MH
mBEELE

Prof Marco PANG Yiu-chung
TRRBR

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
BATREAE
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Grantham Hospital

EEHER

Chairman Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
B Exakt

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Dr CHENG Chun-ho
K& HEREE

Prof Stephen CHENG Wing-keung
EDK SRR

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
REekt

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISEREE

Mr Edward HO Man-tat
frIREELE

Prof Mary IP Sau-man
BRI

Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEEEHE

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
2B

Mr MA Ching-nam, JP
BEREL

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
BEEZIR
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Haven of Hope Hospital

RS

EEEMR

Chairman Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
B BRI

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R

Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Mr Jonathan CHAN Pok-chi, JP
BRIGE 4

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
B EE

Mr Francis CHAU Yin-ming, BBS, MH
[AERRELE

Mr Stuart CHEN Seng-tek
BRAG L

Mr Charles CHIU Chung-yee

Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
TEAAEEL £+

Dr Hon LAM Ching-choi, SBS, JP
MBI B A

Dr Ares LEUNG Kwok-ling

Dr Andrew LUK Leung
PESEEL
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

BEAHHER

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8
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Mr Keith LAM Hon-keung, JP

WERELT

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEEIEEA R

Hospital Chief Executive

BElriTBEE

Mr Andie CHAN Wai-kwan, MH

BREmEAE

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
AELET

Dr Johnny HON Sei-hoe, MH
EAly

Mr LAl Sze-nuen, SBS, JP
R REL

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
WEERT

Mr Stephen LAM Wai-hung
WERERE

Ms May LAU Mei-mui
Bt

Mr LEE Ka-cheung
FEEREL

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP

Mr SHUM Man-to

M FRELE

Ven SIK Chi-wai, SBS
BEZEM

Ven SIK Hin-hung
BATZERD

Ven SIK Hong-ming
BRBER

Ven SIK Ku-tay
BREEM

Ven SIK Kuan-yun
BEEEM

Ven SIK To-ping
BEDER

Ven SIK Yin-chi
BRRER

Ms WAN Yee-ling
BERET
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Hong Kong Children‘s Hospital

BEREER

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr John LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
TR E

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R

Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Ms Dana CHAN Dan-nar (from 1.10.2018)
BEFHEZct (B 20184 10 5 1 HE)

Mr CHO Wui-hung, MH (from 1.10.2018)
LEMAE (F 20184 108 1 HE)

Prof FOK Tai-fai, SBS, JP (from 25.5.2018)
EREHIR (B 201845 B 25 HE)

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi
BiERELLT

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MK

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
REBHR

Prof LEUNG Ting-fan (up to 24.5.2018)
PEBHT (BFE2018F5HF24H)

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

Prof Grace TANG Wai-king, SBS, JP
BEEHR

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
ElRERR

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP
=IREEL
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
EBIRMER R LEEE R

Chairman Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS
B BEEHELLE
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Dr Connie CHAN CHENG Yuk-yee, MH
K& BRE S L
Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
BREBIK 2+
Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWELT
Dr KWONG Po-yin
BREEL:
Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui
= ke
Dr LEUNG Kin-ping
2leYigt
Prof Julia TAO LAl Po-wah
PR E =R
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, BBS, JP
B2
Dr WONG Yee-him
HLIFHEE
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service

B TFERMAREFRO

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
MR E

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BREERTHEHIERR

Hospital Chief Executive
EERTTBGER

Mr Jeffrey CHUNG Chi-man
BEEE

Prof LI Chi-kong, JP
FENHR

Dr LI Siu-hung

=S

Dr William LO Wing-yan, JP
BEX{CHET

Ms Clara SHEK Ka-lai
ARBUL

Mr Donny SIU Koon-ming
HEAEL

Ms Bonnie SO Yuen-han
BRI LT

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP

FXBEE

Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing
REREL
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital
ERERAIEREIIER

Chairman Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
B HERZt

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
K& PR ST

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
RIBELE

Ms Janet HUI Lai-wah
FTREEL L

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
B IR

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
Mkt

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP

Dr Peter TSOI Ting-kwok, JP
EERELE

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
R L

Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH

ey d e

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
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Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
FEEERRRE=fTEAILER

Chairman Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
*E FEFLE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BRI TERES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
EElTiTBUEE
Members Mr CHAN Siu-tong, MH, JP
K& BRAZESLE
Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
BRI+

Dr CHU Chor-lup
RO EE

Ms Maisy HO, BBS
IR+

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP
FEBEL

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
ERZOI LT

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
BRREL T

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEGEL

Ms Ginny MAN Wing-yee
MR

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH
ERthR L

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
ik P v

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok
AR

Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
BRELL

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
REEHT

Mr Herman WAI Ho-man
BE L

Mr YU See-ho
RETEF L

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
REIREE
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MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

FIRERERN
Chairman Dr Eric CHIEN Ping
B RTELs
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE BrE R RTEEIEEA R
Hospital Chief Executive
BElriTBEE
Members Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP
74| BREEE IR
Mr Calvin CHAN Man-yin
B ERE
Mr Vincent CHENG Wing-ming
EREAGR S
Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
RXEHE
Mr Benny CHEUNG Wai-leung, BBS
RERKE
Ms Josephine HO Yuen-ling
AR I+
Dr Pamela LEUNG Pui-yu
2 ET
Dr MAK Kin-cheung
EEEA
Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
SEEEL
Mr Sammy NG Wai-tong
REELE
Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
"R L
Mr YU See-ho
R RE
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North District Hospital

R

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
Rt

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R

Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Mr DENG Kai-rong, MH, JP

CilEEE

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
F XA

Ms Stella FUNG Siu-wan
BEOEL L

Dr Raymond HO Shu-kwong
IR EEL

Mr HO Wing-yin
fXEEE

Mr HUNG Siu-ling, MH
v

Mr LI Kwok-yiu
FEIESEE

Mr LIU Sui-biu

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BXERLE

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
BHCRSEE
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fis% 4
North Lantau Hospital
bR LI B e
Chairman Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP
B TNEL LT
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
74| BRI RS
Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, SBS, MH, JP
AEEL T
Mr Tony CHOI Yuk-kwan, MH
ERIRELE
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
BEHEREL
Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH
/A
Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
REZGHR
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP
REIEE
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Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

0 EE
S SE

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP
EHRALSE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R
Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BUXERE

Ms Maria CHIANG Lai-ling
BESLL

Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
ZEREEA

Mr John J CLANCEY

Dr Nancy FOK Lai-ling

EEREE

Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
BRPEL

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS
BBkt

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
MERIEIE L

Ms June LO Hing-yu
BEIFAL

Ms Brenda LO Yin-cheung
ERA LT

Rev Edward PHILLIPS

Dr Louis SHIH Tai-cho, JP
SEREEE

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
Bt

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
=EREL

Sister Marya ZABOROWSKI
BRZEER

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2 B% & 32 /5 % & 2018-19

17



Appendix 4
fitex 4

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RELEXAMBITEER

Chairman Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
£33 BERELE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Mr David CHAU Shing-yim
K& REREE

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, JP
EfiRiEiS 1

Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
AR L.
Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
ARELL

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WEREL

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
fElaL

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
TRl

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
SRERE

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BLIRETH

Mr Dominic WONG Chi-chung
FEERE

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
BB E
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Pok Oi Hospital
BE R

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr LEE Yuk-fat, MH

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREERTREHEERE

Hospital Chief Executive

ERr{THGEE:

Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen

BRECIERE

Dr CHAN Kwok-chiu, BBS, MH, JP

PREEE LT

Mrs Josephine KAN CHAN Kit-har
RS

Mr LAM Kwok-hing, MH, JP
ERELE
DrJim LEE
T ET

Dr Charles LO Dgok-sing

Mr NG Kam-ching

RFFLE

Mr PANG Siu-hin, MH
ZONTHRE

Mr WONG Fan-foung, BBS, MH
EMELE

Ms WONG Wai-ling
BENLLT

Mr YUEN Siu-lam
ROMEE
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Prince of Wales Hospital
BT TR

Chairman Ms Winnie NG, JP
*E Rt

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
74| PRSI

Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
HELRE

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
TR EF LT

Ms Jacqueline LEUNG
REL+

Ir Peter MOK Kwok-woo
BEIMLE

Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
it g

Mr SIU Hin-hong
mEMEL

Dr WONG Kwai-lam
=EMELT
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
FHDEER

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
£ HigsEt+

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R
Hospital Chief Executive
EERTTBGER

Prof Gladys CHEING Lai-ying
Ef 7 %

Ms Yvonne CHUA
BT

Ms Maisy HO, BBS
BBt

Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS
=RIEEL

Mr KU Moon-lun

momBd

Ms KWAN Sau-ling

B E /A

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
TEERET

Dr David NG Ka-sing
REBEL

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
Bkt

Dr YU Yuk-ling
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital

BREER T RN

Chairman Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP
B IRERT
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Dr Steven J CANNON
K& BERET
Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
BESLELE
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
X2t
Prof John LEE Chi-kin, JP
Y RHR
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R EHIR
Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching
BEERE
Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BEATT
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
REREE
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Ruttonjee & Tang

RIAREER R

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Shiu Kin Hospitals

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxEEL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BhrEE R TERAIAENEK

Hospital Chief Executive

B TEHAE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
FEIBHUR

Ms Kenny LEE Kwun-yee, MH
FYELL

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
RERE

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

Dr LIU Ka-ling

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
BiRERL

Mr Terry NG Sze-yuen

C -

Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
REKRELT

Mr Burji S SHROFF

Mr Neville S SHROFF, JP
[EtEmEE

Mr Noshir N SHROFF
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, SBS, JP
B HZEE

Ms Alice WOO Wai-see
RERLL
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Shatin Hospital

§ B s
7D HEERR

Chairman Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
B 6

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B R TEES S EHR R
Hospital Chief Executive
B TEER:
Members Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
K& BRI
Mr Jeckle CHIU
BRLE

Mr CHIU Man-leong
B RELE

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
BRIEELE

Mr Francis CHU Chan-pui, BBS
REERE

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BRI

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
RRERE

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WakE

Mr LAU Kim-hung
BRI E
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Tai Po Hospital
AIHERR

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP

RABEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R
Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
BTt

Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
ESRR B i+

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
XA

Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat

FHERE

Ms Gigi PANG Che-kwan
Ay =y -

Mr Patrick TANG Ming-tai
MeEREL

Dr YIP Ka-chee
ESMEL
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The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay
AOBRBREABRAREER

Chairman Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, JP
B REREL
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EANE BrE R RTEEIEEA R
Hospital Chief Executive
BElriTBEE
Members Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue
74| BEEFEE
Prof Godfrey CHAN Chi-fung
PRI

Ms Ophelia CHAN Chiu-ling, BBS
BRERZL

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
RXEHIR

Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie
FEIREL

Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
BERIR At

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
BEMEL

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak, JP
7y

Dr Barbara TAM Sau-man
ARt

Mr John WAN Chung-on
BB L
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital

RIKEEE R

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP

Fr@est

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BhrEE R TR AR
Hospital Chief Executive
BPiTHRE

Dr HO Wing-tim, MH
LRI

Dr LAU Chau-ming
BIRRsEiE L

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEGEL

Mr TANG Cheuk-him

ek Ve

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BRESLLE

Mr Thomas WAN Yiu-ming
FlER L
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ftsx 4

Tseung Kwan O Hospital

= RE

Chairman Dr Eliza C H CHAN, SBS, JP
34 BREEEL

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Appendices %

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEEIEEA R

Hospital Chief Executive
BElriTBEE

Mr Tony CHOW Kar-ming
RZBEE

Mr KAN Shun-ming
IS4

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
Hheean

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
Y SHR

Mr Philip LI Ka-leung
TRBEE

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
Dr Hayles WAl Heung-wah
mmERL

Mr Alan WONG Chi-kong, SBS
Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FREBEE

Dr WONG Kwing-keung
Vi
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ftsx 4

Tuen Mun Hospital

HEFE R

Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
£ REREL

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEHEIEEHA R

Hospital Chief Executive

B lriTHEE

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwaong
PREH T

Dr Shirley IP Pui-seung

TR

Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH
FHREL

Ms Yvette Therese MA

S

Dr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH
FIREBEL

Dr WONG Kwing-keung
EfREL

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIDRt

Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
BB RELE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXERE

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
2 e
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Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital &
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
BREEEE [ Ko SR EE PR P R SR 3 = [ B S2 il B2 P

Chairman
8

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
(77=]

Appendices %

Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
FTEREE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EREERTEERIEAEK

Hospital Chief Executive

EiTBUEE

Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS

B E+

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP

REekt

Ms Maisy HO, BBS

fAItBEL T

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS

BeAREE

Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing

FERALSEE

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP

FEBEL

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS

PR

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung

BEHEE

Ms Ginny MAN Wing-yee
lieg

Ms Bonnie NG Hoi-yan

iy e

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH

ERthR it

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

ik S (S wiast

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok

FHEBELL

Mr TONG Chun-wan

BIRESE

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

BRLE

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing

HEEHT

Mr Herman WAI Ho-man
EREEE
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United Christian Hospital

EEHHARR

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Hospital Chief Executive

Chairman Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

*E X ELE

ERKE ErEE R TEER I ERE
ER TEEE

Members Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse

8 ARBZELt

Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man

SEFLL

Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP

SBIDERAE

Rev FONG Sing-fong (up to 12.3.2019)
HAJTHER (BE 201943/ 128 )

Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu

REIRAAD

Rt Rev Dr Timothy KWOK Chi-pei

WEREH

Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS, MH

MEEEL

Mr LAU Chun-chuen

AR REE

Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan

FERSE

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH

FEFRSEE

Mr Michael LI Man-toa

R

Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan

SBIFHE L

Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH

FIRIBR A

Rev PO Kam-cheong

=G

Mr Thomas TSANG Fuk-chuen

HER ks

Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP

=l Lz

Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP

eyl

Mr David WONG Tat-kee

EEESAE

Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling

E/ay

Rev YU Yan-ming

KRB BAED

Rev YUNG Chuen-hung

SEEKEA
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Yan Chai Hospital

(ZEER

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Appendices %

Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
SRS L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BrE R RTEEIEEA R
Hospital Chief Executive
BElriTBEE

Mr Sam CHAU Chung-tung
RARSEE

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
ERELLE

Dr Marcella CHEUNG Man-ka
£ 3'E hn

Dr Paul IP Kung-ching
ERERLT

Mr Jason LEUNG Wai-kwang
RENTE

Mr Peter LO Siu-kit, MH
BMERAE

Miss Erica TANG Sui-yan
EREER/IVE

Miss WONG Chor-kei
gL\l

Mr Vincent WONG Yin-shun
FERELE

Mr YAU Kam-ping, BBS, MH
R IEE

Dr Anthony YEUNG Chun-wai
H&RERL
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees
BigEAREERE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

AERHFENEEE

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
mE

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
BESUL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BREERTEEHRIERR

Director of Health or his / her representative
BEEERIHRSR

Mr AU Lap-sing, MH

BRIZR e

Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue

BEETFRE

Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
BREEE LA

Dr Peter CHEE Pay-yun

MAREA

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, JP
BiRsEm L

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

BEEL

Ms Jacqueline CHUNG Ka-man
BEHLT

Mr JONG Koon-sang

HEELE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong

[ yap el

Dr LAU Chor-chiu, MH, JP (up to 30.9.2018)
2IB5BE (BE 20184 9H 30H)
Ms LEE Kwai-chun, MH

FTEDLT

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZoxEET

Ms LI Chun-chau

FERLL

Dr C C LUK, JP (from 1.10.2018)
MELIREAE (H 20184 105 1 ARE)
Ms Ginny MAN Wing-yee

MR

Prof Eric TSE Wai-choi

HEI IR

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

BRLL

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP

Y HEL

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RERELE
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee

NEREERREE

Chairman
*E

Ex-pfficio members
ERKE

Members
RE

Appendices %

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP (up to 30.11.2018)

Y RHIR (BE 20184 11 H30H)

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP (from 1.12.2018)
FNHEEE (B 20184 12 H 1 A#E)

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BREERTHESSERK

Director of Health or his / her representative
AEEBRIEARK

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
BEIMGRIEE

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
RANEHIR

Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWET

Mr CHO Wui-hung, MH (from 1.10.2018)
ERSRE (B 20184 105 1 HEE)
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
BRZEz T

Ms Yvonne CHUA

SRR T

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH

AELELT

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-hing, MH
MLk

Ms LAM Yuen-pun

MEER T

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS

BIRBER AT

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
ERREL

Mr LEE Wing-man, MH
TARELE

Mr LO Chiu-kit

Loyt e

Rev Van LO Wai-chuen
BB

Mr PAU Ming-hong

$sERRSE A

Mr Donny SIU Koon-ming
EEALE

Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH
BEEEL

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing
HAEET

Dr Hayles WAl Heung-wah
mmERL

Mr Vincent WONG Yin-shun
FERELE

Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, MH
Y EREA

Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP
EEEEL

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
=EGREL
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
HMAREARNREE

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
8

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BXERLE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BREERTHESIERR

Director of Health or his / her representative

BAEEERIHAK
Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
BRI A

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
BRELIE T

Mr CHAN Man-wah, MH
BROCESR A

Mr DENG Kai-rong, MH, JP
BHRLLLE

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
hRBRE

Dr LAU Chee-sing

2IE et

Mr LEE Yuk-fat, MH

Mr MAN Kwong-ming
SRR

Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
gt

Prof Simon NG Siu-man
SR

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu

Mr SIU Hin-hong

ERmE

Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
G

Mr Patrick TANG Ming-tai
WAL

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrBEL

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, BBS, MH, JP
"HEBL T

Mr YIU Ming
57 e
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the
Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme 2018-19
2018-19 FEEREERABEEEIEEREENKE

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
*E HEXEL

Trustees Mr CHAN Chor-wing (from 16.9.2018)
(EftZE8 RRNEEEAE (2018 FE 9 H 16 HE)

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BRERELE

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu
g

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi
BiERELL

Mr LAl Wai-sang

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai (up to 30.9.2018)
TEERE (B2 20184F9H30H)

Dr Stanley LO Hok-king (up to 30.7.2018)
BEWRE (BZE 20184 7H308)

Mr Dave NGAN Man-kit
B R

Dr PANG Fei-chau (from 20.11.2018)
ERIYEEE (B 20184E 11 A 20 HRE)

Mr QUEK Yat-sum
WRHREE

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
TS

Mr WONG Yiu-lun (up to 15.9.2018)
BB (BE 20184 9H 15H)

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

Dr Joseph YEUNG Shing (from 16.9.2018)
BB (B 20184 95 16 A )
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Public Feedback Statistics
XIX,‘_.\E.%JLn'I'

Complaint / Appreciation Received (1.4.2018 — 31.3.2019)
Wik / EHET (2018 4H1H—2019% 3831 H)

Public Complaints Committee
DNRBFEEE

Nature of cases Number of appeal cases
FELk=y FERERET
Medical services E&EEAR %5 178
Staff attitude BEREE 25
Administrative procedure T2 20
Others Efth 12
Total number of appeal cases handled 235
BRIE FEREREH

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

Bhriek / BR / BHBHE

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
KR/ BR / EREEEE REREF BRET ERET
Medical services E&BAR T 1370 4893 27652
Staff attitude BiEREE 404 2872 10379
Administrative procedure TBER 296 3177 1032
Overall performance 282318 122 2074 419
Others Efth 24 858 2915
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 2216 13874 42 397

Biniesh / BR /BI5HRE

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

EBRPIRZE I / BR / BiEHE

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
#iR/ BR / EiGEREE BEREF BERET ERET
Medical services EERS 78 341 3158
Staff attitude BEREE 36 340 1258
Administrative procedure fTEIER 30 371 94
Overall performance Eg23<R 8 100 86
Others Efth 1 27 171
Total number of complaint / feedback / appreciation received by GOPC 153 1179 4767

LEMFIZE MR/ BR / BIEHAE

*(General outpatient clinics
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Statistics of the Controlling Officer's Report

EHABHEHART

The Hospital Authority generally achieved its performance targets in 2018-19.
The volume of patient care activities across the full range of services in 2018-19
is comparable to the level in 2017-18.

The key activity data in respect of the Hospital Authority are:

BREERAMLES _F—\E-NEFENREE
RER - B\ E-NEEBARABERBE
EREEE_F—TE— \GENKFHEE -

BHEBREERRENEIEZHENT

2017-2018 2018-2019
(I) Access to services AJEXFHIBRTS
inpatient services fEFzHRF
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) BfefRREE (BE=A=+—H)
general (acute and convalescent) &R} ( SAEKESE ) 22027 22561
infirmary Z&&8 2041 2041
mentally ill fER 3607 3647
mentally handicapped £ BERt 680 680
overall #&5t 28355 28929
ambulatory and outreach services E[E R4} ERF
accident and emergency (A&E) services =iEZ AR 7%
percentage of A&E patients within target waiting time
EEEREREAEEENSERANBAE
triage | (critical cases - 0 minute) (%) 25 | 2873 (@FAEE— 0 A& ) (%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) % | 5] (= EZE— 15 94 ) (%) 97 97
triage Il (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) 28 Il 831 ( B&EZR— 30 £ ) (%) 76 7
specialist outpatient services R PID IR
median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinics
ERD TR R A R A2k
first priority patients E—&&EMDRWA <1 week 257 <1 week 257
second priority patients E_BEMDHA 5 weeks 2 5 weeks 2
rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)
BRERZANERE (BZ2=A=1+—H)
no. of community nurses #tEE & H 490 504
no. of geriatric day places Z AR HE B4 659 659
psychiatric services (as at 31 March) ##& k% (BZ=A=+—8H)
no. of community psychiatric nurses SR EELT2E 139 134
no. of psychiatric day places &% H B2 889 889
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fis% 8
2017-2018 2018-2019
() Delivery of services Rz fHHIBRFE
inpatient services {£BEHR#E
no. of discharges and deaths &Rfem AR ARRFET A
general (acute and convalescent) @5 ( ZAEREEE ) 1138748 1132311
infirmary &&Ex 3400 3081
mentally ill FEER: 17432 17915
mentally handicapped & &} 629 577
overall #&5t 1160209 1153884
no. of patient days mAEFE AR
general (acute and convalescent) E&@R} (SAEKESE ) 6662514 6722220
infirmary &R 498621 490592
mentally ill FEER: 918 456 936 747
mentally handicapped Z5fER 191510 186631
overall #&5t 8271101 8336 190
bed occupancy rate (%) ERIEEX (%)
general (acute and convalescent) E&@R} ( SAEKEE ) 93 92
infirmary &8 89 89
mentally ill FEERl 70 71
mentally handicapped Z5fER 77 75
overall f&5t 89 89
average length of stay (days)* 9 (ERzrsE (H )*
general (acute and convalescent) E&@7} (SAEKESE ) 59 5.9
infirmary &&R 139 121
mentally iLl FB1R 55 52
mentally handicapped & &R} 303 323
overall #&5t 7.2 7.2
ambulatory and outreach services B R4} RERFS
day inpatient services B E{EGwE AR
no. of discharges and deaths B AR RIETAZ 659413 681985
A&E services 2EERHE
no. of attendances BZ AR 2189040 2157617
no. of attendances per 1000 population &F AQRIEZ AR 296 290
no. of first attendances for BXB2 ARD
triage | 28 | #7| 22 144 22230
triage Il 28 |1 251 52111 52016
triage Il 28 Il 2830 749179 7148643
specialist outpatient services &I FI2 IR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) new attendances 790 355 813844
ERIM (FBK) FERD AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 6926315 7088005
ERPID (BRIR) EEEDAR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 7716670 7901 849
ERIMP (FRIR) B2HEAR
primary care services £/8 S B R %
no. of general outpatient attendances E&@R PS5 AR 6081738 6059222
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances REEZSERPIDTHD AR 311626 311771
total no. of primary care attendances 2B B &R DIEAR 6393 364 6370993
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fis% 8
2017-2018 2018-2019
rehabilitation and palliative care services B8 K iFiE -2 RIS
no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 98 104 98770
BRAE R A #5838 H BRERE AR
no. of home visits by community nurses # BT ReRE 877610 890668
no. of allied health (community) attendances EEEE®E (#t& ) SL2 AR 36 426 36003
no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances ERER (P92 ) B2 AR 2 745545 2865372
geriatric services EAR R
no. of outreach attendances #&XIMNERHE AR 685 469 679871
nP;of geriatrjc elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1766 1854
BEXEERETENESE AZ
no. of geriatric day attendances & A%l BB &z AR 148258 146 059
no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances &= EZBAARAR 110805 106514
psychiatric services fEtHRHRTS
no. of psychiatric outreach attendances EZIEHRIMNERIEAR 292121 306 327
no. of psychiatric day attendances B#% B EERH 2 AR 222303 225663
no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances %X AEHRISMNE R AR 98 440 100793
(1) Quality of services BRFEEF
no. of hospital deaths per 1 000 population® &F A D HE ATEERSETAZ 3.0 2.8
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.6 10.6
LERELR A LA 28 RKRIEENBARE (%)
(IV) Cost of services BRF 2
cost distribution B & 3%
cost distribution by service types (%) IZBREHERIEIDHBRAATEDE (%)
inpatient {FFEARHE 54.4 54,2
ambulatory and outreach B & RINEIRES 456 458
cost by service types per 1 000 population (HKSMn)
BT ADRBRBEENBANRBERA (BEEET)
inpatient {EFtARE 4.5 4.8
ambulatory and outreach B & RINEIRES 3.8 4.0
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 #E3( M E A THIFRES BRA
share of cost of services (%) FREPTEHEEANE DX (%) 48.5 489
cost of services per 1000 population (HKSMn) 24.5 25.4
BTAONRBEA (BEEET)
unit costs BT
inpatient services fEFzHRF
cost per inpatient discharged (HKS) &4 R ARIRA (BT)
general (acute and convalescent) Z&ER ( RERRE) 26,110 28,120
infirmary Z&&R 239,970 268,570
mentally ill B 147,780 151,370
mentally handicapped £ R} 513,660 584,790
cost per patient day (HKS) RABBEEA (EiT)
general (acute and convalescent) @8 (SEREE) 4,950 5,270
infirmary Z&% 1,640 1,690
mentally ill B3R 2,810 2,900
mentally handicapped £ &R 1,690 1,810
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2017-2018 2018-2019

ambulatory and outreach services BRIt RERFE

cost per A&E attendance (HKS) REZBXRZERIRA (BT) 1,390 1,530

cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HKS) ERIFIREBRZENHEA (BT) 1,230 1,280

cost per general outpatient attendance (HKS) Z@RIPIZ SRDAENEA (FBT) 470 495

cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HKS) 1,180 1,210

REEZERNMIDEBRDENERA (BT)

cost per outreach visit by community nurse (HKS) 91 625

tRETEBRINERBHEA (B7T)

cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HKS) 1,660 1,710

BERIMNERESRMEA (BIT)

cost per geriatric day attendance (HKS) £ AR BEERSRRBNEA (BT) 2,240 2,330
fee waivers™ W& R ~

percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA) fee waiver (%) 17.5 16.4

IREHERERY (FR) KBREADE (%)

percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%)* 12.8 17.2

FRBREREEAE (%)

Notes:

* Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the
corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated.

Refers to the standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient and
day inpatient deaths in Hospital Authority hospitals in a particular year.
The standardised rate, as a standard statistical technique to facilitate
comparison over years, is calculated by applying the Hospital Authority
age-specific hospital death rate in that particular year to the “standard”
population in mid-2001.

Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge.

With effect from 15 July 2017, the medical fee waiver for public healthcare
services has been extended to cover Old Age Living Allowance (OALA)
recipients meeting the eligibility criteria. In this regard, the percentage of
non-CSSA fee waiver for 2017-18 and 2018-19 includes fee waiver for OALA
recipients of 6.6 percent and 10.6 percent respectively.

A

fiat

*

A

ZERRATRREREGLAENERRA LR
FEZEANMHE -

BER—FENZEERE NBRERkBEERR
ATRTCABNRECRTE - BERECHTEXRE
HEEREZFESEFRANNERBALT
Z 2AR"ST-EETN "THRE, AOMFE
HRE - ER—ERENRETTIE - BELEAR
FRAETX -

ERR R BBBENE DX
B_E—tEtATLARE ALEFEREERR
SRHCERECERNRELTRMTEA -
It BEFERERENS B —tE\EEK
B \E-NEENRRBRAERRELER
MEBAER  BERAMERHRE DRI 5% 6.6%
£ 10.6% °
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Statistics on Number of Beds, lnpatient, Accident &
Emergency and Outpatient Services in 2018-19

2018-19 FEMRAH A ~ (EFhTS « SEZRRFFRFT

IR HET T

No. of Family  Total Allied
hospital ~ Total IP & DP Inpatient Total SOP Medicine Health
beds (as at 31 discharges  Inpatient bed average (clinical) Specialist  (Outpatient)
March2019)  anddeaths  occupancy length of attendances”’ Clinic ~ attendances™ General
BEmK EREE[ rate(%)  stay(days) TotalASE  ZHRIF9%  attendances’  EEEEEE  Outpatient
ZE (B ARmA  #RWA  #RBA  attendances (BRFR) REREZ (F92) attendances®
Institution W9FE HRARK RRERE TR SRR By  ERMD By LTENMD
1818 3A3IA)  FETAH %) BE(E) B2EAR  BAKRY HZART  BARY mBAR®
Hong Kong East Cluster
B SRR
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 412 81.6 1325 217
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 1829 150234 86.6 5.6 133149 609571 56792 176106 392506
REABRAIITEER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 623 28196 91.9 75 72601 139 844 9882 105671 136756
BRAREIER B
St John Hospital =l B&Fr 87 3478 500 3.2 8978 - 7706 34871
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital BRZEER 265 7502 88.8 148 97722 34374 28227
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital E474122%% 160 142 96.2 3025 - - - - -
Sub-total /g 3204 189964 87.8 7.2 214728 847137 66674 324074 592 360
Hong Kong West Cluster
A= i
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at 133 4509 62.0 8.4 21587 36478
Sandy Bay
ARORBEABRAREER
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King 279 3165 722 18.2 622 475
Hospital
RE=[DSEHER
Grantham Hospital &2/ E 5 389 17858 85.2 12.0 127630 24148
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 110 1127 535 19.4 211 2508
B E R
Queen Mary Hospital 35 EEZ£ % 1711 166 390 788 45 123901 681262 21 495 151222 353269
Tung Wah Hospital ERZEEE[7 532 25222 81.4 146 49912 6264 31822
Tsan Yuk Hospital 5 25 1 153 - 23525 5165 -
Sub-total /N5t 3148 218424 11.1 6.3 123901 904 749 21495 226260 385091
Kowloon Central Cluster
B B PR
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 32 8020 98.7 16.5 13059 16823 44786
BEHHER
Hong Kong Children's Hospital® 40 15 57.5 15 472 88
EBRERR’
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &8 iR E& 2 45 8154 41.1 bt 245518 26357
Kowloon Hospital J1EE 25 1361 17489 87.2 25.1 - 89477 - 140495 -
Kwong Wah Hospital EEZE2& 5 1186 95367 82.3 43 127046 362 349 3711 165429 201021
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E2 & 2z 236 11098 76.7 8.9 - 65528 1528 35098 396 332
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (FFFIMAZEFE 1941 211090 98.0 53 185515 726790 9317 263911 511227
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 53] 9832 88.4 19.1 29 1019
Hospital
RE=EAIIELR
Sub-total /N5t 5664 361065 90.1 1.4 312561 1503222 14556 649165 1153366
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Ffts% O
No. of Family ~ Total Allied
hospital ~ Total IP & DP Inpatient Total SOP Medicine Health
beds (as at 31 discharges  Inpatient bed average (clinical) Specialist  (Qutpatient)
March2019)  anddeaths  occupancy length of attendances” Clinic ~ attendances™ General
BEmK EREERE rate(%)  stay(days) TotalASE  FHRIFS%  attendancess  EEEESE  Outpatient
B (B2 #hwA  ERmA EFRA  attendances (BR) REES (F32) attendances”
Institution W9E HREARK RRERE TR DER By  ERMY B EENMD
s 3A3R)  ETAH %) BE(E) B2BAR  BAKRY  HZART  BARY BBAR®
Kowloon East Cluster
NEER B PR
Haven of Hope Hospital EE 22z 481 7584 95.3 208 8937 5254 -
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 2R 8 5 1417 71765 101.5 51 116275 335405 270 161101 329394
United Christian Hospital Z& #5257 1499 121987 95.8 5.4 166 409 551 384 65141 240783 655 969
Sub-total /J\5t 2721 201 336 97.3 6.1 282 684 895726 65411 407138 985363
Kowloon West Cluster
REFE S PR
Caritas Medical Centre B3 B4z 1211 70270 87.0 B.4 132911 413542 3804 90471 301504
Kwai Chung Hospital 3% B4 920 4531 709 543 - 238588 - 35208 -
North Lantau Hospital Jb AU LI Bz 90 5839 825 50 93057 16282 1056 37 447 94 842
Princess Margaret Hospital 35 52 71 E& 5% 1773 155603 935 5.2 123698 465086 17483 123538 355789
Yan Chai Hospital {Z & B2 813 62 364 88.9 49 124416 240875 5616 108555 286819
Sub-total /NGt 4807 298607 86.1 6.5 474082 1374373 27959 395219 1038954
New Territories East Cluster
b G
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 585 64310 83.8 45 114794 284721 4914 129984 252781
REXAYEIITRER
Bradbury Hospice (3 IR B2 & ) 26 650 87.1 129 28 2458
Cheshire Home, Shatin 5 F 22 €& 304 156 69.0 480.1 - - - 99 -
North District Hospital 1t %% 646 50612 95.4 54 98067 193642 4756 75964 275354
Prince of Wales Hospital 2 B8 £ &% 1734 182996 90.6 52 143598 801737 52069 228225 505358
Shatin Hospital 74 FHE& 2 571 9502 90.7 19.7 701 1739 -
Tai Po Hospital A3 2Rz 994 10458 90.4 256 536 1065
Sub-total /J\5t 4860 318684 88.9 73 356459 1281365 61739 439534 1033493
New Territories West Cluster
57 P B P it
Castle Peak Hospital 75112805 1156 2786 64.1 975 146538 26388
Pok Oi Hospital &% B&Fx 795 61409 1049 6.6 110093 148149 17822 86323
Siu Lam Hospital /) V&2 520 566 87.8 3326
Tuen Mun Hospital TP9 2 2016 178116 1029 6.2 173 467 794718 21 346 257875 870595
Tin Shui Wai Hospital 7K [ EF5 32 4912 778 17 109 642 5872 14769 53396
Sub-total /NGt 4519 2471789 90.6 9.0 393202 1095277 53937 423982 870595
GRAND TOTAL &5t 28929 1835869 88.5 7.2 2157617 7901849 311771 2865372 6059222
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Notes:

1. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2019 is based on the Annual Survey
on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2018-19.

2. Qutpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under respective
hospital management.

3. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include attendances
from nurse clinics in SOP setting.

4, Total Allied Health (Qutpatient) attendances exclude follow-up
consultations provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

5. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from
nurse clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare reform
initiative programmes in primary care.

6. Hong Kong Children's Hospital commenced service by phases in December
2018.

Abbreviations:

IP — Inpatient

DP — Day inpatient

A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP — Specialist Outpatient
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Statistics on Community and Rehabilitation Services

in2018-19

2018-19 FEMERREEERBHAEF

Rehabilitation
Psycho-  Community Visiting day &npalliative
Home  Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical  Allied Health care day Psychiatric
visits by outreach outreach  Assessment Officer ~ (Community)  attendances  Geriatric day day
community  attendances  attendances’ Service®  attendances’  attendances’ BEfEN  attendances’  attendances
nurses EESOREARL  BREA  #EBEA  EXIP BEREER  FEER ZAR TR
Institution HEEL  NERE BRRNE Tz BERR (#&) ARERE AEER BESR
-7 KR AR BREBAR i AR BBARS  B2AR B2AR®  BZAX
Hong Kong East Cluster
A SR B
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 12
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 92320 23 440 11141 864 304 16150 26135
REABRATITEER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 96274 19377 2076 6845 18 141
BIAREIER B
St John Hospital EE&Bx 4,858 1 -
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital BRZEE iz 87 34411 -
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital E= 173185 - - - - 1 - 2367 -
Sub-total /N5 97178 23440 11141 96 274 19377 3041 41560 36658 26135
Hong Kong West Cluster
& S a BB
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at 4
Sandy Bay
ARORRBARRATERR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King 58574 12 441 2560 5725
Hospital
RE=[FUREHER
Grantham Hospital 2 25345 px 29 5413
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 66 14145
B E R
Queen Mary Hospital 35 EE 2z 57341 21553 13503 724 - - 20750
Tung Wah Hospital B Z=5& 5z 212 7813 6152 -
Tsan Yuk Hospital 25 B& 52 - - - - - - - 1023
Sub-total /N5t 57 341 21553 13503 58574 12 441 3595 27371 11877 21773
Kowloon Central Cluster
s B PRk
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 123 2790
BEHHER
Kowloon Hospital f1EE 2[5 82206 20108 9037 36345 5149 1453 926 3023 11533
Kwong Wah Hospital EEZEEE [ 42838 61832 9753 907 8884
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E2&-54F5 55915 17681 - 92 775 -
Queen Elizabeth Hospital A1/ (5 34874 7271 2415 11297
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 80 10863
Hospital
RE=EAIIER
Sub-total /st 180959 20108 9037 150732 22173 5070 4491 34067 11533
Kowloon East Cluster
FURE R B R
Haven of Hope Hospital & B4z 33089 6978 203 2512 5930
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 1 & SR 2[5 52
United Christian Hospital & & 2z 141 585 34020 9818 42502 7887 1253 2436 14675 32546
Sub-total /NGt 174674 34020 9818 49480 7887 1508 5008 20605 32546
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Rehabilitation
Psycho-  Community Visiting day &palliative
Home  Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical  Allied Health care day Psychiatric
visits by outreach outreach  Assessment Officer  (Community)  attendances  Geriatric day day
community  attendances  attendances’ Service’  attendances’  attendances’ BEfER  attendances’  attendances
nurses ESREMEL BREA  HEEA  EXIY  BEER  FiEER ZAR TR
Institution HEEL  MNERE BRRIMNE Tz BERE (#&) AERE BAESR A f‘éﬂ%&?
s EGE AR REAR g’ ARS BZARS  B2AR B2AR®  BHZAX
Kowloon West Cluster
BB S PR
Caritas Medical Centre B B2z 63353 - 41555 4439 259 1431 12971 -
Kwai Chung Hospital 2%/ 2% = 95590 29394 - 2682 - 67702
North Lantau Hospital Jb AU | LI Bz 8102 2914 4464 213 6164
Princess Margaret Hospital 35322154kt 49003 - 41899 5498 1214 2186 14460
Yan Chai Hospital {Z 88z 363717 - 42749 6088 309 - 7944 -
Sub-total /N5t 156 835 98 504 29394 130660 16025 4877 9781 35375 67702
New Territories East Cluster
by
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 3779 - 789 30632 7128 2856 794 3874 11158
TR M E T = B
Bradbury Hospice (3 IR B2 & ) 65 280
Cheshire Home, Shatin Y FA 22 K& - - - - - - -
North District Hospital k&% 36754 11620 7873 28 344 6617 3194 340 10208 11024
Prince of Wales Hospital i B35 T 25z 52439 - - 23345 7283 4210 - - -
Shatin Hospital 74 A E& 2 5 23851 5830 548 6014 13383 16208
Tai Pa Hospital A2 s 10050 226 22 - 7540 8150
Sub-total /)5t 126 987 45521 14718 82321 21028 10895 7428 35005 46 540
New Territories West Cluster
5 FE e P
Castle Peak Hospital 115405z 63181 13182 2688 13211
Pok Qi Hospital 185 Bz 27 864 54724 3775 482 5969
SiuLam Hospital /) MEZ R 6
Tuen Mun Hospital T5F9 2 66 424 58960 3808 3631 3131 13303 6223
Tin Shui Wai Hospital K7k BB 2406 410
Sub-total /NGt 96694 63181 13182 113684 7583 7217 3131 19272 19434
GRAND TOTAL #&5t 890668 306 327 100793 681725 106514 36003 98770 192859 225663
Notes: i

1. Figures also include home visits and crisis intervention.

2. Figures also include home visits and consultation-liaison attendances.

3. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total
number of outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons assessed for
infirmary care service.

4. Visiting Medical Officer attendances refer to the attendances receiving
services provided to elderly persons living in Resident Care Homes for the
Elderly under the Visiting Medical Officers Scheme introduced in 2003-04.

5. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations
provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

6. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances in Integrated Discharge
Support Program (IDSP) for elderly patients.

The activity performed in different centers and teams are grouped under
respective hospital management.
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Big% 11(a)

Manpower Position — by Cluster and Institution
AFARR — RIS R EED 1

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2019)"%*“
£ARBASHE (201943 B 31 BgFx)

Allied

Institution Medical ~ Nursing Health Others Total
T BE& £E  EEER EHith fast
Hong Kong East Cluster & 55 B8 671 2855 847 4 045 8418
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok &8 & KE &R 3 63 10 114 190
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital REAER AT &R 530 1930 569 2609 5638
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 2308 KB Bl 92 584 179 147 1602
St John Hospital £ 6 35 8 80 129
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital EZ& 38 195 77 352 662
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital #1138k 2 49 4 144 199
Hong Kong West Cluster /& S bz 697 2891 971 3569 8128
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay 16 92 57 136 300
RORBEAFRATESER

Grantham Hospital &2 #£5kk 31 261 66 317 675
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre Z53 415 Bl [ 41 35 87 164
Queen Mary Hospital® # & 5kz ° 585 2101 696 2509 5892
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital RZE=5 M EE T 19 80 33 142 273
Tung Wah Hospital RZEEfR 44 316 85 378 824
Kowloon Central Cluster ji.58 A 2P} 1318 5522 1695 7758 16293
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service &8I+ @& M AR/ 6 97 76 301 480
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &% &k 16 184 43 237 480
Hong Kong Children's Hospital &5 586 86 185 131 49?2 895
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &/&ERF 84Bx 38 73 23 165 299
Kowloon Hospital J1EEE 67 812 206 1014 2099
Kwong Wah Hospital EEZ=E& [z 340 1229 340 1455 3364
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22&82Fx 66 277 85 360 787
Queen Elizabeth Hospital® R4 85 © 674 2393 742 3393 7202
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital BZE =&AL ER 26 270 50 341 687
Kowloon East Cluster f13E 5 E i 754 3120 847 3758 8480
Haven of Hope Hospital 2B Efx 24 308 77 429 838
Tseung Kwan O Hospital &= R 5k 206 873 240 1002 2321
United Christian Hospital ZE & Bt 525 1938 530 2327 5321
Kowloon West Cluster j1. 5275 k8 1078 4506 1275 5392 12252
Caritas Medical Centre A8 262 1002 267 1254 2786
Kwai Chung Hospital 255 & 78 689 135 595 1497
North Lantau Hospital 3t AU LI B 47 132 72 230 476
Princess Margaret Hospital 5215kt 452 1821 577 2229 5079
Yan Chai Hospital {Z7Z&Zkz 245 862 223 1085 2415
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Appendix 11(a)

Biigk 11(a)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2019)"***

SERRMASHE (201943 A 31 AgF) "%
Allied

Institution Medical Nursing Health Others Total
i i EE  ERER Hit st
New Territories East Cluster # 57 5 2B 1057 4565 1310 5678 12610
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital #EE K8 AT = B 180 754 254 944 2132
Bradbury Hospice & B =& 3 34 6 31 73
Cheshire Home, Shatin /> B2 KEER 2 95 12 138 247
North District Hospital 1t @&kz 189 788 214 912 2103
Prince of Wales Hospital E &1 £ 50k 598 2099 655 2591 5943
Shatin Hospital 73 HEfx 42 369 85 529 1025
Tai Po Hospital KBk 43 426 85 533 1087
New Territories West Cluster 35 7522 fhfi 8 852 3756 1037 5508 11154
Castle Peak Hospital 51L&z 76 590 107 670 1 443
Pok Oi Hospital B 143 656 190 888 1877
Siu Lam Hospital /BB 6 152 11 320 489
Tuen Mun Hospital F£FI%&kE 600 2225 663 3280 6768
Tin Shui Wai Hospital RZKEZEz 27 134 66 351 578
Total #&5t 6429 27214 7982 35709 77334
Notes: &

1. This figure excludes 2 326 staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office.

1 ERTREERERENERN 2 326 ZBS -

2. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time & part- 2. AF#% TERZ2BAE | 51 BERERMEE2E

time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary.
3. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.

KARBHER  aHKRERBE -
3. ARMBEAANER  SEAFHMEATERER

T o
4. Manpower figures of individual hospitals / institutions include management 4. SERAFEEBEAEERAHRBREEENE
staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services. bi::N=

5. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in Queen 5. BEBGMREAFESABEERA °

Mary Hospital.

6. Manpower providing services for Rehabaid Centre is included in Queen 6. EREREKERHRLHBRBEAFESAFN D EE

Elizabeth Hospital. B o
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Appendix 11(b)
Big% 11(b)

Manpower Position - by Staff Group
AFARR — B SR 58

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2014-15 - 2018-19'
SRZBAEHE '

2014/15 201516  2016/17 2017/18  2018/19

Medical &
Consultant BB 4 799 840 885 889 927
Senior Medical Officer / Associate Consultant iS#kE4~ / BlEMEE 1785 1872 1922 1935 1982
Medical Officer / Resident (excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 2872 2936 2859 3016 3038
BA /HRBE (REFEIHEL)
Visiting Medical Officer EI5784 18 17 18 18 16
Intern BB EE 401 368 BIiE 470 469
Senior Dental Officer / Dental Officer &I RI84E / FRIBELE 8 8 8 8 8
Medical Total: 5884 6040 6164 6336 6 440
BEABEG:
Nursing 1%
Senior Nursing Officer and above B #k#E+T R E 181 193 196 206 213
Department Operations Manager E8FIE(ERIE 182 184 191 191 194
General Zi&ER -

Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 4114 4286 4428 4563 4707

Advanced Practice Nurse
RERE / ERNEL /LR / EFEM

Registered Nurse =+ 13848 14474 14697 15424 16 044
Enrolled Nurse B+ 2 447 2 436 2421 2 401 2475
Midwife / Others BhiEL / EHftb 4 3 3 3 2
Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse / Temporary Undergraduate 653 611 625 808 1032

Nursing student
SMELTEL /B E TR /EEEEL
Psychiatric #&#7 -
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 945 952 571 584 604

Advanced Practice Nurse
RERHE / SREL / B R / EFEM

Registered Nurse sEfi&+ 1205 1272 1298 1374 1 444

Enrolled Nurse i+ 613 576 550 557 537

Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse sFfi 24 / &t 24 0 0 0 0 0
Nursing Total: 23791 24 587 24980 26111 27 252
EIEA B
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Appendix 11(b)

Bigk 11(0)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2014-15 - 2018-19'

SREBAEHE

2014/15 2015/16  2016/17  2017/18  2018/19
Allied Health EEEE
Audiology Technician B2 02T & 6 6 6 6 5
Clinical Psychologist FgiR/IEER 155 163 171 171 178
Dietitian &ZAM 141 148 160 162 172
Dispenser BLZ& 1186 1249 1289 1316 1367
Medical Technologist / Medical Laboratory Technician 1 347 1 406 1457 1500 1551
BBt/ BHtRE
Mould Technologist / Mould Laboratory Technician 26 26 26 23 21
HEERT R / KEERERME
Optometrist 1840 67 67 70 68 68
Orthoptist REFBIERD 15 14 14 15 15
Occupational Therapist BiZ5)a &AM 731 772 815 849 872
Pharmacist Z2#gf 574 609 635 673 702
Physicist #3288 73 75 76 T4 77
Physiotherapist #152)& &AM 886 969 1028 1 064 1097
Podiatrist &&= &H 39 41 47 50 51
Prosthetist-Orthotist ZE B ED 135 141 144 146 151
Diagnostic Radiographer / Radiation Therapist 1017 1054 1102 1144 1154
TBETRD / TRET R ERAD
Scientific Officer (Medical) RIE2E(E (8% ) 82 87 89 89 93
Speech Therapist & &/&EHN 91 105 110 115 119
Medical Social Worker B34t T 315 333 330 346 360
Dental Technician R E 3 3 3 3 3
Allied Health Total: 6888 7268 7572 7815 8056
BB A B

Care-related Support Staff &2

Health Care Assistant & iR B0 2179 1932 1676 1459 1231
Ward Attendant /AERISE 247 222 191 155 121
Patient Care Assistant & Other Care-related Support Staff 11290 12116 12831 13325 13999
RARBEIEREMERTRAS

Care-related Support Staff Total: 13716 14270 14698 14939 15351
EIETRABMRE:

Direct Patient Care Total: 50278 52 165 53415 55202 57099
ERRAEBEAFEE
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Appendix 11(b)

Big% 11(b)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2014-15 - 2018-19'
SREBAEHE
2014/15  2015/16  2016/17  2017/18  2018/19
Others Hft:
Chief Executive / Director / Deputy Director / Head 7 7 7 7 7
TBHEE / R/ BlRE /=8
Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 26 24 24 21 20
ERrHima e / Bhr TEe R
Chief Manager / Senior Manager / Cluster General Manager / 94 100 102 101 106
General Manager
TEATEURE / RIRITECIE / BRI RIE / (8 ikaE
Other Professionals / Administrator, System Manager, 2297 2405 2555 2681 2847
Analyst Programmer etc
HihEZ /ITRAE » RERE  RERFAMERELE
Other Supporting Staff - Clerical, Secretarial, Workman, 17591 18184 18771 18914 19579
Operation Assistant, Executive Assistant etc
HEfhZRAE — X8~ WE - TA  EFBE - THBES
Non-direct Patient Care Total: 20015 20720 21 459 21725 22560
JEE R AEIE A TG :
HA Total: 70293 72885 74874 76926 79659
BERAFHEE
Note: e

1. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all full-time & part-time
staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. Individual

figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.

LAFR TSR2BAG, 5t BRBERAAZE
FARBAER AN REEBE - AREERAN
B BREFHEMREAFNER -
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Appendix 12(a)
Big% 12(a)

Operating Expenditure'in 2018-19
2018-19 FELEMEY '

Cluster 2018-19 (HKSMn)
429 2018-19 & (B EETT)
Hong Kong East Cluster /& &5 B i 6,693
Hong Kong West Cluster 7579 2&fr48 7,046
Kowloon Central Cluster /15 & Bt 12,733
Kowloon East Cluster /1525 BB 6,736
Kowloon West Cluster 15878 & iR 10,279
New Territories East Cluster #5752 B iR 10,221
New Territories West Cluster #7574 2 8,865
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others’ B BB B Es=R , R’ 2,579
Total &5t 65,152

Notes:

1. Operating expenditure refers to the expenditure to run HA's day-to-day

services. It covers manpower, drug, consumables and daily maintenance
of equipment and facilities, etc. but is separated from expenditure for
capital works projects, major equipment acquisition, major corporate-wide
Information Technology development and transaction of self-financed items
paid by patients.

The operating expenditure of a cluster depends not only on the size and
demographics of the population residing within its catchment districts, but
also on other factors such as service demand generated from cross-cluster
movement of patients and the provision of designated services (such as
liver transplantation). As such, the scope of hospital facilities and expertise
available in different clusters also vary. Therefore, operating expenditure of
individual clusters is not directly comparable.

2. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office (such as

insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of medical interns)
and on information technology, as well as recurrent expenditure for
supporting the Government's electronic health initiatives.
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Appendix 12(b)
Bigx 12(b)

Training and Development Expenditure' in 2018-19
2018-19 FEH SR ZREAS '

Cluster 2018-19 (HKSMn)
429 2018-19 &£ (BiEET)
Hong Kong East Cluster /& &5 B i 14.2
Hong Kong West Cluster 7578 2B 10.3
Kowloon Central Cluster J1527 B 24.2
Kowloon East Cluster /15258 B iR 9.2
Kowloon West Cluster J1EE7 5 Fitid 7.1
New Territories East Cluster #7575 B[R 15.0
New Territories West Cluster #7574 2Frii 9.5
Hospital Authority Head Office? B & 12 B2 i 2 72.9
Total #&t 162.4
Notes: 5
1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce with 1. ABERBEREEIILBRNFES - BEEE/
items including course / conference fees, passages and travel, scholarships, SRER RERRBE  REBS - BEREEN R
subsistence allowances, teaching aids and devices, publications, trainer MRBE T BMER  REEZHE KH(ME
fees, refund of examination fee and other relevant charges. BR% -

2. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training programmes and 2. X BREEREE BENHEEPRFENTIERE
initiatives centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office. FIEE ©
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Appendix 13
Btgk 13

Five-Year Financial Highlights
BE O FRVEEEE

Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)

RSN (BZBF3H31H)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn
BEEET BEEET AEEEn AEEEx BEEERT
Income A
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 64,877 57,802 54,469 52,629 49,722
BB (KEMREANN)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4,713 4,287 3,818 3,598 3,423
BRERWA (HIRER)
Non-medical fee income FEEEEE AU 1,219 1,018 935 1,014 936
Designated donations #5485 194 93 171 146 230
Capital donations &85 144 138 162 114 110
71,147 63,338 59,555 57,501 54,421
Expenditure 1
Staff costs E TEA (48,703) (45,113) (43,084) (40, 299) (37,235)
Drugs Z4) (7,309) (6,663) (6,156) (5,710) (5,328)
Medical supplies and equipment B&%) & M & (3,312) (2,970) (2,762) (2,636) (2,402)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation and (10,381) (9,433) (9,072) (8,706) (8,079)
amortisation)
Hit&ERS (BFETEREHE)
(69,701) (64,179) (61,074) (57,351) (53,044)
Results for the year FE#E R 1,446 (841) (1,519) 150 1,377
Income by Source (in % of Total Income)
BRWAKE (SHRITABS L)
100% Others
90% Hfth
80% B Medical fee income
BEEAWA
70%
0 B Government subvention
60% B
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

2019 2017

Appendices %



Appendix 13
Bitgk 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)
ITREBUER (BEBE3R831H)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn
AEET ABEEExT AEEEx AEEEx AEEER
Medical fee income (Note 1) EEEERUIA (5 1)
Inpatient fees {EfzUE 1,280 1,234 1,048 998 993
Outpatient fees P2 Y& 1,865 1,740 1,354 1,312 1,285
ltemised charges 2B E 2,490 2,085 1,890 1,742 1,595
Other medical fees Hfh B E 108 102 99 94 88
5,743 5,161 4,391 4,146 3,961
Less: Waivers (Note 2) #& : mi% (5 2) (1,030) (874) (573) (548) (538)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4713 4,287 3,818 3,598 3,423
BEEEHWA (MRiRE)
Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged 58 63 61 58 52
to the Statement of Income and Expenditure (Note 3)
WS EERAEMNTRIE AR B (5 3)
Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure)
B (hEHB2t)
100% Other operating expenses

90% Hit&&ERx<

0%
2019 2018 2017 2015

80% | Medmalsupphes and equipment
BENmNRE
70% -
60% u Drugs
50%
B Staff costs
40% BTHA
30%
20%
10%
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Appendix 13
Btgk 13

Notes:

1. Medical fee income
Fees for hospital services are governed by the HA Ordinance. There are
3 categories of charges: (i) public charges for Eligible Persons (EP); (ii)
public charges for Non-eligible Persons (NEP); and (iii) private charges. The
definition of EP and NEP can be found in HA website whilst the fees and
charges schedules are listed in the Gazette and HA website.

2. Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social Security
Assistance (CSSA), Old Age Living Allowance recipients meeting the
eligibility criteria (with effective from 15 July 2017) and Level O Voucher
Holders of the Pilot Scheme on Residential Care Service Voucher for the
Elderly (with effective from March 2017) can obtain free medical treatment
at HA's hospitals and clinics. Other persons with financial difficulties in
paying the medical fees and charges can apply for medical fee waivers. The
granting of waivers is subject to meeting the criteria under the established
waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
$916,000,000 and $114,000,000 respectively (for the year ended 31 March
2018 are $760,000,000 and $114,000,000 respectively).

3. Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged to the
Statement of Income and Expenditure
Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of outstanding
hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As a result of the
assessment, additional allowance (or reversal of allowance) would be
charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.
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Appendix 13
Bitgk 13

Financial Position (at 31 March) "'
BARHAR (REBE3A31 /) #

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn
AiEET AEEExT AEEEx BREExT AEEER

Non-current assets JEENE & 30,608 29,410 29,369 20,460 20,107
Current assets M&& &= 23,802 23,075 24,053 34,084 23,981
Total assets EEME 54,410 52,485 53,422 54,524 44,088
Designated fund f8E£& 5077 5077 5,077 5,077 5077
Revenue reserve WA & 2,906 1,438 2,259 3,758 3,586
Total Funds ££§8%8 7,983 6,515 7,336 8,835 8,663
Current liabilities EN& & 13,296 12,661 12,233 11,630 11,278
Non-current liabilities JER B & & 33,131 33,309 33,853 34,059 24,147
Total liabilities Bf&#2% 46,427 45,970 46,086 45,689 35,425
Total funds and total liabilities E&€ R &&#8% 54,410 52,485 53,422 54,524 44,088
Note: EN
1. Comparative figures 1. LEREF

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current ETHBREFTESHRS  UREAEENEHA

year's presentation. = o

Total Assets"*"*” (in HKS milllions)
BEEY (BEEET)

60,000 Placements with the Exchange Fund
IEREDSEFER

50,000 B Cash & bank
Re RIBITHER

40,000 M Fixed income instruments

BEASLE

Receivables, deposits & prepayments
30,000 FEWR ~ e RTBAFRIE

M Inventories
20,000 yea
B Fixed & intangible assets
= ﬂE 4
10,000 EENERERE

0
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Note: i
2. Placements with the Exchange Fund have included HK$6,084,029,000 2. /MEESEREEEERARBHIESFENEE
(2018: HKST,456,207,000) held by HA on behalf of the Samaritan Fund. 6,084,029,000 Jt (2018 : &% 7,456,207,000 7T ) °
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Btgk 13

Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)
TEHEES (REF3R8318H)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn HKSMn
AEET ABEEExT AEEEx AEEEx AEEER
Inventories #&
Drugs 24 1,158 1,129 1,073 1,054 1,087
Other medical and general consumables 219 214 223 213 227
HitBRE—BEER
1,377 1,343 1,296 1,267 1,314
Average stock holding period (weeks)
FHE SRR (E5)
Drugs 24 7.9 8.8 9.0 9.6 10.5
Other medical and general consumables 7.9 1.7 8.2 8.6 8.1

HEitgEER—EEm
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk

EREERRNREFERE  tFHRS LHABBIEwww.ha.org.hk

Hospital Authority
Hospital Authority Building
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BEREER
BEBNEDEEH 147BEREERNE

Tel B :  (852) 2300 6555
Fax & : (852) 28907726
Email &% : enquiry@ha.org.hk

Copyright©2019 Hospital Authority. All rights reserved.
©2019 BEHEF - REME -

"‘ This report is printed on environmentally friendly paper.
Yad cEERRERERDR -
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